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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B 75 47 22

HK$ Million, except otherwise stated
BEBIL  BRRBEEBAEN

2019 AONES]
—E-hE —E—N\F
(Re-presented)
(#=&E7)
Revenue A 629.9 681.5
Loss for the year FEBE (179.3) (49.3)
Loss attributable to owners of the Company KRB)EA AEILRER (171.7) (58.0)
Loss per share (HK cents) SRR EE (B (2.889) (0.975)
Average inventory turnover day (days) FHEFERASRE(K) 71.6 64.6
Average trade receivable turnover day (days) FHEKRE FEREE X (X) 83.1 67.7
Average trade payable turnover day (days) FHESESEFRAERE(X) 48.3 49.1
Total assets BERE 734.8 930.9
Total liabilities BERE 323.9 348.0
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”), |
would hereby like to present the audited consolidated financial results
of Link-Asia International Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019 (“the
Year”).

During the Year, the global economy had suffered from geopolitical
conflicts and the uncertainty arising out of the Sino-US trade dispute.
China’s export business was severely affected as well. Coupled with
weak domestic demand, China’s annual GDP growth fell to 6.1%, the
lowest since 1990. The Group had carefully assessed the situation and
will continue to closely monitor the relevant negative impacts and
actively seek quality investment opportunities for future sustainable
development.

As part of the future development strategy, the Group officially
changed the name from “China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited”
to “Link-Asia International Co. Ltd.” on 20 November 2019, unveiling a
new chapter for the Group to tap into new areas. Based on the Group’s
extensive experience in the electronics industry and its insights of the
industry trends, we are optimistic about global technological
innovations and long-term development of the digital economy. In
addition, it is noted that Southeast Asia, with a young and massive
population, are creating rare opportunities for local real estate
development and rich individuals from developed Asian countries
have strong demand on asset allocation in Southeast Asia. As such,
the Group has started to set foot in the real estate supply chain service
business in Southeast Asia since the second half of 2019.

During the Year, even though the global economic was not good, the
Group managed to maintain a stable performance in its electronic
manufacturing services (“EMS”) and marketing and distribution of
communication products (“Distribution of Communication Products”).
Only a mild decrease was recorded in the revenue and a reasonable
gross profit margin was maintained.
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With regard to the Securities and Other Assets Investment operation,
the Group disposed of non-core business that possessed barely any
potential and were irrelevant to our future development strategy. This
move would help the Group to further consolidate its resources and
re-deploy these resources to better opportunities.

Looking ahead, although the U.S.A. and China have entered into the
first stage economic and trade agreement early this year, the global
economy didn’t improve much. The first “black swan event” occurred
at the beginning of 2020 — severe global outbreak of the novel
coronavirus (COVID-19). It brought China’s economics and global
tourism, transportation, trade, retail business, etc, to a standstill and
seriously affected the global economy and the Group’s business.
Nevetheless, the Group will actively consolidate its resources and act
with prudence in pursuing continous development in our core
businesses. Meanwhile, the Group will provide value chain service to
China’s middle class who seek for overseas investment opportunities,
and Chinese leading enterprises which aim to expand businesses in
overseas markets. Besides, the Group will seize the opportunities in
the global fight against the COVID-19 , such as the dealing of
diagnostic kits and other medical equipments, in order to diversify
income sources and discharge its corporate social responsibility.

In light of various difficulties and challenges, the Group will continue
its path ahead. With the prudent approach, stable operation and
steady management, we will strive to consolidate the business base
and seek new business opportunities to bring reasonable returns to
shareholders.

Finally, on behalf of the board of directors, | would like to extend my
gratitude to our staff for their hard work and efforts during the year. |
wish to also thank all our shareholders, stakeholders, customers and
business partners for their continous support and trust to the Group.

Lin Dailian
Chairman
31March 2020
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During the Year, the global economy suffered from geopolitical
conflicts and the Sino-US trade dispute. China’s annual GDP growth in
2019 fell to approximately 6.1%, the lowest since 1990.

Even though the overall demand of our products was turning weak
under the aforementioned context, the Group has managed to
maintain a stable performance in the EMS and Distribution of
Communication Products businesses while a mild decrease in revenue
was recorded.

In order to expand revenue streams, the Group proactively looked for
business opportunities in Southeast Asia and Pan-Asia, in particular, in
the real estate supply chain business. As part of the business strategy,
the Group has changed its name from “China Healthcare Enterprise
Group Limited” to “Link-Asia International Co. Ltd.” on 20 November
2019, signifying an important step into the promising realm of
Southeast Asia with massive population. The Group has leveraged its
network in selected Southeast Asia countries to locate high-quality
real estate projects since the second half of 2019.

For the Year, the Group generated total revenue from continuing
operations of approximately HK$629.9 million (2018: HK$681.5 million).
Gross profit from continuing operations amounted to approximately
HK$135.8 million (2018: HK$147.3 million), and loss attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to approximately HK$171.8 million
(2018: HK$58.0 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had bank and cash balances
totalling approximately HK$241.4 million (2018: HK$354.2 million) and
maintained a healthy financial position.
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The EMS and Distribution of Communication Products businesses
contributed revenue of approximately HK$582.5 million (2018:
HK$622.9 million) and HK$36.5 million (2018: HK$43.7 million),
respectively, to the Group. The Group has seen an overall weak
demand in both residential and business phone sectors in the major
markets. Nevertheless, the Group managed to maintain a relatively
stable performance in the turnover and only a mild decrease of
approximately 7.1% was recorded in 2019.

Indicative of its relatively brief period of operation, having been
established in 2016, the Securities and Other Assets Investment
business contributed revenue of approximately HK$11.0 million
(2018: 14.9 million) to the Group during the Year, primarily through the
provision of catering service.

Revenue from the major European countries (the United Kingdom,
Switzerland, Poland and France) totalled approximately HK$328.5
million (2018: HK$271.3 million), and accounted for approximately
52.2% (2018: 39.8%) of the Group’s revenue from continuing
operations for the Year. The U.S.A. market contributed approximately
HK$52.8 million (2018: HK$129.9 million) in revenue and accounted for
approximately 8.4% (2018: 19.1%) of the Group’s revenue from
continuing operations. The PRC (including Hong Kong) and other
countries accounted for approximately HK$113.5 million (2018:
HK$120.0 million) and HK$135.1 million (2018: HK$160.2 million),
respectively, representing approximately 18.0% (2018: 17.6%) and
21.4% (2018: 23.5%) of the Group’s revenue from continuing
operations.
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The Group’s reporting segments are strategic business units that offer
different products and services. There are three broad groups of
business units for segment accounting purpose, namely, EMS,
Distribution of Communications Products and the Securities and Other
Assets Investment. In EMS segment, there are also two main groups of
products, namely, communications and non-communications
products, whereas non-communications products mainly include
appliances and appliances control products and multimedia products.
Distribution of Communications Products segment represents the
marketing and distribution of communications products. The function
of the Securities and Other Assets Investment segment is to carry out
effective financial management and new business development.

For the Year, the Group recorded total revenue from continuing
operations of approximately HK$629.9 million (2018: HK$681.5 million).

For the Year, the revenue from EMS segment decreased by
approximately 6.5% to HK$582.5 million (2018: HK$622.9 million),
whereas the revenue from Distribution of Communications Products
segment decreased by approximately 16.6% to HK$36.5 million (2018:
HK$43.7 million). The Securities and Other Assets Investment segment
contributed revenue of approximately HK$11.0 million (2018: HK$14.9
million).

The decrease in the revenue of EMS segment was composed of
approximately HK$24.7 million decrease in the appliance and
appliances control product and approximately HK$27.5 million in
residential phone product, as a result of weaker market demand, offset
by the increase in sales of multimedia products of approximately
HK$12.7 million.

The decrease in the revenue of Distribution of Communications
Products segment was caused by the fall in overall demand in the
business phone sector.

Cost of sales decreased by 7.5% from approximately HK$534.2 million
in 2018 to HK$494.1 million in 2019 in line with the decrease of the
revenue.
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Gross profit from continuing operations decreased by approximately
7.8% from HK$147.3 million in 2018 to HK$135.8 million in 2019, as a
result of diminished turnover achieved during the Year, while the gross
profit margin was maintained at approximately 21.6% in both years.

The investment and other income decreased from approximately
HK$15.1 million in 2018 to HK$12.4 million in 2019. The major
components of the investment and other income were interest income
of approximately HK$8.3 million and reimbursement from suppliers for
testing defective products of approximately HK$1.7 million. The
decrease was mainly due to no consultancy fee income recognised in
2019 (2018: HK$2.5 million) and no waive of license rights payable in
2019 (2018: HK$1.9 million) offset by the increase in reimbursement
from suppliers for testing defective products by approximately HK$1.5
million.

Other gains and losses decreased from approximately HK$9.1 million
in 2018 to HK$3.9 million in 2019. The major components of other gains
and losses were net foreign exchange gains of approximately HK$3.9
million. The decrease was mainly due to no gain on disposal of
subsidiaries recognised and less net foreign exchange gains in the
Year.

Selling and distribution expenses of approximately HK$28.8 million
(2018: HK$27.5 million) accounted for approximately 4.6% in 2019 and
4.0% in 2018 of the Group’s revenue from continuing operations. The
increases was mainly attributable to the increase of approximately
HK$2.7 million in the royalty expense and partially offset by the
decrease of approximately HK$1.3 million in the freight and
transportation cost in distribution business in the U.S.A..

Administration expenses of approximately HK$179.4 million (2018:
HK$182.5 million) accounted for approximately 28.5% in 2019 and
26.8% in 2018 of the Group’s revenue from continuing operations,
respectively. The decrease of approximately HK$3.1 million was mainly
attributable to the decrease in rental expenses.
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Impairment losses for loans to other parties increased from
approximately HK$5.0 million in 2018 to HK$54.6 million in 2019. A
valuation of expected credit loss was performed by an independent
valuer, based on the credit rating analysis of the borrowers. As the
borrowers’ financial situation deteriorated during the Year, the
expected credit loss has risen significantly.

Other operating expenses increased from approximately HK$20.0
million in 2018 to HK$42.5 million in 2019. The increase was mainly
attributable to the disposal of fixed assets of approximately HK$2.1
million, loss of disposal of a subsidiary of approximately HK$19.2
million and a reinstatement provision of approximately HK$1.5 million
during the Year. The loss of disposal of a subsidiary included the
goodwill of approximately HK$18.8 million as disclosed in the profit
warning announcement on 24 January 2020.

The Group’s finance costs mainly comprise the interest on loans from
independent third party and related companies. The Group’s finance
costs were approximately HK$6.8 million in 2019 and HK$2.8 million in
2018, representing approximately 1.1% and 0.4% of the Group’s revenue
from continuing operations in 2019 and 2018, respectively. The
increase was mainly due to the interest expenses on lease liabilities of
approximately HK$4.4 million (after the adoption effect of HKFRS 16).

The Group’s income tax expense represents amounts of income tax
paid by the Group, at the applicable tax rates in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong, PRC and the U.S.A.. The
Group had no tax payable in other jurisdictions during the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018.

The loss attributable to owners of the Company is of approximately
HK$171.7 million (2018: HK$58.0 million). The Group’s net loss margin
attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019 was approximately -27.3% (2018: -8.5%).
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Loss for the year attributable to non-controlling interests amounted to
approximately HK$7.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
(2018: profit of HK$8.7 million). The loss attributable to the non-
controlling interests mainly contributed by the sales of medical
equipments in the PRC.

On 31 December 2019, Anhui Huayuan Guoyi Medical Investment
Management Limited (“Guoyi”) was disposed at a consideration of
approximately HK$0.6 million. The disposal gain was recorded at
approximately HK$0.7 million.

A sale and purchase agreement to dispose Guoyi was entered on 31
December 2019 and completed on the same date. The financial
reporting of Guoyi has been reclassified as discontinued operation.
The total revenue of the discontinued operation was approximately
HK$58.2 million (2018: HK$53.7 million).

Loss for the year from discontinued operation was approximately
HK$14.7 million for the Year (2018: profit of HK$15.9 million).

The Group generally finances its operations and capital expenditure by
internally generated cashflows.

As at 31 December 2019, the bank and cash balances amounted to
approximately HK$241.4 million (2018: HK$354.2 million), representing
an decrease of approximately HK$112.8 million from 2018. Respective
sum of approximately 18.8%, 67.2% and 10.2% of the bank and cash
balances was denominated in RMB, USD and HKD.

The Group’s current ratio remains in a healthy position at 1.9 times
(2018: 2.15 times).

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amounts of the loan from a
related company and loan from an independent third party were
approximately HK$0.6 million and HK$20.0 million, respectively. The
loan from a related company is denominated in RMB which is non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand, and the loan from an
independent third party is denominated in HK Dollar with a fixed
interest rate of 12% per annum and was settled on 24 March 2020.
Details of such are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
24 March 2020. As at 31 December 2018, the borrowings represented
the loans from related companies and loan from an independent third
party of approximately HK$20.3 million and HK$20.0 million,
respectively.
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The gearing ratio of the Group was 44.1% as at 31 December 2019
(2018: 37.4%), which is calculated based on the Group’s total liabilities
divided by its total assets. Taking into account of the amount of liquid
assets on hand, the Group has sufficient financial resources to meet its
ongoing operational requirements.

In 2019, approximately HK$62.4 million was used in the operating
activities, whilst approximately HK$0.5 million and HK$37.6 million
were generated from investing activities and used in financing
activities, respectively. Net cash outflow from financing activities was
related to the payment of lease liabilities after the adoption effect of
HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2019, the total number of issued shares of the
Company is 5,945,311,400 shares with a nominal value of HK$0.001
each.

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise
from the business operations in the PRC and Hong Kong denominated
in RMB and USD, respectively. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had
minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most of its business
transactions, assets and liabilities were principally denominated in the
respective functional currencies, i.e. RMB and USD, used by the
respective group entities, or in USD for the respective group entities
with HKD being the functional currency. As HKD is pegged to USD, the
Group considers the risk of movements in exchange rates between
HKD and USD to be insignificant for transactions denominated in USD.
The RMB is not freely convertible into other foreign currencies and
conversion of the RMB into foreign currencies is subject to rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government. As at 31 December 2019, the Group does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of its foreign currency
assets and liabilities. The Group had no investment in any financial
derivatives, foreign exchange contracts, interest or currency swaps,
hedging or other financial arrangements for hedging purposes to
reduce any currency risk nor made any over-the-counter contingent
forward transactions. The Group will closely monitor its foreign
currency exposure and will consider using hedging instruments in
respect of significant foreign currency exposure as and when
appropriate.
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Capital expenditure for 2019 amounted to approximately HK$9.2
million and capital commitments as at 31 December 2019 amounted to
approximately HK$96,000. Both the capital expenditure and capital
commitments were mainly related to the acquisition of plant and
machinery to replace retired ones.

As at 31 December 2019, no bank deposits (2018: HK$1.3 million) were
pledged to banks for securing banking facilities and also certain shares
of subsidiaries have been pledged to an independent third party to
secure a loan facility available to the Group.

Q)

As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, the Group had an outstanding
guarantee (the “Guarantee™) to one of the suppliers of an
overseas subsidiary (the “Disposed Subsidiary”), which was
disposed on 7 October 2015, for payment in relation to a sum of
US$2.6 million (equivalent to approximately HK$20.3 million),
representing a trade balance under dispute between the
Disposed Subsidiary and the supplier. The supplier subsequently
sold the trade balance to a third party.

During 2017, the Disposed Subsidiary had agreed with the third
party for a final settlement by instalment of US$650,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$5.1 million). In this regards, as
at 31 December 2019, the Group had an outstanding guarantee
of the sum limited to US$650,000, subject to the full payment of
the final settlement effected by the Disposed Subsidiary.

The Disposed Subsidiary had issued counter guarantee to the
Company to indemnify the Company for any loss in relation to
the Guarantee.
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(i) In 2018, a lawsuit was lodged against a subsidiary of the
Company, Guangzhou Telefield Limited. The plaintiff seeks
compensation of approximately RMB1 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$1.1 million). A settlement agreement was
signed with the plantiff to compensate RMBT1 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$1.1 million) in five payment instalments. As
at 31 December 2019, four instalments were made and the
remaining instalment was approximately RMBO0.2 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$0.22 million).

Apart from the above, the Group and the Company did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group was holding listed equity
investments at fair value of approximately HK$13.4 million (2018:
HK$27.2 million), which were classified as equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). The fair value
change in respect of such investments of approximately HK$9.4
million (2018: downward movement of HK$25.7 million) was recorded
in other comprehensive income. No dividend income was received
during the year ended 31 December 2019 in respect of these
investments.

Save as disclosed in note 43(e) to the consolidated financial
statements, there were no significant investment held, material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
by the Group during the Year.

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as
at 31 December 2019.
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On 13 October 2017, the Group entered into share subscription
agreement (“Subscription Agreement”) with Keywan Global Limited
(“Keywan”). All conditions precedent of the Subscription Agreement
have been fulfilled and completion took place on 1 November 2017.
Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, an aggregate of
990,000,000 shares of the Company were allotted and issued to
Keywan at a subscription price of HK$0.3 per share. The net proceeds
received by the Group was approximately HK$297 million. Upon
completion of the share subscriptions, Keywan has 16.65%
shareholding in the Company. The intended use of the net proceeds
from the Subscription was to finance the proposed acquisition of a
polyurethane condom business (the “Proposed Acquisition™) as
detailed in the circular dated 15 February 2018 and/or the general
working capital of the Group. As at 31 December 2019, the Proposed
Acquisition was not materialized.

As at the date of 2018 Annual Report, the net proceeds of
approximately HK$159 million was utilised for the Group’s general
working capital, of which approximately 39% for staff costs, 27% for
office rental and management fee and 34% for other administrative
and operating expenses.

Up to 31 December 2019, additionally approximately HK$88 million
was used as the Group’s general working capital, of which
approximately 25% for staff costs, 24% for office rental and
management fee and 51% for other administrative and operating
expenses.

On 6 March 2020, in order to better deploy the resources of the Group,
the Board has resolved to assign the unutilised net proceeds of
approximately HK$21 million as at 6 March 2020 to the development
of business in Pan Asia, including the establishment of the real estate
sale channel system in Southeast Asia, and the upgrade and
development of the digital economy cloud service business in
Southeast Asia, which has leveraged on its electronic products and
telecommunications services, while the unutilised net proceeds of
approximately HK$10 million as general working capital of the Group.
For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 6 March 2020.

Subsequently from 1 January 2020 up to the date of 2019 Annual
Report, additionally approximately HK$47 million was used, of which
approximately 38.3% for the development of business in Pan Asia and
61.7% for the general working capital. The remaining unutilised net
proceeds is estimated to be fully utilised in the next three months.
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group had approximately 1,400
employees in various operating units located in Hong Kong, U.S.A. and
PRC. In order to attract and retain high quality talents to ensure
smooth operation and cater for the Group’s constant expansion, it
offers competitive remuneration packages, with reference to market
conditions, individual qualifications and experience. In addition to
basic salaries, the Group also provides medical coverage, discretionary
and performance related bonus. Meanwhile, employees are provided
or funded to attend training and development programs which are
relevant to their works.

There is no outstanding share option as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.
In addition, no share option was granted, cancelled or lapsed during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining the
highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. The Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in relation to its business including health and
safety, workplace conditions, employment and the environment. The
Group understands a better future depends on everyone’s participation
and contribution. It has encouraged employees, customers, suppliers
and other stakeholders to participate in environmental and social
activities which benefit the community as a whole. The Group maintains
strong relationships with its employees, has enhanced cooperation with
its suppliers and has provided high quality products and services to its
customers so as to ensure sustainable development.

The details of such are set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance report on pages 38 to 64 of this annual report. During the
Year, the Group has complied with the relevant environmental laws
and regulations in all material respects. The Group will review its
environmental practices from time to time and will implement further
eco-friendly measures and practices closely enhancing environmental
sustainability. For further details, please refer to pages 38 to 64 of this
annual report.
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The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the mainland China while the Company itself is listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Our establishment and operations accordingly shall comply with
applicable laws and regulations in the mainland China and Hong Kong.
The Group would seek professional legal advice from its legal advisers
to ensure its transactions and business are in compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations. During the Year, the Group was not
aware of any noncompliance with any relevant laws and regulations
that had a significant impact on it.

Our Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to our Group’s businesses. The
followings are the key risks and uncertainties identified by our Group.
There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown
below which are not known to our Group or which may not be material
now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Market risk is the risk that deteriorates profitability or affects ability to
meet business objectives arising from the movement in market prices,
like foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices. The
management of our Group manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

As our Group’s transactions were mainly conducted in HKD, USD, RMB
and Euro ("EUR”), exposing to the potential RMB and EUR exchange
rate fluctuations. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of other foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. However, the Group monitors its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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For interest-sensitive products and investments, our Group analyses
its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis and considers managing
this risk in a cost-effective manner when appropriate, through variety
of means.

Liquidity risk is the potential that our Group will be unable to meet its
obligations when they fall due because of an inability to obtain
adequate funding or liquidate assets. In managing liquidity risk, our
Group monitors cash flows and maintains an adequate level of cash
and cash equivalent to ensure the ability to finance the Group’s
operations and reduce the effects of fluctuation in cash flows.

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and systems or from external events.
Responsibility for managing operational risks basically rests with every
function at divisional and departmental levels. Key functions in our
Group are guided by their standard operating procedures, limits of
authority and reporting framework. Our management will identify and
assess key operational exposures regularly so that appropriate risk
response can be taken.

Our Group may face the risk of not being able to attract and retain key
personnel and talents with appropriate and required skills, experience
and competence which would meet the business objectives of our
Group. Our Group will provide attractive remuneration package to
suitable candidates and personnel.
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In 2020, the unexpected COVID-19 outbreak has become a major
challenge to the global public healthcare system as well as the
economy, leading to worldwide disruptions. Due to the continued
spread of the virus and the rise in the number of infected cases,
markets become volatile.

Although the quantitative impact on the economics has yet to be
unveiled, it is expected that there will be a severe contraction. The
Group’s operating environment in China and overseas markets has
also been affected. The Group has taken contingency measures to
mitigate the impact of the outbreak. However, the situation remains
unstable at this stage.

Nevertheless, the Group believes that due to stricter measures
adopted by international governments, such as community and/or
border restrictions, the virus spread will gradually slow down and
eventually suppressed. The economy will also resume to normal over
time.

As such, the Group will firmly continue to develop its core businesses,
which are the EMS and Communication Product Distribution business,
and the new business including the real estate sale supply chain
service business in Southeast Asia. The Group will proactively
consolidate its resources in those business sectors and adopt a
prudential approach in the year ahead. Meanwhile, the Group will
leverage its network and resources to grasp the opportunities in the
global fight against the COVID-19 outbreak, including but not limited
to the trading of diagnosis kit and other medical equipment.
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The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance to protect the interests of the shareholders of
the Company.

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company has complied with
the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code”) under Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31
December 2019, except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of
the Code as described below.

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be performed by
the same individual. The Company does not have any officer with the
title of “chief executive officer” and this is deviated from the code
provision A.2.1 of the Code.

Mr. Lin Dailian, who acts as the Chairman and an executive Director of
the Company since 12 July 2019, is also responsible for overseeing the
general operations of the Group. The Board will meet regularly to
consider major matters affecting the operations of the Group. The
Board considers that this structure will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management of the
Group. The roles of the respective executive directors and senior
management, who are in charge of different functions complement
the role of the chairman and chief executive officer. The Board
believes that this structure is conducive to strong and consistent
leadership enabling the Group to operate efficiently.
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The Company understands the importance to comply with the
code provision A.2.1 and will continue to consider the feasibility to
comply with the said code provision. If compliance with the said
provision is determined, appropriate persons will be nominated to
assume the different roles of chairman and chief executive officer.

On 12 August 2019, Mr. Wong Chun Hung resigned as an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the audit committee of the
Company (the “Audit Committee”) and a member of the remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Company. Following the
resignation of Mr. Wong Chun Hung, the number of independent non-
executive Directors of the Company fell below the minimum number
required under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules and the Company
failed to meet the requirement set out in Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules. Further, the Company fails to meet the requirements set out in
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules in respect of the constitution of the Audit
Committee. According to Rule 3.11 and 3.23 of the Listing Rules, the
Company is required to meet the requirements set out in Rule 3.10 and
3.21 of the Listing Rules within three months after failing to meet the
requirements. On 14 October 2019, Mr. Li Huiwu was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

Following the appointment of Mr. Li Huiwu on 14 October 2019 as an
independent non-executive Director and the chairman of the Audit
Committee, the Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of
the Listing Rules in relation to the composition of the Board and Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules with regard to the composition of the Audit
Committee.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as the required standard for securities
transactions by the directors. The Company has made specific
enquiries of all Directors and all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code and
its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions
throughout the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of
this annual report.
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The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The three Independent Non-
executive Directors account for more than one-third of the Board. The
composition of the Board is set out as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman)
Mr. Duan Chuanhong

Mr. Xia Xiaobing

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Bao Jingiao

Mr. Li Huiwu

Mr. Wang Guozhen

The biographical details of the Directors are disclosed in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors” on pages 36 to 37 in this
annual report. The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills
and experiences appropriate to the requirements of the businesses of
the Group and to exercise of independence and is well balanced. Each
of the Directors has relevant expertise and extensive corporate and
strategic planning experiences that may contribute to the business of
the Group. The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other. The Company
has complied with the requirements under Rule 3.10(1) and (2) of the
Listing Rules since the Listing Date. All Independent Non- executive
Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of their
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Board’s primary duty is to ensure the viability of the
Company and to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of the
shareholders as a whole while taking into account the interests of
other stakeholders. The Group has adopted internal guidelines in
setting forth matters that require the Board’s approval. Apart from its
statutory responsibilities, the Board approves the Group’s strategic
plans, key operational initiatives, major investments and funding
decisions. It also reviews the Group’s financial performance, identifies
principal risks of the Group’s business and ensures implementation of
appropriate systems to manage these risks. Daily business operations
and administrative functions of the Group are delegated to the
management.
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Board members were provided with complete, adequate and timely
information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. In compliance
with code provision A.1.3 of the Code, at least 14 days’ notice has been
given for a regular Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity
to attend. Notice, agenda and board papers of regular Board meetings
are sent to all Directors within reasonable time and at least 3 days
prior to the meetings. Directors are free to contribute and share their
views at meetings and major decisions will only be taken after
deliberation at Board meetings. Directors who are considered having
conflict of interests or material interests in the proposed transactions
or issues to be discussed will not be counted in the quorum of meeting
and will abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions. Full minutes
are prepared after the meetings and the draft minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comment on the final version of which are endorsed
in the subsequent Board meeting.

All Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a
fixed term. Every Director is subject to re-election on retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company. The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and still considers the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent as at the
date of this annual report.
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Number of meetings attended/

held
HESEHE CHEEEA
Annual general Board
meeting meeting

Name of member g= BREAFEAS EEEged
Executive Directors: HITEF :
Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman) * MREE S () 0/1 31/47
Mr. Gong Shaoxiang? FDRES A2 171 16/47
Mr. Duan Chuanhong EB)IAT % 171 46/47
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua® TR ES A 1/1 19/47
Mr. Li Wuhao* ZRIFEAE 0/1 24/47
Mr. Shi Xinbiao® SERTIR S 0/1 2/147
Mr. Xia Xiaobing® BN ES 01 3/47
Non-executive Director: HBITESE -
Mr. Cao Yuyun’ EBRREE 1/1 22/47
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIIFNITESE
Mr. Bao Jingiao S E 11 45/47
Mr. Wong Chun Hung? AT AS 1/1 23/47
Mr. Leung Pok Man? RIS 11 30/47
Mr. Li Huiwu? TEREE 01 13/47
Mr. Wang Guozhen® TRUEE S AES 0/1 3/47

Appointed on 12 July 2019

Resigned on 12 July 2019

Removed on 17 December 2019

Appointed on 6 June 2019 and resigned on 18 November 2019
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Resigned on 31 January 2019
Appointed on 28 November 2019
Resigned on 29 July 2019
Resigned on 12 August 2019
Appointed on 14 October 2019
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Newly appointed Directors are provided with necessary induction and
information to ensure that they have a proper understanding of the
Company’s business and operations, as well as awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the Code, the Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills, so as to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Directors committed to participating in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by way of attending training or
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business or to the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities. During the year ended 31
December 2019, the Directors have been provided with regular
updates on the Company’s performance, position and prospects to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties. The Directors are also briefed on the latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory
requirements from time to time. All directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development programmes to
develop and refresh their professional knowledge and skills. All the
existing Directors confirmed that they have had suitable directors’
training through attendance of training courses and seminars; or
reading materials to refresh their knowledge and skills during the Year.

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends
to the shareholders of the Company to allow shareholders of the
Company to share the Company’s profits and for the Company to
retain adequate reserves for future growth.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the
right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.
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The non-executive Directors of the Company are appointed for a
specific term of three years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting, at least one third of the
Directors are required to retire from office by rotation. Each Director
shall retire from office at least once every three years and shall include
those who have been longest in office since their last election or re-
election.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, new Directors appointed by the Board during the year shall
retire and submit themselves for re-election at the annual general
meeting immediately following their appointments.

The Board has established specific committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
with written terms of reference to assist them in the efficient
implementation of their functions. Specific responsibilities have been
delegated to the above committees.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses.

The Board shall establish other committees for specific purposes from
time to time to facilitate the Company’s operations.
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The Company established the Audit Committee on 31 December 2010. As
at 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee had three members
comprising three Independent Non- executive Directors, namely Mr. Li
Huiwu (Chairman), Mr. Bao Jingiao and Mr. Wang Guozhen. On 12 August
2019, Mr. Wong Chun Hung resigned as an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company and a
member of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. Following the resignation of Mr. Wong Chun Hung, the
number of independent non-executive Directors of the Company fell
below the minimum number required under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing
Rules and the Company failed to meet the requirement set out in Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules. Further, the Company fails to meet the
requirements set out in Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules in respect of the
constitution of the Audit Committee. According to Rule 3.11 and 3.23 of
the Listing Rules, the Company is required to meet the requirements set
out in Rule 3.10 and 3.21 of the Listing Rules within three months after
failing to meet the requirements. On 14 October 2019, Mr. Li Huiwu was
appointed as an Independent non-Executive Director and the chairman of
the Audit Committee.

Following the appointment of Mr. Li Huiwu on 14 October 2019 as an
Independent non-Executive Director and the chairman of the Audit
Committee, the Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of
the Listing Rules in relation to the composition of the Board and Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules with regard to the composition of the Audit
Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control system
of the Group. The written terms of reference which describes the
authority and duties of the Audit Committee have been revised by the
Board on 24 February 2016 to conform to the provisions of the
Revised Code, a copy of which is posted to the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The works performed by the Audit Committee in 2019 included the BERZEEE@NR-_ZE—-HLERBTHNIEBSENT
following: Fr%l &

. to review the financial results and reports; . EH G EE RS

. to review the reports from external auditor, management letters -« EHINEZBEIRE ERERNGRE
and management response; BEDE

. to review the matters in relation to internal audit and the -« EFBARNILET ALK RERE
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management BRAGBWENER

system;

. to review the Group’s compliance with statutory and regulatory -« EHAEEETEAEREERTENENR
requirements;

. to review corporate governance matters; and . EMPEERER K
. to review the re-appointment of the external auditor. . EMINBIZEMNEREE -

The details of meetings held by the Audit Committee during 2019 and BEXRZEeN T NFEITLHZFBLE
the individual attendance of each member is set out below: X B RER & HanT

Number of meetings

attended/held
Name of member = LESBHE BITEEEA
Mr. Li Huiwu (Chairman) TEREE(ERE)! 0/3
Mr. Bao Jingiao BT E 3/3
Mr. Wong Chun Hung? EHERE R 2/3
Mr. Leung Pok Man3 PAE A 3/3
Mr. Wang Guozhen? TR A 0/3

—NETATHAEZRE
—NFENATZHEHE
—NET=ATERERR
—NET—A-tN\BERE

Appointed on 14 October 2019
Resigned on 12 August 2019
Removed on 17 December 2019
Appointed on 28 November 2019

e
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The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2019 RRABBE_Z-NFT_A=+—BHLFE
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. MNEEXECKHEZZESETERN -
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 31 December 2010.
The Remuneration Committee had three members comprising two
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Bao Jingiao
(Chairman), Mr. Wang Guozhen and one executive Director namely Mr.
Lin Dailian.

The Remuneration Committee is governed by its terms of reference,
which have been revised by the Board on 30 March 2012 pursuant to
the Revised Code. The terms of reference are currently available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to
review and determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses
and other compensation payable to the Directors and senior
management and to make recommendation to the Board on the
Group’s policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management. No Director shall participate in any discussion
about his or her own remuneration. The remuneration of the Directors
was determined with reference to their respective experience,
responsibilities with the Group and general market conditions.

Five meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held during the
year ended 31 December 2019 to review the remuneration package of
the Directors and senior management. The individual attendance of
each member is set out below.

Name of member
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Number of meetings
attended/held

Mr. Bao Jingiao (Chairman) MBI E (EE)
Mr. Lin Dailian’ MRREE AT
Mr. Wang Guozhen? TEIER S AE?
Mr. Wong Chun Hung?® IR ES
Mr. Leung Pok Man* RIE A

Appointed on 10 October 2019
Appointed on 28 November 2019
Resigned on 12 August 2019
Removed on 17 December 2019
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 31 December
2010 with written terms of reference which are in compliance with the
code provision of the Code. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee include the making of recommendations to the Board on
appointment of Directors and succession planning for the Directors.
The specific terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
currently available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The following is a summary of the work of the Nomination Committee
during the year ended 31 December 2019:

. review the structure, size and composition (including but without
limitation, the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

. review the retirement of Directors by rotation and the re-
appointment of the retiring Directors at the 2019 Annual General
Meeting;

. review the reappointment of Directors during the year; and

. assess the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors.

The Nomination Committee consisted of three members, comprising
two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Bao Jingiao
(Chairman), Mr. Wang Guozhen and one executive Director namely Mr.
Lin Dailian.

Seven Nomination Committee meeting was held and the individual
attendance of each member is set out below.

Name of member
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Number of meetings

attended/held
HESEYEE T EBTERHE

Mr. Bao Jingiao (Chairman) MBI E(EE)
Mr. Lin Dailian* MAREE S AT
Mr. Wang Guozhen? TSRS A2
Mr. Wong Chun Hung? EEM A
Mr. Leung Pok Man* RIE A

Appointed on 10 October 2019
Appointed on 28 November 2019
Resigned on 12 August 2019
Removed on 17 December 2019
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The Company recognises that the Board with a reasonable balance of
skills and experience and sufficient diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the business and operation of the Group would be
beneficial to the Company and its shareholders as a whole and
enhance the quality of its performance.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity
on the Board.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Company seeks to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, educational background,
professional experience and qualifications, relevant industry
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be made according to the merits of candidates and their
contribution to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises six Directors. Three
of them are independent non-executive Directors, thereby promoting
critical review and control of the management process. The Board is
also characterised by significant diversity, whether considered in terms
of age, educational background, professional experience, skills, and
knowledge.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period.

The statement by the auditor of the Company about its responsibilities
for the financial statements is set out in the independent auditor’s
report contained in the Annual Report. There are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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The Company engaged RSM Hong Kong as its external auditor for the
Year. Analysis of the remuneration in respect of audit services
provided by the external auditor is included in note 14 to the financial
statements in the Annual Report. For the Year, the total fee paid in
respect of the non-audit services is approximately HK$0.25 million.
The non-audit services mainly consisted of the interim report review
service.

The Company's company secretary, Ms. Yeung Josephine Yan (“Ms.
Yeung”), is delegated by an external service provider. The external
service provider’s primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Lin
Dailian, the executive Director and the Chairman of the Board. For the
year ended 31 December 2019, Ms. Yeung had complied with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training. She is a practising fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of system of internal controls and risk management
within the Group. The system is set up to address key business risks of
failure to meet corporate objectives and to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. The
purpose of such system is to manage and control risks properly, but
not eliminate it.

The Board has through the Audit Committee reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls, internal audit
and risk management, including financial, operational and compliance
controls on annual basis. The Board considered the system is effective
and adequate. The review has also considered the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff in respect of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget. The Board ensures the existing
resources, qualifications and experience of staff and their training
programmes and budget should be adequate in respect of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function.
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In view of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the Group,
the Board has appointed external independent professionals to
perform internal audit functions. As approved by the Audit Committee,
the external independent professionals made assessment on various
business and operation risks of the Group. The Audit Committee
reviewed the findings from the external independent professionals
periodically and discussed the recommended actions needed to be
taken to develop and improve the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control system. The Board will continue to improve the Group’s
internal control and risk management systems through periodic
reviews and recommendations from the external auditors and external
independent professionals during their audit.

Regarding the procedures and internal control for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of its
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“Inside Information Provisions”),
and any information required to be disclosed under Rule 13.09 of the
Listing Rules or any inside information required to be disclosed under
the Inside Information Provisions should be announced immediately.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year. Each
general meeting, other than an annual general meeting is referred to
as an extraordinary general meeting.

According to article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary
general meeting. Extraordinary general meetings shall also be
convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.
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Shareholders who wish to move a resolution at general meetings may
follow the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

The Board recognised that effective communication to shareholders

and potential investors is very important to gain their confidence and
attract new investors.

The Group has taken following measures to enhance the

communication with shareholders and investors of the Group:

M

2

(3

Annual and interim reports are prepared and issued to all
shareholders within the prescribed period stipulated by the
Stock Exchange. All results announcements and reports are
posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website www.link-asia.com.hk.

The Group releases business update through voluntary
announcement posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website to keep all shareholders updated about the
business development of the Group.

The Group has provided enquiry mailbox (engquiry@1143.com.hk)
and phone number on the Company’s website. Shareholders,
investors and interested parties are welcome to make their
enquiries through email and phone and the management will
provide their timely response.

During 2019, the Company has not made any changes to its
Memorandum and Articles of Association.
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Mr. Lin Dailian (“Mr. Lin”), aged 39, was graduated from Anhui
University of Finance and Economics and later studied at Fudan
University. He is a well-known venture capitalist in China. Mr. Lin has
over 17 years of experience in entrepreneurship and investment,
successfully led or participated in the equity investment and listing of
nearly 30 projects. Mr. Lin has been adhering to the concept of value
investment, real estate finance, corporate strategic planning and
business model shaping. He has extensive practical experience and
professional knowledge in business management, mergers and
acquisitions, and restructuring of companies. With rich entrepreneurial
experience and value investment philosophy, Mr. Lin has been
recognized in the financial industry. He has won the Top 100 Best
Venture Capitalists of Hurun 2016 and the Top 30 OQutstanding
Innovative People of China’s Equity Investment in China. Mr. Lin joined
the Group in July 2019.

Mr. Duan Chuanhong (“Mr. Duan”), aged 32, had worked in different
industries for over 10 years. Mr. Duan has ample experience in
corporate planning, management and execution.

Mr. Xia Xiaobing (“Mr. Xia”), aged 41, holds a master’s degree in
business administration from Shanghai Jiaotong University. He has
over 18 years of experience in human resource management. He
currently serves as the director of human resources and administration
of the Group.

Mr. Bao Jingiao (“Mr. Bao”), aged 54, was graduated from Anhui
University with research study in Civil Law in 1988 and obtained a
Master Degree in Law from Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences. He
is a lawyer qualified to practise in the PRC. Mr. Bao is the founder and
partner of Anhui Chengyi Law Firm since 2000. Mr. Bao was an
independent director of Anhui Kouzi Distillery Co., Ltd. which is listed
on the A-share market on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
603589) until April 2017. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of Landing International Development Limited which is listed
on the Main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 582).
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Mr. Li Huiwu (“Mr. Li”), aged 42, obtained a bachelor degree in
accounting from Wuhan Polytechnic University, the People’s Republic of
China in June 2002. He is currently an affiliated member of The
Association of International Accountants and a certified tax planner and a
certified intermediate accountant in the PRC. He has approximately 16
years of experience in financial accounting, internal audit and risk
management. Mr. Li held various senior positions in the internal audit
department in certain companies listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
where he was mainly responsible for internal control and risk
management matters. Mr. Li joined the Group in October 2019.

Mr. Wang Guozhen (“Mr. Wang”), aged 61, holds an executive
master’s degree in business administration with Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Business. He joined the Ministry of Finance of the
People’s Republic of China in 1982 and has served as heads of various
departments. He was also officer of General Office and Bureaucratic
Service Center of National Council for Social Security Fund, the
standing member of council of Beijing Charity Association and the
member of 11th and 12th Beijing Municipal Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. Mr. Wang joined the Group
in November 2019.

Mr. Wang acted as the executive director and vice chairman of Hsin
Chong Group Holdings Limited (3T & £ B 2 i& & R 2 &) (“Hsin
Chong”) from September 2018 to November 2019. Hsin Chong is a
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and the
securities of which were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited until 31 December 2019. Hsin Chong
was principally engaged in engineering and property businesses. Hsin
Chong was wound up by an order of the Supreme Court of Bermuda
dated 20 January 2020, following a winding-up petition being filed by
a creditor and shareholder of Hsin Chong in January 2019. Mr. Wang
confirmed that (i) the winding up had not resulted in any liability or
obligation imposed against him, (ii) there was no wrongful act on his
part leading to the winding up process of Hsin Chong, and (iii) he was
not aware of any actual or potential claim that had been or would be
made against him as a result of the winding up.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

The Board is pleased to present Environmental Social and Governance
(ESG) Report to demonstrate the efforts toward sustainable
development. The report has been prepared in accordance with the
standards set forth by the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
in its Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide, which
covers the subject areas of environmental protection, workplace
quality, operating practices and community investment. During the
Year, the Group is achieving and benchmarking with well-recognized
international guidelines and protocols of Sustainable development.
The major areas to be reporting are (1) Environmental Protection and
(1) Social Commitment.

The principal activities of the Group are primarily manufacturing
consumer electronic products through offering one-stop solutions to a
number of international brand owners. The Group’s headqguarter office
is located in Hong Kong and its operation location in PRC with its
diversified customer base covering Japan, Asia-Pacific region, America
and Europe.

Unless otherwise specified, this report covered the Group progress
and performance on ESG issues from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2019, focusing on the EMS business conducted by the subsidiaries with
the manufacturing plant located in Guangzhou (“Guangzhou Factory”).
The Group has adopted consistent methodologies to the information
presented unless otherwise stated. The board of directors has
acknowledged its responsibility to oversee the Company’s sustainable
development and review the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness
of this report.

The management and staff from various departments holding key
positions in the Group jointly prepare this ESG Report and assist the
Group in reviewing its operating conditions. The opinion collection of
the management and other staff enables the Group to identify major
issues at the environmental and social levels and make relevant
disclosure and response in this ESG Report.

The Group strives to create positive values to shareholders and
believes that the interests of all stakeholders must be taken in account
in order to strengthen relationship with our shareholders, employees,
suppliers, customers, government authorities and the society as a
whole.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

Our approach to stakeholder engagement is designed to ensure that  FRFILE D EF RN F T EERR AT D T B
our stakeholders’ perspectives and expectations are fully understood &R BEE R HEIE - #E L HBHIFTIRE M AREK
to help define our current and future sustainability strategies. A5 1 B R SRR -

The Group proactively engaged with the key stakeholder groups ina ANEBUZETATHEHETIESHHEEE -
variety of ways to ensure effective communication of our objective  LATERBEIA TR T FEAREER MM B E KL
and progress in relation to the following areas of concern. HE o

Major Stakeholder Major Communication Channels

TEEERE

Major Concerns
TEIESEE

EBFHHE

Shareholders and Investors

BREEEH

Employees

1’8

Suppliers
HrERy

Customers

5P

Public Community
NEEE

Government and Supervisory
Institutions

B REE#E

Press release, Corporate
Announcements and Circulars
EN - BEQERAK
Annual and Interim Reports
FERFPEHRE

Annual General Meetings

REBFEAS

Trainings and Team Building
Activities

B RIEEEBESES
Business Meetings and Briefings
¥Begzkf@neg
Performance Appraisals

AT

Phone Calls Conferences, Emails
S
B pn ° Eln > EE.EB

Customer Complaint Hotlines
B PR FEAR

Meetings and Correspondences
PSSR

Charitable and Volunteering
Activities

BEREREE
Community Interactions
tRE &

ESG Reporting

RIR g RELWmS

Major Meeting and Policy
Consultation
EESRRPGRHENA
Information Disclosures
BRI R

Institutional Visits

WA

Profitability

BAge N

Financial Stability
SIRE

Information Disclosure &
Transparency

RRBE R ERE

Compensation & Benefits
EREN

Career Development and Training
Opportunities
BEERREIKE

Health & Safety Work Environment
R EETERE

Cooperation on Fair Terms
BAFAEREE

Quality Products and services
BEEmMRE
Privacy Protection

FLERRIE

Corporate Social Responsibilities
TrELESEE

Community Investment and
Charitable Activities
HEERERZESEY

Compliance Operation
BREE
Corporate Governance
ﬂ:% e

Environmental Protection
IRIBIRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

During the year, through a wide range of communication channels, we
found that ESG compliance and environmental emissions are the main
focuses of our stakeholders.

To demonstrate the Group’s commitments to sustainable
development and compliance with applicable Regional Laws and
Regulations relating to environmental protection, we endeavor
to maintain green manufacturing processes and office
operational practices in order to minimize the adverse
environmental impacts of our business activities. Achieving the
balance among another two pillars of society and economy of
the sustainable development, the Group is dedicated to
contribute to the environmental, the third pillar of the
sustainability and following these principles to minimize our
adverse impacts on the environment:

. Complying with all the applicable Regional Laws and
Regulations from all levels and functions of the
organization

. Assuring needs, expectations and/or applicable legal
requirements (if any) of the relevant interested parties; the
person or organization that can affect, be affected by, like
shareholders and/or stakeholders including customers,
suppliers, communities, regulators, non-governmental
organizations, investors and employees relating to
environmental protection being communicated and
understood
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

. Employing ISO-14001 Environmental Management System
to adopt systematic approach to effectively protect the
environment and respond to changing environmental
conditions in balance with socio-economic needs

. Ensuring sufficient investments and resources for the
environmental-friendly facilities, equipments and
instruments that are operating safely, effectively and more
efficient

. Reinforcing promotion of conservation commitments,
educational training, and enhancing staff’s environmental
protection awareness

. Incorporating environmental targets and objectives into
our business strategic visions and competitive implication
by aligning them with business priorities and decision
making

The Group acts as a responsible corporate citizen by complying
with all the applicable Regional Laws and Regulations for our
business activities in PRC, maintaining the Guangzhou Factory
are ISO-14001 Environmental & OHSAS-18001 Occupational
Health & Safety management system certified since 2009 & 2010
respectively. It is the Group’s ambition to sustain compliance
obligation, safe production, resources conservation, pollution
mitigation, wastes reduction, accident-free as well as packaging
materials recycling. The Group is continuously incorporating
environmental targets into business decision making, we believe
that protecting the environment is always the crucial concerns
for our manufacturing nature business. During the Year, the
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with
relevant standards, rules and regulations in relation to
environmental protection in respect of our business activities.

The Group attaches great importance to mitigate the possible
adverse impact of its EMS business on the environmental, and
considers environmental protection mindset an important
obligation during its production and operating activities. The
Group’s major environmental aspects mainly related to energy
consumptions and wastes generation, nevertheless, the impact
to natural resources is minimal due to our business nature.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE
KPI A1.1 The type of emissions and respective emissions data

Emission from gaseous fuel consumption

During our operation, the factory’s canteen used Liquefied
petroleum gas (LPG) as the cooking fuel. The burning of LPG
generated nitrogen oxides (NOx) and sulphur oxides (SOx) to
the environment nearby. The approximate amount of NOx and
SOx produced from our operation in Guangzhou were shown in
the table below:

BREXESAGRYERER BB
BB

SRS B FEE L R PEIL

REZHE  ITHROREEARIAH
RAER AR - BRIEBRE A MR E M
FEREHFRAALM RBALY - &
MEMNEBEENAACDRRELY
BB B I N RATR

Increase/

(decrease) in

percentage

A DN
Region (China) WE(FE) OB
Total NOx emissions (kg) RAmesm=E(Fx) 2,339,607.84  5,398,924.32 (56.67%)
Total SOx emissions (kg) e BEHENE (T7R) 11,639.84 26,860.32 (56.67%)

The total LPG consumption amounted to 12,652 liters in fiscal
year 2019, it represented a decrease of approximately 57%
comparing to 2018. It was mainly attributed to the largest staff
canteen had ceased its operation during 2019 and the decrease
of usage of the smaller staff canteen, which resulted in the drop
of the burning of liquefied petroleum gas for the canteen of the
factory.

Emissions from Vehicles

During our operation, the usage of light goods vehicles
generated the emission of nitrogen oxides (NOx), particular
matters (PM) and sulphur oxides (SOx) to the environment
nearby. The approximate amount of NOx, PM and SOx produced
from our operation in Guangzhou were shown in the table below:

e (FPE)

Region (China)

Total NOx emissions () BEWEsmE (k)
Total PM emissions (9) IR E R E (k)
Total SOx emissions (g) metmEgEmE (58)
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33,334.89
3,155.21 3,652.26 (13.61%)
69.26 73.38 (5.62%)
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38,599.73 (13.64%)
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Both NOx, PM emissions resulted by 14% drop and the
corresponding SOx emissions resulted by 6% drop in fiscal year
2019 comparing to 2018, it attributed to the better planning and
much efficient use of vehicles.

Emissions from production

Volatile organic compounds (VOCs), is the major organic waste
which is air pollutant being produced during the paint spraying
process for our products. Therefore, the governance of industrial
waste gases containing VOCs is the main focus and control area
for our product fabrication processes. Besides VOCs discharges,
benzene, toluene, xylene, total non-methane hydrocarbons, lead
and tin are also the air pollutant being produced during our
production process. During the review period, a licensed party
was outsourced for the Group to carry out an inspection
assessment regarding to the average density and speed of waste
gases emissions from our factory. The assessment confirmed by
the licensed party concluding that our waste gases emission has
met the standard discharge limit of the relevant environmental
regulations in the PRC and the density and speed were shown in
the following tables:

Average density
2019

Average density (mg/m?)
FPHRE(ZR,/ LHK)
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14% A R B AL YR E T ¥ 6% -
I EERE T AERE RER R
REFERE -

FEHHL

BRUEBRLLAMRIENERER
- aZEﬁﬁm%EiE&uumﬂﬁfﬁiﬂ
B Eit REBRSEREERRILAD
E@I%J?Eﬁz%ﬁﬁéuu%ﬁi@ﬁﬁ’ﬂig
EERESEE REZREERLEY
RN BPINEEBETEELER
ERYME - BE . ZBX . EFRRRE
LEWMBEE  #hih  ROEHE &
SEEA—RFETINIES - HEAT
BERERENFHEERRFETE
B - T CHUERBRE - ER
HAR RPN &P BEARREAR
REDENIREE - EMREEIIN TR

FHEE
—B-hF

Waste gases of emissions
BER BERK

Waste gas emission from old

Lead
s

Not-Detected

Tin
%

Not-Detected

factory production unit (ND) (ND)
REEBIMEEEMDN AR R
FERBEIL
Waste gas emission from new Not-Detected Not-Detected
factory production unit (ND) (ND)
R B #7 LR A EE B O BE R HE IR At A
Standard Discharge limit <0.7 <0.85
TEAEE RN R B
Results Pass Pass

Sampling
collection date
B4k B

12th March 2019

Assessment Report No.
AR ERS

Environment assessment

—E-h&=A1+=H (2019) No.0357
IRIBFE (2019)N0.0357

12th March 2019 Environment assessment

—ZE-hAE=A+=H (2019) N0.0357

RIZATAH (2019)N0.0357
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Average density (mg/m?)
FHZE(BR,/IAK)
Volatile
organic Total
compounds non-methane  Sampling
(VOC) hydrocarbons  collection Assessment

Waste gases of emissions  Benzene  Toluene Xylene Byt FRKKE date Report No.
BRER X RX —HRE  BHLEY (tEYEE BERH TG R
Waste gas emission Not- 0.61 0.251 Not- 122 10th April 2019 JA20190453

exhaust port from Detected Detected —E-NF

injection factory (ND) (ND) MA+H

production R R
REIFIHEER

BERHEMA
Waste gas emission exhaust Not- 0.260 0.227 4.06 Not-  10th April 2019 JA20190453

port from pad printing Detected Detected Z—FE—AF

production (ND) (ND) mA+H
REBDEER Rt R

BEREEAL A
Standard discharge limit <12 <40 <70 <60 <1200 - -
TR
Results Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass - =
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2018 —E-_NE

Average density (mg/m?®)
PHRE(BR,/ LHK)

Volatile
organic
compounds
(VoC)
Xylene EXMHHK
—BX (&=t

Assessment
Report No.
LG R

Sampling
collection date

bR

Waste gases of emissions Benzene Toluene

BESR x GES

Organic waste gas emission from 0.258 0.182 0.213 242 5th June 2018 Environment
old factory production unit —E-N\EF assessment
REEEIREESMD ~NAEA (2018) No.06050
B RE R e IRIBATE (2018)
No.06050
Waste gas emission exhaust port N/A N/A N/A 161 8th May 2018 EDD49K000193
from spray paint production TN A NEA NEA —T-N\F
before waste gas treatment HANAR
BEREIEAIEREER
BERBER A
Waste gas emission exhaust port N/A N/A N/A 6.03  8th May 2018 EDD49K000193
from spray paint production NEA NEA NEA —E-N\E
after waste gas treatment AANH
BEREEEEREEN
BERHERO
Waste gas emission exhaust port N/A N/A N/A 916  8th May 2018 EDD49K000193
from assembly wave soldering i A NEA NEA —E—N\F
before waste gas treatment A ANH
[EREIE RS IR E R
BERHERO
Waste gas emission exhaust port N/A N/A N/A 382 8thMay 2018 EDD49K000193
from assembly wave soldering N A NE A NEA —T-N\F
after waste gas treatment AANH
ERGEEEERIEED
BERBEm A
Standard Discharge limit <12 <40 <70 <60 - -
REH MRS
Results Pass Pass Pass Pass - -

Annual Report &3 2019 45



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIR - g MERWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

Average speed FEmER
2019 —E—-hF
Average speed (kg/h)
FHRE (DR NE) sampling
Waste gases of emission Lead i collection date Assessment Report No.
BER B i BNk B 58 R E RS
Waste gas emission from old 2.3x10-5 2.3x10-5  12th March 2019 Environment assessment
factory production unit —E-NF=A+=H (2019) No.0357
REEBIMEEEMDN RIFEETE (2019)N0.0357
FERHEIL
Waste gas emission from new 2.3x10-5 1.8x10-5  12th March 2019 Environment assessment
factory production unit —Z-NF=A+=H (2019) No.0357
R B T TR A BB A S R RIBATE (2019)N0.0357
Standard Discharge limit <0.005 <043 - -
REH RS
Results Pass Pass - i
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Average speed (kg/h)
PHRR (D /)
Volatile
organic Total
compounds  non-methane
(VOC) hydrocarbons  Sampling Assessment
Waste gases of emission Benzene Toluene B EBREBE  collection date Report No.
BRHER X Ax RN tENHEE HEAH THERERSR
Waste gas emission exhaust 1.55x10-5 1.27x10-2 5.20x10-3 Not- 0025 10th April 2019 JA20190453
port from injection factory Applicable —E-NE
production (N/A) mA+HE
REFSTIHEER N
BEREEHRD
Waste gas emission exhaust 8.06x10-6  280x10-3  2.44x10-3 0.044 Not-  10th April 2019 JA20190453
port from pad printing Applicable  —E—h&
production (N/A) mA+H
REBIAEENBERERD NEM
Standard discharge limit <0.42 <25 <0.84 <36 <140 - -
BE IR
Results Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass - -
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2018
Average speed (kg/h)
FHER (AT NE)
Waste gases of emission Benzene Toluene
BERBE K ES
Organic waste gas emission from 3.4x10-3 2.4x10-3  2.81x10-3
old factory production unit
REEFIMEEEMMHBE
B RHERL
Waste gas emission exhaust port N/A N/A N/A
from spray paint production NEH NEHA NEHA
before waste gas treatment
BEREIEAEREENER
o
Waste gas emission exhaust port N/A N/A N/A
from spray paint production N NEHA NEFA
after waste gas treatment
BEREEEEREENER
B e
Waste gas emission exhaust port N/A N/A N/A

from assembly wave soldering NEH NEH NEHA
before waste gas treatment

BERIC IR BRI
RO
Waste gas emission exhaust port N/A N/A N/A
from assembly wave soldering i@ A i@ i@ A
after waste gas treatment
EREERAERIEED
BERPERO
Standard Discharge limit <0.42 <25 <0.84
REG R
Results Pass Pass Pass

During the review period, a licensed party was outsourced for
the Group to carry out an assessment in April 2019 regarding to
the amount of discharges of VOCs, benzene, toluene, xylene and
total non-methane hydrocarbons. In addition, the Group also
outsourced the licensed party to carry out another assessment in
March 2019 regarding to the amount of lead and tin emissions.
Sampling collection points reduced in 2019 compare to 2018 due
to the reduction of production in old factory during 2019.

Link-Asia International Co. Ltd 3R B B 2 AR A 7

—E-N\F

Volatile
organic

compounds
(VOC) Sampling Assessment
{E%M%  collection date  Report No.
BREY BURHEHS BEEE Y b

319x10-2  5th June 2018 Environment

—N\F assessment
~NAEH (2018) No.06050
IR (2018)
No.06050
0.046  8th May 2018 EDD49K000193
—T-N\F
A ANH

0.057  8th May 2018 EDD49K000193
—N\F
AANR

018  8th May 2018 EDD49K000193
—2-N\f
HAN\A

0068 8thMay2018  EDDA9KOO0I3
—FN\F
AANR

<36 - =

Pass - -
RG]

B’\@Eﬁﬁﬁsﬁ : mﬁlﬁ—%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁl\%
X% R-T-NEHAREZREAK
L& fﬁ CEER S CHRRRIER b
SEEMBENREETME - It
SN RN — BRI IMNAEF
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emission BRENIEEALZEEREK

The greenhouse gas emission produced by the Group is mainly AEEAEREHNREIZREEET
due to Indirect emissions (Scope 2) from purchased electricity B E T RGN (EE2) o o -
for the production factory. In addition, we also had Direct BMThEEEER(EED)  xEBRET
emission (Scope 1) principally resulted from the consumptions of MR EE AR AR - TR L
liquefied petroleum gas for running the canteens of the factory, MARFEAIRER —AitE =6
burning of diesel fuel by the power generators and usages of ENEEFSE2MEZERESBRNTE
factory vehicles. There were Carbon-dioxide equivalent Scope 1 Frr31) -

Direct and Scope 2 Indirect emissions figures tabulated as below:

Increase/
(decrease) in
percentage
B2 N
Emission type 230 & Fid) == S CRd)
Direct emission (Scope 1) EEHER(BE) — 67.20 129.46 (48.09%)
— Total carbon dioxide —efbikBE = (M)
generated equivalent
(tonnes)
Indirect emission (Scope 2)  FEEHR (HBE2) — 7,142.97 7,536.02 (5.22%)
— Total carbon dioxide —&fthixBE = ()
generated equivalent
(tonnes)
Total emission (tonnes) @PEmE () 7,210.17 7,665.48 (5.94%)
Increase/
(decrease) in
percentage
BN
Intensity analysis = = /O A)
Total production of finished KamBES (Bi) 34,404,483 39,504,447 (12.91%)
goods (unit)
Intensity for total greenhouse &A% R B (15 = R AL 48 0.000209598  0.000194063 (8.00%)

gas emission (tonne) per RENEE ()
unit of finished good
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The carbon dioxide generated equivalent from direct emission
(Scope 1) amounted to 67.20 tonnes in fiscal year 2019, it
represented a decrease of 48% comparing to 2018. It was mainly
attributed to the largest staff canteen had ceased operation
during 2019 and the decrease of usage of the smaller staff
canteen. Moreover, no generator was additionally employed
according to electricity suspension also helped the drop of the
carbon dioxide generated equivalent from direct emission
(Scope ).

Regarding to the carbon dioxide generated equivalent from
indirect emission (Scope 2), it amounted to approximately
7,142.97 tonnes in fiscal year 2019, it represented a slight
decrease of 5% comparing to 2018. It was mainly attributed to
the decrease of production units to give the reduction of carbon
dioxide generated equivalent from indirect emission (Scope 2).

As the Paris Agreement sends a clear signal that the shift to a
low-carbon economy is inevitable and everyone must play their
part as a corporate citizen. In order to facilitate such transition,
the Group has continued participation to the CDP (Carbon
Disclosure Project) Supply Chain program which helps CDP to
highlight and spur meaningful action on tackling climate change
by capturing vital data on climate change in order to improve
collaboration and encourage transparency. Our greenhouse gas
emission is reported on the platform in July on an annual basis.

Link-Asia International Co. Ltd IR ZEIERBE 2 ER AT

RZZE-NFVERFE EEFR(EE
DMEEN—QLIREERGCT 200 &
TE-N\FTNEA48% - W EBEFERER
BRAMEIREENR-ZZE—NFEFILE
B ARES)WMETITRERLEAE -
It AN - R 4 R FE B ) R BT T BB M AR B
B - LA B A BB (EEN) T
EENN_SmES -

ERMEEER(BE2) FEEHN At
REE AIRZZE-NFHBFELE
714297 » B - T — N\ FEBUH A 5% ©
I EZREEREEBAR DG B E
P (EE2) TEAN ZE/ikE 2R

B 221 5 3 AR REE R - BR/EmEH
DAREFE  BEAAFTMELELR
M—0F- BfegEzBE  AKEER
INFRBE P TR IR B ST & - B R
B EREEARERRE(CHNER
2R BB A ETRERIRZ(CN
BRITE UREGIFLRSEAE -
BHEFLtAERTaREAEREY
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

KPI A1.3 Hazardous waste emission

The Group is dedicated to managing waste in a responsible way
and strives to optimize the use of resources. The Guangzhou
Factory has established a comprehensive hazardous waste
management system and carries out disposal of hazardous
waste in accordance with relevant laws and regulations. Our
hazardous waste mainly included waste activated carbon with
organic matters, banana oil polluted waste fabrics, waste
lubricant and engine oil, waste emulsion oil, waste paint and
paint residual. There is a storage area in the factory for storing
hazardous solid waste. Our factory also works with institutions
which are qualified to dispose of hazardous waste. During the
review period, we recorded the following hazardous waste
emission figures and they were all collected by qualified

BAEENIERAIEERENHN

AEEBNONANBRETH T AETEER
W XERNECERNA - BEMNBEE
BRIUYZENAEERMERRS  WR
BHRBAEIEAREEBERRY - R
MNEEEENIZEEAREY ST
® BRBSRBEREY  BERREMH
K#em - BEEILCH - BEAR KRR R
Y ZMEREAREREEEBEZ
MOERRE - BECEAEREES
EARIEEEEEY REBERE &
PIREERA T A EEEMBEREIEM % F
BEBRERVHRAGEREBULE -

institutions.

Increase/
(decrease) in
percentage
ERasa:pil
Waste type EEEYyER J/CRA)
Total hazardous waste EEEEYES 1.49 2.60 (42.69%)

(tonnes) (mg)
Increase/
(decrease) in
percentage
ERasa:-yil
Intensity analysis BE DT SO
Total production of finished X Sh4EEE (BEAL) 34,404,483 39,504,447 (12.91%)

goods (unit)

Intensity for hazardous waste &K BB EEZY 0.0000000433 0.0000000658 (34.19%)

BEEMEE (W)

emission (tonne) per unit
of finished good

The total hazardous waste emission amounted to 1.49 tonnes in
fiscal year 2019, it represented a decrease of approximately 43%
comparing to 2018. It was mainly attributed to the decrease of
production units which resulted in the drop of the waste of
organic solvents for cleaning.

ﬁA—“—jLEﬁszJ? BEEEEYE
EHRE R4 BT —N\FRIH
43% o &tﬁi%ﬁmlb"\iﬁﬁuﬁw%
BUR AR EBEAEMBZ RS -
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KPI A1.4 Non-hazardous waste emission BRENEEMABEEEEYIR

Our Non-hazardous waste from the Guangzhou Factory BINBEIEEFNBREEZMEERE
operation mainly attributed to scrap, wasted packaging BERL - BEEBEME - T/KERBREMN
materials, waste residual from sewer and filter tank as well as BEBEANREMETFENR - BEMBEE
other domestic waste. Packaging materials mainly include BIESERITENRIRSE - ZHMESE
cardboard boxes for product wrap up. We have been BEHFE—EERRRRA  WEEF
considering the principle of environmental friendly in our AR R AT B EE M R R PR B AP E S P
packaging design, and select more eco-friendly packaging AMBHES - REIFEHRE - B
materials and reducing the weight of materials used for our TUATEEREEENEIE -

products. During the review period, we recorded the following
non-hazardous waste emission figures.

Scrap and wasted packaging
materials (kg)

Waste residual from sewer
and filter tank (kg)

Intensity analysis

Total production of finished
goods (unit)

Intensity for Scrap and
wasted packaging
materials emission (kg)
per unit of finished good

Intensity for Waste residual
from sewer and filter tank
(kg) per unit of finished
good

Increase/
(decrease) in

percentage
Epzisa: il
/ CRA)

RER MR BT (RT) 62,269.00 66,868.97 (6.88%)

TRKEBRBBREEE (RT) 222,000.00 70,000 217.14%

Increase/
(decrease) in
percentage
Epzlsa: il
/OR)

PR E S (B41) 34,404,483 39,504,447 (12.91%)

R mERER R EE 0.0018 0.0017 5.88%
BEMMHEREE (RF)

B T KE RBEM 0.0065 0.0018 261.11%
REE (AT
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The total non-hazardous waste emission including scrap and
wasted packaging materials as well as waste residual from sewer
and filter tank resulted a decrease of approximately 7% and
increment of approximately 217% respectively in fiscal year 2019.
The reduction figures was attributed to the decrease of
production units. The big increment figure of sewer wastes was
due to the cleaning intensities of the chemical discharge pool
after production, including special cleaning of the pool residues.
In addition, the kitchen waste of staff canteen was also properly
treated and the treatment through the filter slag pool was also
reduced.

In addition, the Group continues to practice paper saving
initiatives, such as default double-sided printing, reminder for
staff to have environmentally friendly photocopying habit, and
separated collection of waste paper for effective recycling.
Waste paper recycling bins are placed in office to regularly
recycle used paper, and employees are encouraged to read and
send files electronically to reduce printing.

The Group adheres to the concept of energy conservation and
emission reduction for green production. The major resources
used by the Group are principally attributed to electricity, water
and packaging materials consumed at the factory in Guangzhou.
We aim to improve our energy utilization efficiency to achieve
low-carbon practices and emission reduction throughout our
production and operation, and strive to save the resources. The
Group’s electricity, water and packaging materials consumption
were shown in the following tables:

BERRVETRERRENNEERER
KM BIARTKERBRBMES - 55l
RZB-NFHRFE THL 7% R LT
M27% - BF TR AR EEELR
Do TKEREEMEEKNEE NI E
REERCERBEBUBETTRE R
(BREFHBRKEESE) S5 BT
RENFHOEZZRE  WRDRE
MEERIRIR T o

PEoh s AEEFEBTHOALIER -
B 40 78 3% %ﬁﬂEﬂ BB TRFERR
IR EN B ko RIS AT A = Uk FI A
RIREHE - MAEHEREHRENSE - LUE
BRI A BEAREK  WEBETHER
BIXREFXE - WAITED

AEEEREEMENER - UEREZ
BEE - AEBEANTIEERIER
AREMNBEEENES  KEBEM
e BABORELEEREEBETIR
=RERMAEX  BREFRESBES
UBNEHHNER - ARBHNESD ~ KK
BEMELHFRI NRAR
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KPI A2.1 Indirect electricity consumption

Region

Guangzhou's factory electricity EMBEERE (T L)
consumption (Kwh)

Intensity analysis

Total production of finished B GR4EE S (1)
goods (unit)

Intensity for indirect FEMKREZERS
electricity consumption (FEAE)
(Kwh) per unit of finished
good

The total indirect electricity consumption amounted to
10,642,279 kwh in fiscal year 2019, it represented a decrease of
4.69% comparing to 2018 and it was attributed to the decrease
of production units following the decrease of total indirect
electricity consumption.

54 Link-Asia International Co. Ltd 3R B B 2 AR A 7

10,642,279

34,404,483

BREMEFEA2IEERAE

Increase/
(decrease) in

percentage
B2 N
/G2

11,166,528 (4.69%)

Increase/
(decrease) in
percentage
B LLE N
/ORA)

39,504,447 (12.91%)

0.309 0.283 9.19%

RZZE-NEFUVRFE HERESR=E
%10,642279?1157 BT N\FFHL
469% * EEREEAEEER VB
Eéﬁamawo
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KPI A2.2Water consumption FAREMIEEA2.2 AK

Increase/
(decrease) in

percentage
B2 N
Region - S CRA)

Guangzhou’s factory water BN Aok (E) 95,332 105,670 (9.78%)
consumption (tonnes)

Increase/
(decrease) in
percentage
ERasd:yl
Intensity analysis BEDN = SO
Total production of finished X Sh42EE (BEAL) 34,404,483 39,504,447 (12.91%)
goods (unit)
Intensity for water FEMNKRBBAKEE (W) 0.0028 0.0027 3.70%

consumption (tonne) per
unit of finished good

The total water consumption amounted to 95,332 tonnes in fiscal RZF-NFUHBFE  ARKREE
year 2019, it represented a decrease of 9.78% comparing to 2018, 95332 - M _F— \F®9.78% * Jb
it was attributed to the decrease of production of finished goods. BERAKmESMD o

The Group has implemented guidelines and policies for energy ALBEEMREEEERSRER - &
saving management which include in-house rules and regulations BRAERTEIREBHAETHNHR
for both office and factory employees to follow. The Bl K A& o FTE HE BY BR 2 AR 8 1SO-
implementation of policy is the follow-up plan after the Third- 14001 & OHSAS-18001 & IR RIT
party Certifications upon the 1SO-14001 and OHSAS-18001 =T REROBER S - RRAIEKL
management Standards. An environmental management team is REBTEBE - WIREALR PR
developed and authorized to set up the targets, indices for BiF  EBREIEERLR - BIFHE
emissions level as well as developing management programmes. BHARNARARETEE -

General affairs department is responsible for carrying out the
monitoring work for effective uses of resources.

Annual Report %k 2019 55



For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

We have implemented a range of measures designed to reduce
emissions and cut down its consumption of energy and natural
resources. We also promote a paperless office and encourage
staff to reduce electricity and water usage in their daily work to
create a green office. To reduce remarkably the consumption of
electrical energy, the Guangzhou factory has gradually replaced
the traditional lighting tubes with energy-saving tubes that enjoy
higher efficiency and longer life cycle. The factory has applied
push-button taps instead of screwdriver faucet in order to
reduce water wastage. We have established a maintenance and
conservation policy for production and non-production
equipment which aims at enhancing the optimal use of
machineries and equipments. Hence, achieving the least
electricity consumption and greenhouse gas emissions.

In addition, a number of energy conservation promotional
banners and posters were post up in various places to remind
workers. Through catchy slogan and posters, everyone paid high
attention to environmental protection and resource
conservation.

Currently, the water supply is mainly from the municipal water
supply. The Group has a strong focus on the water conservation,
and therefore tries to prevent water pollution which is mainly
generated from workers’ living activities. The Guangzhou Factory
promotes sewage bio-chemical treatment facility and water
reuse, so as to reduce the amount of water consumption and
ensure water is used sustainably. We build our own sewage
treatment facilities in the factory to undertake sewage treatment
before discharging, the water from reclaimed water tank is used
forirrigation in staff living quarters.

Link-Asia International Co. Ltd IR ZEIERBE 2 ER AT
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KPI A2.5 Packaging materials used for finished products

Our packaging materials for each finished goods include label,
paper packing materials such as cardboard box, plastic bag and
Styrofoam. During the review period, the packaging materials
consumption was shown in the following table:

Type of packaging material =i RER

Label (piece) 18 (1)

Paper packing material B EERRH ()
(piece)

Plastic bag (piece) BRHR ()

Foam (piece) YR EB R (1)

Total (piece) et (1)

Intensity analysis

Total production of finished — FXihi@ES (BAL)
goods (unit)

Intensity for usage of FEMKRBEME
packaging materials FEAZE (1)
(piece) per unit of finished
good

The total usage of packaging materials amounted to
approximately 49,337,369 pieces in fiscal year 2019, it
represented a decrease of 50.11% comparing to 2018. The
decreasing figure was attributed to the decrease of production
of finished goods and effective management of waste resources.
The 2018 finished goods of stored telephones sets could be
delivered after re-inspection in 2019, in which, it was also one
major reason for the decrease of total usage of packaging
materials.

The Group is dedicated to consume the least packaging materials
as possible. It is the Group’s practice to implement production
planning in a timely basis so as to assess the least amount of
packaging materials needed. The Group is also committed to
source recyclable packaging materials from suppliers with eco-
friendly practice and engagement.

10,835,572
31,108,304

6,445,997

947,496 5,064,899 (81.29%)
49,337,369

34,404,483

BRENIEFA25 R m AT

BHRRNERMHBREER #AEX
FEL - A - BRI &%Xiﬁzk%/@ﬁk
B NEEHE - MDD T
RFTR

Increase/
(decrease) in

percentage
B Ean
S CRA)

20,042,643 (45.94%)
56,998,654 (45.42%)

16,787,863 (61.60%)
98,894,059 (50.11%)

Increase/
(decrease) in
percentage
Epzlsa: il
/S CRd)

39,504,447 (12.91%)

1.43 2.50 (42.64%)

RIZ-NFRRFE - 8EMHER
BH /493373691 BT — /\FR
D501% c BMF TR IEERKmES
BMOREREREBERENER - R_-F
—NFHEFEERME_T—NLFL
BEREBEA TN WIHRARME
EMHERRERINEERAZ — -

AEERIREZEREREM B FER
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Quiality talents are the Group’s valuable assets for maintaining
business sustainability. The Group has implemented practices
and adopted “Staff Handbook” with respect to: (i) compensation
and dismissal; (i) recruitment and promotion; (iii) working hours;
(iv) rest periods; (v) equal opportunity; (vi) diversity; (vii) anti-
discrimination; and (viii) welfare and other benefits that all
information and procedures are complied with the Labor law of
the People’s Republic of China, Labor Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China and other relevant laws and
regulations.

The Group strictly complies with International Labour Standards
and the government’s “Provision on the Prohibition of Using
Child Labor” {Z& |E1# FHZ T #R 7€ ). No juveniles under 16 years
old are being recruited.

In order to maintain harmonious labour relationships, the Group
firmly eradicates any forced labour, employment discrimination
and occupational discrimination. The Group protects the rights
of staff in terms of providing rest and leave days according to
relevant governmental laws and regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group was

complying sustainably with laws and regulations relating to
employment and labour practices.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

The Group rigorously comply with the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Work Safety” ({(#EARHEMBEZ 24 7E
&) and other relevant laws and regulations in order to maintain
health and safety working environment. Employment safety
rules is included in the Group “Staff Handbook” for regulating
occupational health and safety and on-the-job training is
provided for the employees in order to minimize the potential
risk of accidents, injuries and exposure in relation to health risks.

The Guangzhou factory had obtained Quality Management
System Certification (ISO9001) and Environmental Management
System Certification (ISO14001) formulated by the International
Organisation for Standardisation (“ISO”) and they were certified,
thus effectively guaranteeing the establishment of a healthy, safe
and stable working environment. Daily operations are inspected
by relevant departments, according to the occupational health
and safety requirements of the respective company. Any non-
compliance will also be identified and rectified on a timely basis.
Furthermore, the Guangzhou factory has designed several safety
requirements so as to avoid fire and industrial accidents, such as:

. Fire-fighting facilities like fire extinguishers are well
equipped.

. Designated staff conducts inspection from time to time so
as to ensure the exit passageway clear and unblocked.

. Fire drills are organized twice per year.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group did not

receive any non-compliance with the health and safety laws and
regulations.
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The Group places strong emphasis on the career development of
individual employees. Employees are encouraged to keep
abreast of the changing world and pursue continuing educations,
so as to cope with the rapidly changing society and meet the
evolving corporate development needs. The Group encourages
its employees to participate in individual continuing education
programs which are related to their job duties, with a view to
strengthening the professional career training of its staff teams,
promoting professional expertise of management teams and
stimulating the potential abilities of employees. In addition, in
order to enable new staff to fit into the Company and
comprehend the company policy and corporate culture as soon
as possible, the Group provides basic orientation training for all
the new staff and provides its management personnel and
employees with on-the-job education, training and other
opportunities to improve their skills and knowledge. The Group
continues to intensify its efforts to promote staff training
programmes. This helps provide the necessary protection for
talent reserves for corporate development.

The principal raw materials and components used in Guangzhou
factory production include ICs, PCBs, plastic, motor and battery.
At present, the majorities of manufacturing materials are
purchased domestically. The factory typically procures raw
materials and components upon receipt of purchase orders from
its customers. In order to ensure that the raw materials and
components procured are of the requisite standards, The
Purchasing Department is responsible of procurement of raw
materials, and manages sourcing for our supply chain. An
approved vendor list is maintained for each of its principal raw
materials and components and the vendor list is reviewed
periodically.
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To enhance supply chain management, the Group has
formulated management systems and regulates the supplier
selection process to systematically evaluate and qualify new
suppliers. This enables top notch suppliers to enter its supply
system and become its qualified suppliers, thereby facilitating its
stable procurement development. According to the Group’s
“Standard Operating Procedure” and quality management
system relating to the supplier management process, the Group
carefully manage and select qualified suppliers and carry out
regular evaluations to safeguard the quality of its materials and
to ensure its product delivery schedules, establishing a
foundation for providing quality products to our customers.
Customers are becoming more concerned about environmental
issues, and stress us the importance of using environmental-
friendly materials. We will continue to communicate these
demands to our suppliers, strengthen our cooperation with
suppliers regarding their ability to deliver environmental-friendly
materials, coordinate with them in sampling trials, and work with
them to produce societal benefits.

The Group is committed to supplying quality products and
providing quality services that consistently meet or even exceed
our customers’ expectations. The Group has placed a strong
emphasis on quality assurance and has adopted stringent quality
assurance procedures at different stages of its business
operation including the pre-production process, the
procurement of raw materials and components and the
monitoring of production processes and the inspections of
finished products to ensure the qualities of its products.

The Group’s production facilities had been successfully transited
to the new version of ISO-9001:2015 and that of IATF-16949:2016
Certified for Automotive products since 2017. In addition,
Guangzhou Factory was 1SO-13485:2016 Certified for Medical
Devices.
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The Guangzhou Factory has a team who is responsible for
quality control and quality assurance. It also has an independent
quality assurance department that reports directly to the top
management on product quality matters. Quality assurance
functions are performed throughout the production processes
from the raw materials and components procurement stages to
product delivery stages to ensure that the products can meet
the required national standards and certain industry standards
applicable to such products. Industry standards for products
adopted by the factory including:

(i) IPC-A-610F Acceptability of Electronics Assemblies for
PCBA workmanship requirements;

(i) RoHS (Restriction of Hazardous Substances Directives
2002/95/EC); and

(ii) REACH (Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation and
Restriction of Chemical substances).

Our products are also in compliance with various international
safety standards including:

(i)  FCC standards — product standards which are applicable
to telephone and IT;

(i) UL standards — standards for product safety;

(iii) CSA standards — standards for product safety and
performance;

(iv) China Compulsory Certification — a mandatory certification
system concerning product safety in China; and

(v) CE — European Union consumer safety, health or
environmental requirements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

Intellectual property

Our legal department is in charge of protecting our intellectual
property. In addition to highlighting and protecting intellectual
property and ensuring we respect the intellectual property of
others, we protect the fair competition environment, and comply
with industry standards and criteria. During the year, the Group
had not experienced any infringement of its intellectual property
rights by third parties. Also, the Group was not involved in any
material litigation or legal proceedings for violation of intellectual
property rights and there was no material violation of the same.

Customer relationship management

Customer satisfaction is the foundation of an enterprise’s
competitiveness, and the Group continuously tries to improve on
this aspect. The Group has a customer-oriented focus and strives
to provide quality products and services by continuously hearing
what its customers are looking for. A policy “Communication and
Service with Customers Manual” (E2EERAYERE MARFSIEHIRZF))
has set to standardize the procedure for customers’
communication in order to promote operation consistency and
increased responsiveness to customers' changing needs. The
Group collects customers’ feedbacks relating to its manufactured
products which are used as important references in its constant
efforts to improve product quality and promote customer
satisfaction. The Group is always trying to improve, and address
complaints or feedback quickly to resolve any issues. A Customer
Services Department has set up to maintain ongoing
communication with customers and ensure the Group can
provide excellent service. The Group put great emphasis on
protecting customer privacy, and implement stringent internal
management for marketing activities to safeguard customer
information security.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group did not
receive any non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
related to product responsibility.
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As corruption is detrimental to fair competition and corporate
integrity, anti-corruption has become one of the main corporate
business ethics principles for many of the world’s premier
enterprises. We advocate honest operation and fair competition,
and require that our staff comply with the national laws and
regulations, as well as the Group’s regulations and systems. To
promote compliance in the workplace, we also focus on anti-
corruption and anti-bribery principles for staff.

As part of the Group efforts to make anti-corruption an
important corporate management activity, it sets up whistle
blowing channels to help prevent irregularities. All staff must
comply with the Group’s business code of conduct, which aims
to prevent corruption from a system perspective. The Group also
continues to improve its internal control and monitoring system.
If problems are identified, the Group takes immediate action, and
has a zero tolerance approach to corruption in order to prevent
irregularities.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group did not
receive any non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
related to anti-corruption.

In terms of community involvement, the Group continues to run
a corporate social responsibility program, in which it encourages
employees to participate in community services and contribute
to care needs of the community. As part of its efforts to promote
education, one of the subsidiaries of the Group established the
“migrant workers’ child education subsidize program” to support
the education of the worker’s children. During the year ended 31
December 2019, with 186 migrant workers are benefited and a
total amount of RMB92,750 (2018: RMB90,000) is subsidized.
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The Board is pleased to present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 25 September 2019 and approved by
the Registrars of Companies of Hong Kong, the name of the Company
was changed from China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited to Link-
Asia International Co. Ltd. The Company changed its Chinese name
from ZEERRFEXEEER AT to IREEBREZEFR AT which is

part of its legal name.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

Details of (i) business review, (ii) principal risks and uncertainties, (iii)
future development of the Group’s business, (iv) the Company’s
environmental policies and performance, (v) the Company’s
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Company, are set out respectively in the
“Business overview”, “Key risks and uncertainties”, “Prospects”,
“Environmental, social and corporate responsibility” and “Compliance
with laws and regulations” sections under “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of the annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year using financial
key performance indicators is set out in the Group’s Five-year Financial
Summary on pages 238 to 239 of this annual report.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations in
relation to its business including health and safety, workplace
conditions, employment and the environment. Details of discussion of
the Group’s environmental policies and performance are set out in this
Environmental Social and Governance (ESG) Report.
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The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, including employees,
customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and shareholders. The Group
will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain good
relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

During the year, as far as the Board is aware, there was no material
non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group
that has a significant impact on the Group’s business and operations.

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the Group’s
financial position at that date are set out in the audited consolidated
financial statements on pages 89 to 93.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements is set out
on pages 238 to 239. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
approximately HK$327,000 (2018: HK$861,000).

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year
are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, the jurisdiction
in which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of the subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, the loss attributable to
shareholders of the Company amounted to HK$171.7 million. The
Company’s reserves available for distribution comprise share premium
and accumulated losses/retained profits. Under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands and the provisions of the Memorandum and
Avrticles of Association of the Company, the Company’s share premium
account may be applied by the Company in paying distributions or
dividend to shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to
be paid, the Company shall be able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company has no distributable reserve
that was available for distribution to the shareholders.

Related parties transactions of the Group during the Year are disclosed
in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report. None of such related party transactions constitutes connected
transaction which is subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement and/or shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Company and the Group had the following
continuing connected transactions, certain details of which are
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

On 21 December 2017, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, Telefield Holdings Limited (“Telefield”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Telefield Group”) and Noble Treasure Holdings
Limited (“Noble Treasure”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Noble
Treasure Group”) entered into a master sale agreement (the
“Agreement 1), pursuant to which Telefield Group agreed to supply to
Noble Treasure Group and Noble Treasure Group agreed to purchase
from Telefield Group the EMS products for a period commencing from
the 5th business days from the date of the Agreement 1 or such other
day as may be agreed between the parties to 31 December 2018 (both
days inclusive).
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In addition, on 24 December 2018, Telefield further entered into a
master sale agreement (“Agreement 2”) with Noble Treasure pursuant
to which Telefield Group agreed to supply to Noble Treasure Group
and Noble Treasure Group agreed to purchase from Telefield Group
the EMS products for a period commencing from the 5th business
days from the date of the Agreement 2 or such other day as may be
agreed between the parties to 31 December 2020 (both days
inclusive).

As at the date of the Agreement 2, Noble Treasure is owned as to
approximately 17.40% by Telefield Charitable Fund Limited and
approximately 82.60% by Dragon Fortune International Limited. Each
of Dragon Fortune International Limited and Telefield Charitable Fund
Limited is interested as to approximately 53.30% by Century Win
Industrial Limited which in turn is interested as to approximately
53.68% by Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve and approximately 46.32% by
Ms. Ma Mei Han Elitte, a spouse of Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve. The
approximate 46.70% interests in each of Dragon Fortune International
Limited and Telefield Charitable Fund Limited are held as to
approximately 6.50% by Ms. Fok Pui Yin, approximately 8.64% by Mr.
Lee Kai Bon, approximately 8.64% by Mr. Ng Kim Yuen and
approximately 22.92% by other independent third parties. As each of
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve, Ms. Fok Pui Yin, Mr. Lee Kai Bon and Mr.
Ng Kim Yuen is a director of Telefield, Noble Treasure is a connected
person at the subsidiary level of the Company.

The following pricing principles were determined between Telefield
and Noble Treasure after arm’s length negotiations and on normal
commercial terms with reference to the prevailing market price of the
EMS Products:

1. The sale price of the EMS products supplied by Telefield Group
to Noble Treasure Group will be equivalent to or higher than
those of the same or similar products that Telefield Group supply
to other independent third parties, if any; and

2. The sale price as agreed between Telefield Group and Noble
Treasure Group after negotiation should not be altered, adjusted,
varied unless both parties agree to alter, adjust and vary the sale
price in writing.
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The Directors expect that the maximum aggregate annual fee payable
by Noble Treasure Group to Telefield Group under the Master Sale
Agreement for each of the three years ending 31 December 2018, 2019
and 2020 shall not exceed HK$18.5 million, HK$20.5 million and
HK$22.5 million respectively.

Further details are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 24
December 2018 and 6 March 2019.

During the Year, the Telefield Group has entered into the sales of
goods transaction with the Noble Treasure Group as follows:

EEXEH BREHEREREBEZE-Z—N
F ZE-NEFRZZE-ZTF+-A=+—H
E=AFESFHESEEN T Telefield £
M= FELER S RITEHEiA18500,000%
7T * 20,500,000 77T % 22,500,000 A T ©

E—SHBHINARRBHER T —\F
+-AZ+WmBER-Z—AF=ASBEHR

=

NEER - Telefield £ E A 4
THEERKS :

BREDFIZIA

HK$

BT
Maestro Wireless Solutions Limited BEBERIEBR AT 7,827,079
Able Trend Technology Limited KBEIEAER AR 2,137,054
MarkAudio Loudspeakers Limited MarkAudio Loudspeakers Limited 1,201,783
B. Kettner Products Hong Kong Limited EEBY BB ERA A 967,612
Sota Acoustics Limited HEZSEERAA 110,243
Total st 12,243,771

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions and have
confirmed that such transactions were entered into:

. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

. on normal commercial terms and on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available from independent third parties;
and

. in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole.
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Annual Report &3 2019 69



The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The Company’s auditor has issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in this annual report in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

The auditor’s letter confirms that, in respect of the above-mentioned
continuing connected transactions:

a. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the above-mentioned continuing
connected transactions have not been approved by the Board.

b.  nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the above-mentioned continuing
connected transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions.

C. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the transactions were not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group.

d.  with respect to the aggregate amount of the abovementioned
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to the
auditors’ attention that causes the auditor to believe that the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the maximum aggregate annual value disclosed in the
circular of the Company dated 24 December 2018.

During the Year, total sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 76.3% of the Group’s sales for the Year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to 41.6%.
Total purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 21.6% of the Group’s purchases.
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None of Directors, their associates or any substantial shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
listed issuers share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers and customers.

The Remuneration Committee was established for reviewing the
Group’s emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, having regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices.

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
this report are:

Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman) (appointed on 12 July 2019)

Mr. Gong Shaoxiang (resigned on 12 July 2019)

Mr. Duan Chuanhong

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua (removed on 17 December 2019)

Mr. Li Wuhao (appointed on 6 June 2019 and resigned on 18 November 2019)

Mr. Shi Xinbiao (resigned on 31 January 2019)
Mr. Xia Xiaobing (appointed on 28 November 2019)

Mr. Cao Yuyun (resigned on 29 July 2019)

Mr. Bao Jingiao

Mr. Wong Chun Hung (resigned on 12 August 2019)
Mr. Leung Pok Man (removed on 17 December 2019)
Mr. Li Huiwu (appointed on 14 October 2019)

Mr. Wang Guozhen (appointed on 28 November 2019)
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In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company and code provision A.4 of the Code under Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules, Mr. Lin Dailian, Mr. Duan Chuanhong, Mr. Xia
Xiaobing, Mr. Li Huiwu and Mr. Wang Guozhen will retire by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Bao Jingiao, Mr. Li Huiwu and Mr. Wang Guozhen, and as at
the date of this annual report, the Company still considers them to be
independent.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Group are set out on pages
36 to 37 of this annual report.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group subsisted at the
end of the Year or at any time during the Year to which the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

Under Articles of Association 191 of the Company’s articles, the
directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices, provided that this indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attached to any of them. Such permitted indemnity
provision is currently in force and was in force throughout the financial
year.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, no interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) were held by the Directors
and chief executives of the Company which are required (i) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); (ii) pursuant to section 352 of part XV of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (iii) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Company contained in
the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Director is a director or employee
of a company which has an interest or a short position in the shares of
the Company (the “Shares”) or the underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

INTEREST AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019 and 19 February 2020, the register of
substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows the following shareholders
had notified the Company of relevant interests, being 5% or more of
the issued share capital of the Company.
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Percentage of Issued Share
Capital of the Company
ERARABRITREEA L

Number of
Capacity shares held
EL R A8E
Power Port Holdings Limited Beneficial Owner 1,516,340,000
(“Power Port”) (Note 1) ERlEAA
Power Port Holdings Limited
([Power Port ) (HtiE1)

Long or short 31 December 19 February
position 2019 2020 (Note 4)
#a —2-7F —B-BF
79 +=ZA=+—-8 ZAtAR(HH4)
Long 25.50% 21.25%
e
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Mr. Yang Zhihui
(“Mr. Yang”) (Note 1)
MBERE(MPEED (K1)

Ms. Yang Changrong
("Ms. Yang C.”)(Note 1)
BREZL((BRERL(HiH1)

Keywan Global Limited (Note 2)
Keywan Global Limited (#75%2)

Mr. He Xiaoming (Note 2)

MXRALLE(HE2)

Mr. Cao Longbing (Note 3)
R (H73)

Hearts Capital (Asia) Limited (Note 3)

Hearts Capital (Asia) Limited (#7:£3)

Hearts Capital SPC — Hearts SP2
(Note 3)

Hearts Capital SPC — Hearts SP2
(i3t 3)

Long Asia Asset Management (HK)
Limited (“Long Asia”) (Note 3)

REBEER(BE)ARAA
(TRED(H7E3)

Capacity

5t

Held by controlled
corporation

BXEHEERA

Held by controlled
corporation

X AERSE

Beneficial Owner
ERBEEA

Held by controlled
corporation

R EH B A

Beneficial Owner
ERBEEA

Held by controlled
corporation

R EHAERSE

Beneficial Owner
ERBEEA

Investment manager
REKE

Number of
shares held

FrsRBRA

1,516,340,000

1,516,340,000

990,000,000

990,000,000

727,160,000

718,600,000

718,600,000

718,600,000
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31 December
2019
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25.50%

16.65%

16.65%

12.23%

12.09%

12.09%

12.09%

19 February
2020 (Note 4)
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21.25%

13.88%

13.88%

10.19%

10.07%

10.07%
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Notes:

1. 1,516,340,000 ordinary shares are held by Power Port, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Yang. A share
purchase agreement was entered into on 8 January 2020 between Mr. Yang, as the
seller and Ms. Yang C. as the purchaser, pursuant to which, Ms. Yang C. agreed to
acquire, and Mr. Yang agreed to dispose, the entire issued share capital of Power Port
(the “Transfer”). Following the completion of the Transfer, Ms. Yang C. became the sole
shareholder of Power Port and a substantial shareholder of the Company.

2. 990,000,000 ordinary shares are held by Keywan Global Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr.
He Xiaoming.

3. Long Asia is the investment manager of Hearts Capital SPC — Hearts SP2 and is

therefore deemed to be interested in the shares owned by Hearts Capital SPC — Hearts
SP2 under the SFO. 718,600,000 ordinary shares are held by Hearts Capital SPC —
Hearts SP2, a company incorporated in Cayman Islands whose entire issued share
capital is held by Hearts Capital (Asia) Limited, which in turn is 70% controlled by Mr.
Cao Longbing who is also interested in 8,560,000 ordinary shares.

4. On 19 February 2020, an aggregate of 1,189,060,000 placing shares, which represented
approximately 16.7% of the issued share capital of the Company immediately after
completion of the placing, has been successfully placed (the “Placing”). Following the
completion of the Placing, the total issued shares of the Company increased from
5,945,311,400 to 7,134,371,400.

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any Director or their respective associates, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

During the year, none of the Directors or controlling shareholders of
the Company nor their respective associates is considered to have
interests in a business that competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group other than
those businesses where the Directors have been appointed or were
appointed as Directors to represent the interests of the Company.
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The Company has a share option scheme (the “Old Share Option
Scheme”) which was adopted on 31 December 2010, valid and
effective for a period of 10 years until 31 December 2020, subject to
the early termination provisions contained in the Old Share Option
Scheme. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 10 March
2020, the Old Share Option Scheme was terminated, a new share
option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) of the Company
was adopted and approved. Upon termination of the Old Share Option
Scheme, no further options of the Old Share Option Scheme can be
offered thereunder but the provisions of the scheme shall remain in
force to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any
options granted prior to its termination and options granted prior to
such termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable. As at the
date of this report, the Company has no option granted under the Old
Share Option Scheme remained unexercised or outstanding.

As to attract and retain the eligible persons, to provide additional
incentive to them and to promote the success of the business of the
Group, the Company adopted the Old Share Option Scheme whereby
the Board were authorised, at their absolute discretion and subject to
the terms of the Scheme, to grant options to subscribe for the Shares
to, inter alia, any employees (full-time or part-time), Directors,
consultants, advisors, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners or service providers of the Group.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount
payable by the grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance of
the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00. The subscription price
of a share in respect of any particular option granted under the Old
Share Option Scheme shall be a price solely determined by the Board
and notified to a participant and shall be at least the highest of: (i) the
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant of the option; (ii) the average of
the closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the 5 trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of a share on
the date of grant of the option provided always that for the purpose of
calculating the subscription price, where the Company has been listed
on the Stock Exchange for less than 5 trading days, the issue price
shall be used as the closing price for any trading day fall within the
period before the Listing Date.
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The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Old Share Option Scheme does not exceed 10%
of the shares in issue from the Listing Date. The Company may at any
time refresh such limit, subject to the shareholders’ approval and issue
of a circular in compliance with the Listing Rules, provided that the
total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under all the
share option schemes of the Company does not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue at the time. An option may be exercised in accordance
with the terms of the Old Share Option Scheme at any time during a
period as the Board may determine which shall not exceed ten years
from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination
thereof.

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives
and rewards to selected eligible persons for their contributions to the
Group. The New Share Option Scheme will remain valid until 10 March
2030, subject to the early termination provisions contained in the New
Share Option Scheme. The participants of the New Share Option
Scheme may include directors, employees, consultants, professionals,
customers, suppliers, agents, business or joint venture partners,
advisors and contractors of the Group or a company in which the
Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company.

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted within 21 days from
the date on which an option is offered to an eligible participant and a
non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 in favour of the Company as
consideration for the grant thereof. The subscription price for any
share under the New Share Option Scheme will be a price determined
by the Board at its absolute discretion and notified to each grantee
and will be not less than the highest of (i) the closing price of a share
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the relevant option; (i) an amount equivalent to the average
closing price of the share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the relevant option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share on the date of the grant.
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The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
New Share Option Scheme and any other schemes involving the issue
or grant of options or similar rights over Shares or other securities by
the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the shares in issue
from time to time. Notwithstanding anything contrary to the terms of
the New Share Option Scheme, no options may be granted under any
scheme of the Company (including the New Share Option Scheme) if
this will result in the said 30% limit being exceeded.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options already granted or to be granted to each participant under
the New Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company (including exercised and outstanding share options)
in any 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
should not exceed 1% aggregate of the shares in issue as at the date of
such grant. Any grant of further options above this 1% limit shall be
subject to approval of the shareholders of the Company at general
meetings, with such participant and his associates abstaining from
voting.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the New Share Option Scheme shall be 713,437,340 shares,
representing 10.0% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of this annual report.

The period within which the options must be exercised will be
specified by the Board at the time of the offer of grant, and must
expire no later than 10 years from the date of grant. There is no
general requirement on the minimum period for which an option must
be held or the performance targets which must be achieved before an
option can be exercised under the terms of the New Share Option
Scheme.

There is no outstanding share option as at 31 December 2019 and 2018
under the Old Share Option Scheme. In addition, no share option was
granted, cancelled or lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Company has applied the code provisions set out in the Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Since its listing on the
Stock Exchange, the Company has complied with the code provisions
of the Code, save for the exceptions explained in the Corporate
Governance Report in this annual report.
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Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
annual report.

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation to which the
Shareholders are entitled by reason of their holding of the Shares.

On 29 January 2020, the Company and Zinvest Global Limited
(the “Placing Agent”) entered into a placing agreement (the
“Placing Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to place through the Placing Agent, on a
best endeavour basis, in aggregate of up to 1,189,062,000 new
shares of the Company to be allotted and issued pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the Placing Agreement (the “Placing
Shares”).

On 19 February 2020, the condition precedent set out in the
Placing Agreement had been fulfilled, and completion of the
Placing took place on 19 February 2020 in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the Placing Agreement. In accordance
with the terms and conditions of the Placing Agreement, the
Placing Shares are to be placed by the Placing Agent on a best
endeavour basis. The Placing Shares under the Placing have not
been fully placed. An aggregate of 1,189,060,000 Placing Shares,
which represents approximately 16.7% of the issued share capital
of the Company immediately after completion of the Placing, has
been successfully placed to not less than six Placees, at the
placing price of HK$0.035 per Placing Share. The net proceeds
from the Placing (after deduction of commission and other
expenses of the Placing) are approximately HK$41.4 million.
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Details of the Placing are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 29 January 2020, 3 February 2020 and 19
February 2020, respectively.

On 17 February 2020, the Company proposed to the
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general
meeting to be held on 10 March 2020 (the “EGM”) to terminate
the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 31
December 2010 (the “2010 Share Option Scheme”) and to
approve and adopt a new share option scheme (the “New Share
Option Scheme”). Details of the New Share Option Scheme are
set out in the circular of the Company dated 17 February 2020.

On 10 March 2020, at the EGM, the proposed adoption of the
New Share Option Scheme and the termination of the 2010
Share Option Scheme were duly passed by the shareholders of
the Company by way of poll.

On 21 October 2019, the Company has been served a writ of
summons issued by the Court of First Instance of the High Court
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region by the lender as
the plaintiff (the “Plaintiff”) against the Company as the
defendant. The Plaintiff claims against the Company for a sum of
HK$20,000,000, being the loan principal under a facility
agreement, plus interest and costs. Details are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 23 October 2019.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Company has
entered into a settlement agreement in respect of the legal
proceeding, pursuant to which, amongst others, to settle the
amount in full and final by way of assignment of the rights of two
loans due to the Company and the Plaintiff has unconditionally
and irrevocably agreed in writing to waive its right to claim
against the Company. Details are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 24 March 2020.
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Subsequent to the end of the reporting period and up to the
date of this annual report, the Group’s equity investments at
FVTOCI has suffered a decline in market value of approximately
HK$9.0 million, due to market volatility, as compared to the
carrying amount as at 31 December 2019.

After the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been and continued to
be implemented across the globe. The Group is paying close
attention to the development of, and the disruption to the global
business and economic activities caused by, the COVID-19
outbreak and evaluating its impact on the financial position, cash
flows and operating results of the Group. Given the impact of the
COVID-19 outbreak remains uncertain, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of such impact on the Group’s
financial position, cash flows and operating results at the date on
which these financial statements are authorised for issue.

At the last annual general meeting of the Company, RSM Hong Kong
was re-appointed as the auditor of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by RSM
Hong Kong who retires and, being eligible, offers themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Lin Dailian
Chairman

Hong Kong
31March 2020
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

LINK-ASIA INTERNATIONAL CO. LTD.

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS “CHINA HEALTHCARE ENTERPRISE GROUP
LIMITED”)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Link-Asia
International Co. Ltd. (formerly known as “China Healthcare Enterprise
Group Limited”) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 89 to 237, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. The key audit matter we identified
is:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A AN RS

Impairment of loans to other parties mEMATRENEFRE

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

RRESEE BMETESRNAEERRETSHE

Impairment of loans to other parties

Refer to note 31 of the consolidated financial statements. —  Evaluating management’s assessment of

whether there has been a significant increase in
Loans to other parties represent a significant portion of the credit risk or the credit risk of the financial asset
Group’s assets. A loss allowance for 12-month or lifetime has increased to a point that it is considered
ECL is made on all loans. credit-impaired since initial recognition of

material loans.
As at 31 December 2019, the Group has loans to independent

third parties and individual with outstanding principal and —  Evaluating the independent external valuer’s
accrued interest totaling of approximately HK$111,813,000. competence, capabilities and objectivity.
During the year, expected credit loss (“ECL”) of HK$54,560,000
was recognised due to increase in assessed credit risk. —  With the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists: assessing the appropriateness of
Management is required to exercise significant judgement in the impairment models used by management
determining whether there has been a significant increase in to estimate ECL; comparing the inputs to the
credit risk or the credit risk of the financial asset has models to external data; and assessing the
increased to a point that it is considered credit-impaired appropriateness of any forward looking
since initial recognition, and in estimating 12-month and adjustments in light of available information
lifetime ECL on the loans. Accordingly, this area is about current and forecast future economic
considered as a key audit matter. conditions.
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The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and

the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Link-Asia International Co. Ltd IR ZEIERBE 2 ER AT

BANBRAEEEE L SFHRE M RRER

FEEA T FEARMFFRERMEMNEKN
AR - W BB RFIE RO RE R
FoBMERAE2ERRBERMNER Kt
ZOEREREEMB R - ROITERARE
AR REAEMA LR ESEEEEEE -

ERRERSEANRE  ETEREREER
BEEAETOES TIREEERAFEN
ERIARMRAL o 53R R 7] LA R BRRF X 8B RR B
B WA AERMREEN BT EERE
RIBLR B P HRRAAEDOLERE - MRER
BEASHERRR -

EREBER SR ERETETHBES - KM
BREENE  YEAREASRAEETREE
KRR o PN

© BAIRFHEARKEFRBRMERSEE
MHEBREFEEABERRAHER - R
SERBITEEF AR ZERR - A
RERFERMEENETRE  FHRK
PIERMER - ARNKFEAES R
RofE - BEERER ERRMLZEE
MBEPEIE AT - I R AE 3R A HKRF
& ) B K #5 AR PR AL 1O LR = R R BE
IR AR EHHEREREOL AR
THRERFEBNABERE - URFHE
ENEAEF BEENLEY BEEH
NEBE IR B R MERRER

+ HMAEFEARASHERRNBEERE
SRR MR EN SR -



. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Tak Man, Stephen.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants
29th Floor, Lee Garden Two
28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

31 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

A LS s
AR THm

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B EZ —FE—NF+ A =+—HILFZ

2019 PAONRS]
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
THET FET
(Re-presented)
C<=27l))
Continuing operations FREREER
Revenue WA 8 629,948 681,482
Cost of sales SHE RN (494,106) (534,208)
Gross profit EX 135,842 147,274
Investment and other income TEREMIA 10 12,391 15,132
Other gains and losses E s K 18 11 3,936 9,134
Selling and distribution expenses PHE RO HEMAY (28,829) (27,527)
Administrative expenses THEH (179,414) (182,509)
Impairment losses for loans to MEAMATEFREREFE
other parties, net 31 (54,560) (4,982)
Impairment losses for trade receivables, FEUE 5 85 FOREE 1B %58
net (1,550) (148)
Impairment loss for other receivables — Hfth fEUW R IE BB E518 (1,800) -
Reversal of impairment losses on FEWE 2 RFBERERER
trade receivables - 612
Other operating expenses HEmgEBR (42,495) (19,965)
Loss from operations BEEE (156,479) (62,979)
Finance costs b & Ak 2N 77 (6,809) (2,778)
Loss before tax MREL AT E 18 (163,288) (65,757)
Income tax (expense)/credit e (B) K% 13 (1,300) 566
Loss for the year from BEREEK Y EEEFR
continuing operations 14 (164,588) (65,191)
Discontinued operation ERIEEEER
(Loss)/profit for the year from ERIMHEEEE 2 FE
discontinued operation (E18) %A 17 (14,739) 15,891
Loss for the year FEEE (179,327) (49,300)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

= A2 £
ShE T2 m

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B EZ —FE—NF+-H=+—HILFZ

2019 PAONRS]
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHxT TF&IT
(Re-presented)
(#=&E7)
Attributable to: DT&AE :
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ =N (171,735) (57,984)
Non-controlling interests IRV AR MR (7,592) 8,684
(179,327) (49,300)
Loss per share BRER
From continuing and REFBERDRIHTEERS
discontinued operations
Basic (HK cents per share) AR (FRB) (2.889) (0.975)
Diluted (HK cents per share) g (-IBL) N/A RiE N/A N
From continuing operations REFELEER
Basic (HK cents per share) AR (B (2.768) (1.112)
Diluted (HK cents per share) g (FRBW) N/A 38 N/A N5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

sre B M EAM R E WS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2019 PAONRS]
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHExT T
Loss for the year FEEF#R (179,327) (49,300)
Other comprehensive income: Hih 2wk :
Items that will not be reclassified to B TEEH P EEEmmIER -
profit or loss:
Gain on property revaluation e g 20 - 3,687
Deferred tax charge from gain on Y B ESRIRERIE
property revaluation Y H 39 - (495)
Fair value changes of equity BAFEFAHEMZERE
investments at fair value through (R A ETAEAM
other comprehensive income 2EWE) HRERE
(FVTOCh) NEEEE) 27 9,353 (25,716)
9,353 (22,524)
Items that may be reclassified to AEHTEEEmmIER -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on HBE G INETSHIIE =58
translating foreign operations 591 352
Other comprehensive income FEHMEEWES
for the year, net of tax HBRBIE 9,944 (22,172)
Total comprehensive income FEXHEKBARE
for the year (169,383) (71,472)
Attributable to: DR & 7
Owners of the Company ViN/NECIE =N (161,791) (80,020)
Non-controlling interests eI AR R A (7,592) 8,548
(169,383) (@EEATEN
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR e IR R

As at 31 December 2019 R —ZE—hF+=-HA=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—)\F
HK$7000 HK$'000
F#&xT FET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FIREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB &R 20 32,960 51,904
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 21 62,520 -
Investment properties "EYE 22 30,000 30,000
Prepaid lease payments ENEERE 23 - 1,288
Goodwill FEES 24 - 18,814
Intangible assets mEE 25 - -
Rental deposits Hekse 8,659 10,894
Loans to employees and other parties  [A{E B R EMA+TER 31 26,209 44,797
Equity investments at FVTOCI BAFEFAEMEERER
fEiERE 27 9,608 21,859
Deferred tax assets BT IEE = 39 1,938 1,938
Total non-current assets ERBEELAE 171,894 181,494
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 28 79,927 113,962
Trade receivables FEWE SRR 29 131,052 155,761
Prepayments, deposits, AR FRIE - e - HibEl
other receivables and other assets RIENEMEE 30 81,113 85,039
Loans to employees and other parties  [[{EB R EMATER 31 25,115 30,631
Amount due from a related company [ U — & & N 7 508 360 - 1,274
Loan to a non-controlling shareholder R—MEMB AR Z—%
of a subsidiary FEFEARAR R B 36(ii) - 1,731
Equity investments at FVTOCI BAFEFARMBEERERN
ferERE 27 3,789 5,328
Current tax assets BVERF IR B B 586 183
Pledged bank deposits EEPRITER 3201 - 1,250
Bank and cash balances RITRIE % 32(i) 241,364 354,209
Total current assets REBEEHAE 562,946 749,368
TOTAL ASSETS wEE 734,840 930,862
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

/\\/T\ (= /E\ZT )Eiji R%%

As at 31 December 2019 R=ZE—NF+=ZH=+—H

2019 AONES]
—E-hF —N\FE
HK$°000 HK$000
FHBxT T
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Equity B
Equity attributable to owners NARIER AELER
of the Company
Share capital f& A 40 5,945 5,945
Reserves e 42 405,068 566,859
411,013 572,804
Non-controlling interests FEFERR RS - 10,028
Total equity EREE 411,013 582,832
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Lease liabilities HERE 35 33,246 -
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEEE 33,246 -
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables FERE SRR 33 54,422 76,474
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A M B R IE 34 179,193 215,463
Lease liabilities HEaE 35 26,359 =
Amount due to a director BN —ZEEHIE 204 =
Borrowings B 57 20,558 40,267
License rights payable FEETREFE T AR 5,968 4,108
Product warranty provisions EmRBEE 38 2,059 2,498
Current tax liabilities VAR IE B (E 1,818 9,220
Total current liabilities REBEEAE 290,581 348,030
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREERAE 734,840 930,862

Approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2020 and are signed ZBE@R_Z_ZFF=A=+—ABHLAEIHT

on its behalf by: TWATREEZES :
Lin Dailian Xia Xiaobing
PRACH qhE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GAEREDE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
KATREAEE

Foreign Equity
Share currency  Property Investments Non-
Share  premium Merger translation revaluation Contributed  Statutory Capital Capital at FVTOCI Accumulated controlling
capital  account  reserve  reserve  reserve surplus  reserve  reserve contribution reserve losses Total interests

®AYE

sFARM

2EUEN
RERE
0]

At1 January 2018 R=F-\E-F-H 5945 603,750 311 13,465 24291 18298 2,502 38% 11,280 - (31,999) 654,545 (543) 654,002
Adjustment on inital BEREREEMBRE R

application of HKFRS 9 FIRHEZ - - - - - - - - - (8145 6424 (1720) - (1,721
Restated balance RZF-N\F-A-B0ER

at 1 January 2018 (E5) 5945 603,750 311 13,465 24291 18298 2502 38% 11,280 (28,145) (5575 652,824 (543) 652,281
Total comprehensive income FRAENGEE

for the year - - - 488 3192 - - - - (25716)  (57,984) (80,020 8,548 (70.472)
Disposal of subsiclaries HERELR - - - - (27,489) - - 439 - - 27,050 - 2,023 2,023
Changes in equity for the year FEERED - - - 488 (24,297) - - 439 N (25716)  (30,934)  (80,020) 10571 (69,449)
At 31 December 2018 and RZF-NETZA=t-BR

1 January 2019 —I-nE-A-R 5945 603,750 311 13,953 - 18298 2502 4275 11,280 (53861)  (36509) 572,804 10028 582832
Total comprehensive income FREAANEEE

for the year - - - 501 - - - - - 9353 (171,735)  (161,791) (7,592)  (169,383)
Disposal of equity investments ~ HERERE - - " - - . P . - 7,949 (7,949) ' n -
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - - - - - - - - - - - - (2436)  (2436)
Changes in equity for the year EEEREY - - - 501 - - - - - 17302 (179,684)  (161,791)  (10,028) (171,819)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-hE

+ZA=t-8 5945 603,750 3m 14,544 - 18,298 2,502 4,215 11,280  (36,559) (216,193) 411,013 - 411,013
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CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
/\‘/T\ EE k7 ;/fl—i%ig

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

2019 2018
—g-nE  —F-N\F
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000

FHR FHR
(Re-presented)
(#&E7)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHERERE

ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before tax BELRT (E518),/ 5 F
Continuing operations HEREE (163,288) (65,757)
Discontinued operation RESI S (15,025) 21,302
(178,313) (44,455)
Adjustments for: T -
Impairment losses for R 5 RFBEBEFE
trade receivables, net 29 1,550 148
Impairment loss for other receivables  E b [ U X IE R E 65 18 1,800 -
Impairment losses for loans to mMEMALTERZ
other parties, net BB R 54,560 4,982
Allowance on inventories, net GFEREFE 4,218 g
Reversal of allowance on FERBRRIFE
inventories, net = (2,419
Bad debt written off in RERE SRR
trade receivables HIE R 29 - 141
Depreciation of property, ME - BB MEREITE
plant and equipment 20 24,890 17,488
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 21 32,461 3
Finance costs BhE RN 12 6,809 4,652
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR WS 11817 (754) (2,699)
Loss on deregistration of ss — BB A A st
a subsidiary 2 BB = 50
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  BEK
plant and equipment B sl - (88)
Gain on modification of BETHE W 2 W
tenancy agreement 11 (6) -
Interest income on loans to mES REMAT
employees and other parties Bz FBUA (7,105) (8,196)
Bank interest income and bank SRITH) B UA K ERTT 7 BF
fixed deposit interest income TR A B WA 10 (1,239) (439)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARZEER 14 19,193 52
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BERR
plant and equipment 2 E5E 2,178 5
Addition of license rights payable R FE N TR 2,713 =
Waive of license rights payable FERTREFE T SR EA 2 10 = (1,857)
Provision on product warranty EmRARE 38 2,059 2,498
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

meERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—B-hE T )\F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FiExT FET
(Re-presented)
€7D
Operating loss before working BIEE S EBA
capital changes e (34,986) (30,142)
Payment of license fee payables TR FENT R (853) (504)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL,/ (i) 28,417 (26,379)
Decrease/(increase) in FEUE 5 BRK
trade receivables B (3Ehn) 11,553 (40,437)
Increase in prepayments, deposits, TEMRIE - e - HitfEl
other receivables and other assets FIA N H A B EE N (13,007) (38,030)
Decrease/(increase) in amount e —ERE R FIFHUIE
due from a related company B () 1,274 an
Increase in loan to a non-controlling m—EMB AR Z—%
shareholder of a subsidiary JEIE R AR R E L N (412) (1,611)
Increase in amount due to a director  FEf— & E FFIE LN 204 -
Decrease in amount due to a EN—REWRBAR—%
non-controlling shareholder of JEFRRR AR B FR IR
a subsidiary DERS = (535)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables FERTE 8 Cpi ) /1 A0 (21,791) 1,965
(Decrease)/increase in accruals and  FEIRE A &% E b (T 3B
other payables G2,/ (22,416) 52,710
Decrease in product warranty EmiRBRER D
provisions (2,498) (3,336)
Cash used in operations CEFTRIR S (54,515) (86,316)
Income tax paid B X HEREE (4,982) (5,108)
Finance costs paid B mE KA (2,419) (4,367)
Interest on lease liabilities HEABRME (474) =
Net cash used in operating activities &2 EBFr IR & F5 (62,390) (95,791)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

meERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2019
—F-NF
HK$’000

FEx

2018
—E-N\F
HK$ 000
FHT
(Re-presented)
(F5E51)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BRETHHEESRE

ACTIVITIES
Decrease/(increase) in cash in FRITRESERPZ

margin account of brokerage firms Wam A, (1) 14,026 (14,059
Decrease in prepaid lease payments  FE{THAE AR 23 = 624
Disposal of subsidiaries (net of cash HEMRBAR (HBREHE 43(d) &

and cash equivalents disposed of) Z2BEeRIACEHEEY) (e) (2,381) 30,346
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BIRIRIRITFETR D 1,250 600
Interest received B U B 1,239 439
Loans to employees and other parties [M{ES REM A TER (26,000) (72,461)
Repayment from loans to mEEREMAL

employees and other parties BERRER = 92,805
Purchase of equity investments at BERATFETAEAM

FVTOC] EHERERERE (9,852) (40,945)
Proceeds from disposal of HEZEAFEF ALt E RS

equity investments at FVTOCI RIRERER & 2 TS 3/ IE 32,995 5
Refundable deposit paid IRNBREEECTRE S

for Exclusive Sales Right (1,500) -
Purchases of property, BEYE  BELRE

plant and equipment 20 (9,204) (41,139)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BMENEEZ

plant and equipment Fri3 k18 - 404
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEZEBME(FTA)

investing activities IR %58 573 (43,386)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

meERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2019 PAONRS
—2-nE B N\F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHBxT FHET
(Re-presented)
(&=E=75)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BETHHEESRE
ACTIVITIES
Payment of lease liabilities YNEEAE (37,628) =
Repayment of borrowings BigfE 43(g) - (1,780)
Net cash used in financing activities BB EEATAR SR (37,628) (1,780)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND BeERBEESEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS WA FEE (99,445) (140,957)
Effect of foreign exchange rate [EREFTE
changes 626 1,728
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—E—BHWERER
AT 1 JANUARY BEEEY 340,150 479,379
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=—A=+—8®
AT 31 DECEMBER BERELSEEY 32(i1) 241,331 340,150
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law as an exempted company with limited liability
on 18 May 2010. The address of its registered office is Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands and principal place of business is 16/F., Three
Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong. The
Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rule”) on the Stock Exchange
and with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed in note 4.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

ARABRZZE-ZEFRATN\BARER
AEEREHETMRIREREER
A |l H e it # F & b 3k A& Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands © = &
EEMBRAUAEEPRREE SRR
SESE=—H161E - KRRIRNESTHE
BMaRZMmERAR ([HAM]) ERE

N,

|T_| o

RRARBREERRAT - EB QA
TEEBENRE P RAMEE26

RZEFRAMBRRDBEEBGTA
g([HERAMAE ) BEMZAEER
EEUMBHRELEN(ETEMHREE
AR - EEMBREEANEEELS
M HmEEAN(EEMBREEL]) -
FrestEN(FESFER)) k2
B ZERAMBRRNTAMIME
Z Em AR LR A &9 A 3 5 IR
XRFARAGE (F622F) M WER
E o ARERA 2 EEE A BRI T4
R

BEGFEAGER/ME THA] REE
RIEEM B HmEEL  ZFEANAE
B gt IR R ER KA R F K
e EREASBEH BEANERER
It T AT AR AE ET 2 ZE Bl A 51 B0E A I
BESHHRZ G BRNTMEE
ERLEREHBREARR  EHE
R EES o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16 Leases,
and a number of amendments to HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group.

Except for HKFRS 16, none of the developments have had a
material effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. The Group has not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 supersedes HKAS 17 Leases, and the related
interpretations, HK(IFRIC) 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC) 15 Operating
Leases-Incentives and HK(SIC) 27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. HKFRS 16 introduced a single accounting model for
lessees, which requires a lessee to recognise a right-of-use
asset and a lease liability for all leases, except for leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of
low-value assets.

Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify
leases as either operating or finance leases using similar
principles as in HKAS 17. Therefore, HKFRS 16 did not have
an impact on leases where the Group is the lessor. The
lessor accounting requirements are brought forward from
HKAS 17 substantially unchanged.

Link-Asia International Co. Ltd IR ZEIERBE 2 ER AT

FEGFMASCEMIAI BB
BamEE  BEMHREELF
16 ERZREBYHRE LR
MIER] » REEARETRAKE
BRI AEERER

BREBMBWMELENF 165 - L
AEBHRERTRAREE R
B B RAE LM B )T
BEBEARE - NEBWAREREM
RE RISt HR AR R F AT 4
A g o

BERMBHEERE16HRAE

BEMBRELENF16FMAEE
SRFERIF 17 REE MR RE -

52 (AR BEHRERERES)F
AFEERROESHE BB
(BHREZEE) BSREEHE
— BBERAREE(EARER
Be)F2RMEERBERREK
ARGNEERE - BEMB RS
ERIF 6 R AEASIAE 25

R - BRAE AR A E SRR
EREEENRHERE  EHER
REAXKEENHEREEEEE
HERIBRSD

EFAYBHREERF 6 FABUSH
SRS EAFE 7 ROLEEAGS
BRESRA - HEAREEERES
B & ETHERIZET7 5% AR LA R AL
HESCBEAKLAMERE -
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SESRHEANEEYEZE -8
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable
users of the financial statements to assess the effect that
leases have on the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of an entity.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from 1 January
2019. The Group has elected to use the modified
retrospective approach and has therefore recognised the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment to
the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2019.
Comparative information has not been restated and
continues to be reported under HKAS 17.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to
previous accounting policies and the transition options
applied are set out below:

(@) New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly relates
to the concept of control. HKFRS 16 defines a lease
on the basis of whether a customer controls the use
of an identified asset for a period of time, which may
be determined by a defined amount of use. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to
direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.

ERMRBEEAE6REE (F)

FEMBRELERF 165 I 5| AR
SMEMREEWBEEFR - EEE
M mREREFEHESEEY
Bk - MBRBELASRENT
@,

rEEE-_FT-NF—-HA—HER
/AJEFHE/%EM%#E:./EE'J% 65k °
AEBEDEZEREETEWS
I&th%mﬂﬁﬁﬁ’]?:ﬁr CETER AR
E-NEF—A—BNHERE
BREAE - LBEMSTES > A
EERBEEBGHEUNBIRRE -

ERBESTBRREPNUEERY
BLANFIERBREENE D
BEFIAT

(@ MHEMFEE

HEEENESH TR P RIE
BB S - BEM B REE
AIF6RBETFEER —
BEHEAZHE BN EEDN
ERAMERMEE  HA#ER
THEREETE - HEFEE
BHEETREHNEENE
H: nEEEZERTERS
RBARHB D KR as - RIFE ]
BEEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

@)

®)

New definition of a lease (Continued)

The Group applies the new definition of a lease in
HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were entered into or
changed on or after 1 January 2019. For contracts
entered into before 1 January 2019, the Group has
used the transitional practical expedient to
grandfather the previous assessment of which
existing arrangements are or contain leases.
Accordingly, contracts that were previously assessed
as leases under HKAS 17 continue to be accounted for
as leases under HKFRS 16 and contracts previously
assessed as non-lease service arrangements continue
to be accounted for as executory contracts.

Lessee accounting and transitional impact

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a lessee to
classify leases as either operating leases or finance
leases, as was previously required by HKAS 17.
Instead, the Group is required to capitalise all leases
when it is the lessee, including leases previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, other
than those short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets which are exempt.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the Group
has applied the incremental borrowing rates of the
relevant group entities at the date of initial
application. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rate applied is 6.11%.

Link-Asia International Co. Ltd IR ZEIERBE 2 ER AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(b)  Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued)

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group applied
the following recognition exemption and practical
expedients at the date of initial application of HKFRS

16:

®

(i)

(i)

(iv)

W)

elected not to apply the requirements of HKFRS
16 in respect of the recognition of lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets to leases for which the
remaining lease term ends within 12 months
from the date of initial application of HKFRS 16,
i.e. where the lease term ends on or before 31
December 2019;

applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with a similar remaining terms for similar
class of underlying assets in a similar economic
environment. Specifically, discount rate for
certain leases of leasehold lands and properties
was determined on a portfolio basis;

used hindsight based on facts and
circumstances as at date of initial application in
determining the lease term for the Group’s
leases with extension options;

excluded initial direct costs from measuring the
right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application; and

relied on the assessment of whether leases are
onerous by applying HKAS 37 as an alternative
to an impairment review.

EBMRBELEAFE6REE(F)
EEANCTHBIERBRZE

(b)

(&)

RITEBEEFBMBHRSE
ERFE6  NEERER
ERBZ BV B RELERF6
SE ARA NI ERER R R
BEREETA

M
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(i)

(iv)

)
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&S5 HE 85
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(b)  Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease liabilities,
the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets
or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. PRANFNE] MBI BB s 4
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) Al(8&)
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) @ ERMIREEEIEBMGHRESE
8l (58)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) EAMBRELENF16FHE(E)
(b) Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued) (b) HAHBEADEEERAETE
(&)
The following table reconciles the operating lease TREIWR_ZE—NF+=
commitments as disclosed in note 46 as at 31 A :‘1——5?&?273’\[‘11%4643
December 2018 to the opening balance for lease s fEagiREaER -
liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019: —NF—A—B%% au\El’\ﬁFﬂfa
B EHVIABRREER

HK$'000
THET

Operating lease commitments disclosed RZE—NF+=-A=+—H
as at 31 December 2018 Frif R A &t EdE 90,411
Less: commitments relating to lease exempt & : BEAFARE AL AT EHAIE -
from capitalisation:
— short-term leases and other leases with —HEHRR T N%F
remaining lease term ending on or + - A=+—Ha& AR
before 31 December 2019 SHHErEMEE (7,811)
82,600
Less: total future interest expenses B AR IRAEF S S (6,787)
Present value of remaining lease payments, FRR-_Z—NF— A —BERH
discounted using the incremental borrowing 2 {EEF|= LI E & EBLIRM
rate and lease liabilities recognised FspfHERERIRE
as at 1 January 2019 75,813
Of which are: Erp
Current lease liabilities mEHEAs 29:579)
Non-current lease liabilities EREEEAE 45,934
75,813
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(b)  Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued)

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases previously
classified as operating leases have been recognised
at an amount equal to the amount recognised for the
remaining lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount of
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
that lease recognised in the statement of
consolidated financial position at 31 December 2018.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“"HKFRS 9”) and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kre B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. BRANETRT RS E] BB R sRE 4
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) 2l (&)
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) @ ERMIREEEIEBMGHRESE
B (4&)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) EEVBRELEAE16FEE (F)
(b)  Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued) (b) HAHBEADEEERAETE
(%&)

The following table summaries the impacts of the TEREBMENE BT B RE
adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group’s consolidated ERIE16HE A EBLR A

statement of financial position: HARARAFZE

Effects of adoption of HKFRS 16
RnBRUBRERUE6RNTE

Carrying Carrying
amount amount

asat as at

31 December Re-cognition 1 January
2018 Re-classification of leases 2019

Line items in the
consolidated statement of

financial position ZHRNEBHMERS R-B-N\F R-2-h%E
impacted by the ERIZE6HTEN t=ZA=+-H =F=[E
adoption of HKFRS 16 RERBERRKER HEREE B E HERI HIREE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
F#T & T Fi# Fi#
Assets EE
Right-of-use assets ERERE - 1912 75813 77,725
Prepaid land lease payments TAf 3t & 2008 (4f72)
(note) 1912 (1,912) = =
Liabilities =0
Lease liabilities HEaR > - (75813) (75,813)
Note: Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the PRC own used HieE - RPEBRYENEE LT
properties were classified as prepaid land lease as payments as AR R : T\ gl
at 31 December 2018. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the current — Hﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁif@fﬁgﬁ
and non-current portion of prepaid land lease payments B - REREBABRE LA E
amounting to HK$624,000 and HK$1,288,000 respectively were le 5k - ﬁﬁitﬁﬂgﬁﬁgmﬂﬂ
classified to right-of-use assets. H R SRR #E 55 93 B 73,624,000
7T % 12880008 TE D EE
EREEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

©

Impact of the financial results and cash flows of the
Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019, the Group as a
lessee is required to recognise interest expense
accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease
liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use
asset, instead of the previous policy of recognising
rental expenses incurred under operating leases on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. This results in
a positive impact on the reported profit from
operations in the Group’s consolidated statement of
profit or loss, as compared to the results if HKAS 17
had been applied during the year.

In the cash flow statement, the Group as a lessee is
required to split rentals paid under capitalised leases
into their principal element and interest element (note
43(g)). These elements are classified as financing
cash outflows and operating cash outflows
respectively. Although total cash flows are
unaffected, the adoption of HKFRS 16 therefore
results in a significant change in presentation of cash
flows within the cash flow statement (note 43(h)).

The following tables give an indication of the
estimated impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on the
Group’s financial result and cash flows for the year
ended 31 December 2019, by adjusting the amounts
reported under HKFRS 16 in these consolidated
financial statements to compute estimates of the
hypothetical amounts that would have been
recognised under HKAS 17 if this superseded
standard had continued to apply in 2019 instead of
HKFRS 16, and by comparing these hypothetical
amounts for 2019 with the actual 2018 corresponding
amounts which were prepared under HKAS 17.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

/\‘/T\

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (@

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(c) Impact of the financial results and cash flows of the
Group (Continued)

RGN AT RAERT BB
Al (48)

gt
FERFTE] REASRT BB B i S %
A (&)
ERVEREEAZE16KEE(E)

© ﬁﬁ%@ﬂﬁ#ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ
B (4E)

2019
ZE-NE

Add back:
HKFRS 16
depreciation
and interest
N

Amounts
reported
under HKFRS 16

e : BRHE
RERRZ6HT
MERNSH
HK$000
T

Deduct:
Estimated
amounts
related to
operating
lease as if
under HKAS 17
(note 1)
Ik FRLE
HEMGETEE  ZE-NEW
(BnpEEses RIEE(ED
RAEUH) REFREHEL (B
1) E17%)
HK$'000
THRT

Compared to
amounts
reported for
2018 under
HKAS 17

Hypothetical
amounts for
2019 as if
under HKAS 17

Financial result for year ended
31 December 2019 impacted

by the adoption of HKFRS 16:

Loss from operation

Finance costs

Loss before taxation

Loss for the year

BEEREE
BEERE6S
2HHEE
HK$/000
Tign
REAE B EREE
FEFLNER
ZE-AETZAZT-H
LEENBHEE
BERE (156,479)
BEANA (6,809)
REAER (163,268)
EEFR (179,327)

32,461 (34,816) (158,834) (62,979)

4,390 = (2,419) @2178)
36,851 (34,816) (161,253) (65,757)
36,851 (34,816) (177,292) (49,300)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kre B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. RANFTE] M EAE R BB RS %
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) 2 (&)
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (@) EARHFREETBRETFREE
a1l (4)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) ERNBEREEAE 6 FHEE (E)
(c) Impact of the financial results and cash flows of the () HAEBEYUBEEERTE DR
Group (Continued) BT E(E)

2019 q018
:g - 71 $ 7 ﬂ\i
Estimated amounts
related to operating
leases as if under Hypothetical Compared to
Amounts reported HKAS17  amounts for 2019  amounts reported for
under HKFRS 16 (notes182) asifunder HKAS17 2018 uﬁnﬁger HKAS 17

FBEERE ZE-fEy

PAE BkeE

BEEBUERE (BNREER (EuRE

A6 GHENETH) BREHEN
Xk J) £17%) )
HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$/000 K$1000
T#n T THT ThL

Line items in the consolidated cash flow S AEENBREEEZ 6%

statement for year ended PevHEE-AF

31 December 2019 impacted by TZA=t-RLEEZ

the adoption of HKFRS 16: GERERERER:
(Cash used in operations mEMB RS (54,515) (38,102) (92,617) (86,316)
Interest element of lease rentals paid EfiEERSZHERH (474) 474 - =
Net cash used in operating activities BERBFARETE (62,390) (37,628) (100,018) (95,791)
Principal element of lease rentals paid EAEERS 2 AE TS (37,628) 37,628 - C
Net cash used in financing activities BERHREFE (37,628) 37,628 - (1,780)

Note I: The “estimated amounts related to operating leases” is an Mzl [EREERENGtSEl B
estimate of the amounts of the cash flows in 2019 that relate to EEBGHENETRR -
leases which would have been classified as operating leases, if —NFDHRBROBERT - A
HKAS 17 had still applied in 2019. This estimate assumes that BOMAKEREMNAEN-F
there were no difference between rentals and cash flows and —NFNREREBFEHE B
that all of the new leases entered into in 2019 would have been AfARR HeEReREY
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, if HKAS 17 had still EER AREERBGIELE
applied in 2019. Any potential net tax effect is ignored. 7R -_ZBE—-NENAREROE

R FERZZ—NFIALN
FHERBEESEENE 7R
SHREARKENRE - HABETF
BB B PR -

Note 2: In this impact table these cash outflows are reclassified from HiiF2 R BRRT - ZEFRERD
financing to operating in order to compute hypothetical amounts EE Fﬂﬁi% YREKE  UFE
of net cash generated from operating activities and net cash BERPMBIREFELRE
used in financing activities as if HKAS 17 still applied. /ﬁi’ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ ZBREFRNRRE

OB ERE TR
KB -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2019. These new and
revised HKFRSs include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

BRUBREENE IR ZEBRTEBZESE

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material
BB EE 1R N BB ERIE SR 2 EFTERZESR

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

BB BMEERFEIR BBGALEAE 395K
BB HREENE TR ST R R RN E

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

?7K W%ﬁu]—&ﬂ«{ DT%
&)

All(
()

BRI s A

B BB MR A2 2 37 8T R AR 2T
BB HWEER

AEEY BIEFEACHEMEBRK
R-ZE-NF—A—BRKRZFK
FRERZ ] RGBT RBHE
WERER - ATREEANRE AR
AIRREEEMBRELANBRE
AT&E -

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after
RUT BN 2% %
Z e ER

1 January 2020
—E2-FF—H—H

1 January 2020
—ZE-TF—H—H

1 January 2020

REE R EHA UL FER] AT £
AIRERERHBERERTR Y
E-HEBRAIRL AKERABEK
MR FERT BT BT KA RER
HixaBHRREBREATE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise
in the accounting policies below (e.g. land and building,
investment properties and certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair
value of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii)
the Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary
plus any remaining goodwill and any accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the
Company. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between the non-controlling shareholders and
owners of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions with
owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
loss, unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and any
contingent consideration. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which the costs
are incurred and the services are received. Identifiable
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are
measured at their acquisition-date fair values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as
goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the sum
of the consideration transferred is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the consideration
transferred in a business combination to calculate the
goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill
impairment reviews are undertaken annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU
containing the goodwill is compared to its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair
value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently
reversed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

®

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at the
end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value
in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or 1oss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates
on the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are reclassified to consolidated profit or loss as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

Property, plant and equipment, including leasehold land
(upon application of HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019, the
interest in leasehold land was reclassified to “Right-of-use
assets”, see note 3) (other than land and building), held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

Land and building held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such
that the carrying amounts do not differ materially from
those that would be determined using fair values at the
end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z — &
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such
land and building is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation reserve,
except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease
for the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in
which case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the
extent of the decrease previously expensed. A decrease in
the carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such land
and building is recognised in profit or loss to the extent
that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the property
revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of
that asset.

Depreciation of revalued building is recognised in profit or
loss. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued
property, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in
the property revaluation reserve is transferred directly to
retained earnings.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:
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Leasehold land and building
Leasehold improvements

Plant, machinery, moulds and tools

Furniture and equipment
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Motor vehicles Pt}

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

Investment properties are land and/or building held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An owned
investment property is measured initially at its cost
including all direct costs attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated
at its fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair
value of the investment property are recognised in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the property, and is recognised in profit
or loss.

In the comparative period, when the Group held a property
interest under an operating lease and used the property to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
Group could elect on a property-by-property basis to
classify and account for such interest as an investment
property. Any such property interest which had been
classified as an investment property was accounted for as
if it were held under a finance lease, and the same
accounting policies were applied to that interest as were
applied to other investment properties leased under
finance leases.

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
that use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

The Group as a lessee

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-
lease component(s), the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less. The
lease payments associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, and
any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost
of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
except for the right-of-use assets that meet the definition
of investment property are carried at fair value in
accordance with note 4(e).

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets
at the end of the lease term are depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-
of-use assets.
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The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet
the definition of investment properties and lease liabilities
separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Policy prior to 1 January 2019

In the comparative period, as a lessee the Group classified
leases as finance leases if the leases transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group. Leases which did not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group were classified
as operating leases, except for the property held under
operating leases that would otherwise meet the definition
of an investment property was classified as investment
property on a property-by-property basis and, if classified.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Policy prior to 1 January 2019 (Continued)

Where the Group acquired the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the
leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments, of such assets were recognised as
property, plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, were recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation was
provided at rates which wrote off the cost or valuation of
the assets over the term of the relevant lease or, where it
was likely the Group would obtain ownership of the asset,
the life of the asset. Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments were charged to profit or loss over the period of
the leases so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period. Contingent rentals
were charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they were incurred.

Where the Group had the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases were
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis was more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received were recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals were charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they were incurred.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If
this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating
lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

License rights and customer relationship are state at cost
less accumulated amortization and impairment losses.
Useful lives are as follows:

License rights Over the license period
Customer relationship 3-6 years

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. An internally
generated intangible asset arising from the Group’s
product development activity is recognised only if all of the
following conditions are met:

—  The technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

— Management intends to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

—  There s ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

— It can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will
generate probable future economic benefits;

—  Adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset are available;

—  The expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.

Internally generated intangible assets are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Where no internally generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.
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Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out basis. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of all production overhead expenditure, and
where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets are measured
subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial
assets.
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Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are classified into one
of the following measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method.

—  FVTOCI — recycling, if the contractual cash flows of
the investment comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both
the collection of contractual cash flows and sale.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition in
profit or loss of ECL, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When the investment is
derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity to
profit or loss.

—  FVTPL if the investment does not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are recognised in
profit or loss.
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Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the investment at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where
such an election is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of. At the
time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained earnings.
It is not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit
or loss as other income.

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses.
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Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly
probable and the disposal group is available for immediate
sale in its present condition. The Group must be committed
to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the
date of classification.

Disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at
the lower of the disposal group’s previous carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group (i.e.
the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group) that either has
been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and which
represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the component meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, if
earlier. It also occurs when the component is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the statement of profit or loss,
which comprises:

— The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the
disposal, of the disposal group constituting the
discontinued operation.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to
be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from the sale of electronic products and medical
equipment are recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods have been shipped to
the customer’s specific location (delivery). Following
delivery, the customer has full discretion over the channel
and price to sell the goods, has the primary responsibility
when on selling the goods and bears the risks of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. A receivable
is recognised by the Group when the goods are delivered
to the customer as this represents the point in time at
which the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as
only the passage of time is required before payment is due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

Revenue from catering service is recognised immediately
after the services are rendered.

Management fee, consultancy fee and commission are
recognised when the services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.

(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

(i)

(i)

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits, and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining
a qualifying asset. Effective 1 January 2019, any specific
borrowing that remain outstanding after the related asset
is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the
general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate
on general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
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Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint arrangements, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to
be recovered through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model of the Group whose business objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred
tax for such investment properties are measured based on
the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of
the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.
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The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and
where an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.
If this is the case, recoverable amount is determined for the
CGU to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal of the individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are computed
using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset/CGU whose
impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against the
goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the other
assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the recoverable
amount caused by changes in estimates are credited to
profit or loss to the extent that they reverse the impairment
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase.
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The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
investments in debt instruments that are measured at
amortised cost or at FVTOCI, trade receivables and loans
to other parties. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit
risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
Forward-looking information considered includes the
future prospects of the industries in which the Group’s
debtors operate, obtained from economic expert reports,
financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-
tanks and other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s
core operations.
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Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

—  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

— significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i)  the financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit
risk when the asset has external credit rating of
“investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of “performing”.
Performing means that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there is no past due amounts.
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Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

FERRAEEM (&)

AEETFERERRAABREERR
B ANIE LT RRENE R
W BIBIE FT AR X AR L BESDTE X
BT EA M ERERRAE LT

BHANESR

R BERRRAME TIIREN
FEMRIE— AR R U A - AR ER
REAMEERRERMS - T
BRERENEM -

- MXBZHUFEREBIAO:
%

- ABEKRKANERRES
MERRBEHATAAEE
AEBRA(BEARE)E
BUE R (REt AR ERAH
EfEMAm)

Eim AT AR - AERER
RiieREERRBB/IOX 8
BEEOEMN  BREAKEBRES
PAERRHENREE RSB ENE
BRISEAER - AlERI

Annual Report %k 2019



For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

—  the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or
in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over
two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. Any
recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.
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Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the
previous reporting period, but determines at the current
reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting
date, except for assets for which simplified approach was
used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

When it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events
after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made the following judgements that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements (apart from those involving estimates, which
are dealt with below).

(a) Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the directors have reviewed the Group’s investment
properties portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties are not held under a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in
determining the Group’s deferred tax for investment
properties, the directors have adopted the presumption
that investment properties measured using the fair value
model are recovered through sale.
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(b) Business model assessment

(©

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends
on the results of the SPPI and the business model test. The
Group determines the business model at a level that
reflects how groups of financial assets are managed
together to achieve a particular business objective. This
assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant
evidence including how the performance of the assets is
evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that
affect the performance of the assets and how these are
managed and how the managers of the assets are
compensated. The Group monitors financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI that are
derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the
reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are
consistent with the objective of the business for which the
asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Group’s continuous
assessment of whether the business model for which the
remaining financial assets are held continues to be
appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has
been a change in business model and so a prospective
change to the classification of those assets. No such
changes were required during the periods presented.

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 3, ECL are measured as an allowance
equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for
stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when
its credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a
significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the
credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Group
takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable
and supportable forward looking information.
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(d) Determining the lease term

In determining the lease term at the commencement date
for leases that include renewal options exercisable by the
Group, the Group evaluates the likelihood of exercising the
renewal options taking into account all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive for the
Group to exercise the option, including favourable terms,
leasehold improvements undertaken and the importance
of that underlying asset to the Group’s operation.

Generally, periods covered by an extension option in other
properties leases have not been included in the lease
liability because the Group could replace the assets without
significant cost or business disruption. See note 21 for
further information.

The lease term is reassessed when there is a significant
event or significant change in circumstance that is within
the Group’s control. During the current financial year, no
lease term has been reassessed.
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The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Fair value of certain assets involve valuation technique

The fair values of certain land and building, right-of-use
assets and investment properties as set out in note 7(b),
note 20, note 21 and note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively involve valuation techniques.
When applying valuation techniques, various assumptions
and generally accepted methodologies were used to derive
the fair values. Any changes in these assumptions can
significantly affect the estimate of the fair value of the
underlying assets and liabilities.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31

December 2019 was HK$30,000,000 (2018:
HK$30,000,000).
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(b)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgment and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of value
in use, the net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and
(3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the assets belongs. Changing the
assumptions and estimates, including the discount rates or
the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2019 was
approximately HK$32,960,000 (2018: HK$51,904,000) and
HK$62,520,000 (2018: HK$Nil) respectively.
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(©

(d)

Intangible assets and amortisation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related amortisation for the Group’s intangible assets. The
useful lives of intangible assets (except trademarks) are
assessed to be finite, based on the expected usage and
technical obsolescence from the changes in the market
demands or services output from the assets. Intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortised over the
expected useful economic lives and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible assets may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for the intangible assets with
a finite useful life are reviewed by the management at least
at the end of each reporting period.

The carrying amount of intangible assets as at 31 December
2019 was approximately HK$Nil (2018: HK$NiD).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made. During the year, HK$1,300,000 (2018: HK$566,000)
of income tax was charged to profit or loss based on the
estimated profit from continuing operations.
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(e)

®

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the CGU to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. The carrying amount of
goodwill at the end of the reporting period was HK$Nil
after the disposal of the Group’s catering services CGU.
(2018: HK$18,814,000). No impairment loss was recognised
during the year (2018: HK$NIl). Details of the impairment
loss calculation are provided in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Impairment of trade receivables and loans employees
and to other parties

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables and loans to
employees and other parties based on the credit risk of
trade receivables and loans to employees and other parties.
The amount of the impairment loss based on ECL model is
measured as the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition. Where the future cash
flows are less than expected, or being revised downward
due to changes in facts and circumstances, a material
impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of trade
receivables is HK$131,052,000 (net of allowance for trade
receivables of HK$1,860,000) (2018: HK$155,761,000 (net
of allowance for trade receivables of HK$444,000)).
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®

(9)

(h)

Impairment of trade receivables and loans employees
and to other parties (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of loans to
employees and other parties is HK$51,324,000 (net of
allowance for loans to employees and other parties of
HK$60,489,000) (2018: HK$75,428,000 (net of allowance
for loans for employees and other parties of
HK$5,929,000)).

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based on
the ageing and estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the allowance amount
involves judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome in future is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of inventories
and allowance charge/write-back in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.

As at 31 December 2019, accumulated allowance for slow-
moving inventories was approximately HK$17,306,000
(2018: HK$13,088,000).

Product warranty provisions

Product warranty provisions of the Group is recognised
based on past experience of level of repairs and returns,
discounted to their present value as appropriate.
Movement of the product warranty provisions during the
year is set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The carrying amount of product warranty provisions as at
31 December 2019 was approximately HK$2,059,000 (2018:
HK$2,498,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(@) Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as
most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in the functional currencies of the
Group entities. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group’s loss for the year and equity that would have
been arisen if foreign exchange rates to which the Group
has significant exposure at the end of reporting period had
changed at that day, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant.
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— N\
Foreign
currency
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(depreciate)
HK$°000 by HK$000
INEFE
THET (R1E) TET

(4,274) 5% (5,419
4,274 (5%) 5,419
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly through
its investments in equity securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk and return profiles. The
Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
securities quoted on the Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the
reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower (2018: 10%
higher/lower), other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2019 would increase/decrease by
HK$1,340,000 (2018: increase/decrease by HK$2,719,000)
as a result of the changes in fair value of equity
investments at FVTOCI.

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
receivables) and from its financing activities, including
deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign
exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents and derivative financial assets is limited
because the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions with high credit-rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit
subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management.
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within 30-
120 days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances
that are more than 3 months past due are requested to
settle all outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer
bases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kre B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HBRRER(E)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) © =ERRE)
Trade receivables (Continued) EWE SRR (&)
The following table provides information about the Group’s TREINEEAEBR T —NF
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at +=—A=+—H 7¥<?§ﬂ@1§f§ﬂﬁﬁ&
31 December 2019: EWE SERTEHEEEENE
o
2019
—B-hEF
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHIE R R REAE E iR RE
% HK$°000 HK$’000
TET FET
Current (not past due) BIHER (R0 HE) 0.07% 108,817 81
1-90 days past due #HEI1E 90 H 0.82% 15,430 127
91-180 days past due BHEINE180 H 1.57% 4,216 66
More than 180 days past due #8180 HIA 1.87% 1,917 36
130,380 310
Specific provisions (note) BRI (BT aE) 61% 2,532 1,550
132,912 1,860
2018
—\&F
Expected  Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHAE B = AR 4B 1E Eria e
% HK$'000 HK$000
TATT AT
Current (not past due) BIHA (R HER) 0.07% 113,124 80
1-90 days past due #HEI1E 90 H 0.78% 40,411 317
91-180 days past due BHINFE180 H 1.50% 313 5
More than 180 days past due #HI180 A LA £ 1.78% 2,357 42
156,205 444
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z — &

6.

B IR

—NE+ZAZ+—EIHEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

©

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

Note: For trade receivables relating to accounts which have known insolvency,

they are assessed individually for impairment allowance in order to
determine specific provisions.

The Group has certain concentration of credit risk, as the
Group’s largest three debtors account for 45.1% (2018:
32.4%) of trade receivables as at 31 December 2019.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables during the year is as follows:

6.

R EIE (E)

(© FEERRGE)
FE i B 5 BR K (AF)
BHBBREERNBE=FNERE
BERAE - ZFULEREBER

B SE ME A EAR - BRI
KA ERREKKRIBTA FHH
REBEARR < P IR BR ) 22 1T 5

L /A
R

Hit - SRERENEEERPWEKE SRR

F o GRREREETERNFG  UE
TR RIEE

AEEAZETEESTRAR - R
ARAKE=ZREBAME_-F
—NF+-A=+—HNEKES

R X B451%( = T — )\ F:
32.4%) °
FR - REWEZEIFUREBER

ZEBINT ¢

2019 AONRS]

—E—hEF —\F

HK$°000 HK$000

FHExT T

At 1 January n—A—H 444 3,601

Impairment losses recognised FAERREEE

for the year 1,550 148
Bad debt written off MEHERR = (141)

Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR (134) =
Reversal #[o] - (3,164)

At 31 December R+=—A=+—~H 1,860 444
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

Trade receivables (Continued)

The following significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of trade receivables contributed to the increase in
the loss allowance during 2019:

— origination of new trade receivables net of those
settled resulted in an increase in loss allowance of
HK$NIl;

— increase in days past due over 90 days resulted in an
increase in loss allowance of HK$Nil;

— a write-off of trade receivables with a gross carrying
amount of HK$Nil resulted in a decrease in loss
allowance of HK$Nil;

— individual assessment on impairment allowance for
known insolvency accounts resulted in an increase in
specific loss allowance of HK$1,550,000; and

—  subsidiary with loss allowance was disposed of

resulted in a decrease in loss allowance of
HK$134,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HEEKREE(E)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) © =ERRE)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

All financial assets measured at amortised cost other than
loans to certain other parties are considered to have low
credit risk, and the loss allowance recognised during the
period was therefore limited to 12-month expected losses.
For loan to certain other parties, lifetime expected losses
were recognised if credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition.

Movement in the loss allowance for financial assets
measured at amortised cost during the year is as follows:

BBERAIIRNERMEE

AREBIRE AT R A B
BE (RS EEMALTERERIN K
BREERRE  Rit - HIRCHE
ROEBRBEBRE AT —EAESR
Eﬂé - LA EH M AT ERM

- (5 B R B A M)A FERR LA SR
"Pai‘%?ﬂﬂ AEES SR AN
JEiE o

FA REEKRATIENEREE
BERREBEFHNT

Loans to

other parties

EmEMALTER

HK$000

FET

At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-N\F—H—H 947
Impairment losses recognised for the year FRNERBEEE 4,982
At 31 December 2018 R=Z—NE+=—H=+—H 5,929
Impairment losses recognised for the year FAERREEE 54,560
At 31 December 2019 R e s = e A 60,489
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

Certain cash deposits and equity investments at FVTOCI

The Group has equity investment at FVTOCI and certain
cash deposit placed in the margin accounts of brokerage
firms. The brokerage firms are subsidiaries of Hong Kong
listed companies hence the directors consider the credit-
rating is acceptable. The margin account enables the
brokerage firm to re-pledge the Group’s securities
collateral (if any) in the margin account and use it as
collateral to secure borrowings for the brokerage firm’s
use. If the brokerage firm becomes insolvent, the banks
may liquidate the securities collateral re-pledged to it by
the brokerage firm in order to discharge the brokerage
firm’s indebtedness. As a result, the Group may not be able
to recover all the securities in the margin account. This is
commonly known as “pooling risk” associated with the
margin account. As at the end of reporting period, the
Group is not exposed to any pooling risk as the Group’s
investment securities and cash deposits held by the
brokerage firms have not been re-pledged.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kre B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HBRRER(E)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) ) "HELRR(E)
The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted AEECRBENENIENTERS
cash flows of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows: MEIHESTWOT

Less than Between Between

1 year and 1and 2 2and 5

on demand years years
1FUT

R n¥ N¥
ERE 1225 2855 BEBSF #st
HK$000 HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$:000
TET TET TET TET TET

At 31 December2019 R=-ZB—h%&E

tT=ZR=+—H

Trade payables BB SR 54,422 - - - 54,422
Accruals and other EREAREM

payables e RUR 157,360 - - - 157,360
Lease liabilities HEaRE 27,228 29,851 13,401 - 70,480
Amount due to a director [Eft—LEEZKIE 204 - - - 204
Borrowings B 27,241 - - - 27,241
License rights payable i fERIEX 5,968 - - - 5,968

At 31 December 2018 R=-ZB—N\&F

+t=RA=t-H

Trade payables BB SR 76,474 - - - 76,474
Accruals and other HRERAKHEAM

payables FANECE 170,119 - - = 170,119
Borrowings & 43,157 - - - 43,157
License rights pavable 52k 4,108 - - - 4,108

(e) Interest rate risk (&) FIE[EPR

The Group’s loans to other parties and borrowings bear REBEMEMATEREESRE
interests at fixed interest rates and therefore are subject to EAME L - BUtEEEA T ERNE
fair value interest rate risks. BB o
The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its ANEEEET EIRITERE AN X E
bank deposits. These deposits bear interests at variable e o =T XK B - F
rates varied with the then prevailing market condition. RIZERETIIME ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kre B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HHEEREIR(E)
(e) Interest rate risk (Continued) (e) FIRmER(4E)
At 31 December 2019, it is estimated that a general RZZE-NF+-_A=+—H" &
increase/(decrease) of 100 basis points in interest rates, FTEHMESERFITEMBERT
with all other variables held constant, would have Mt FIRERE FH (T BE) 100 &
decreased/(increased) the Group’s loss for the year and A2 AEENFEEERRTS
accumulated losses as follows: BERD, /(i) I -
Increase/(decrease) 2019 2018
in interest rates FM=EEFH (TFH) —ZE-hEF —F—)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tz F&T
100 basis points 100 Z 24 1,694 509
(100) basis points (100) & 24 (1,694) (509)
The sensitivity analysis above indicates the impact on the EXBBE ST RBEERF R EE)
Group’s loss for the year and equity that would have arisen FEFEMEWARMASL - M
assuming that there is an annualised impact on interest HAEEFE BB ESEXNN
income and expense by a change in interest rates. The Z.pMhikeF R —E%EH#
analysis has been performed on the same basis throughout 1T e
the year.
(f)  Categories of financial instruments at 31 December " WT+ZA=+—HBmemIAER
2019 PAONES]
—E-NEF —ZT—N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THxT FH&TT
Financial assets: ERMEE :
Financial assets measured at bize: £ ID @A =10
amortised cost EMEE 442,618 619,107
Financial assets measured BAFEFAREMBEERERN
at FVTOCI SREE
Equity investments feiERE 13,397 27,187
Financial liabilities: sREE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 1R S4A AT BRI S RI B & 238,512 290,968
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their respective
fair values.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The following
disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy
that categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the Group
can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs:  inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

AEBRGE MR RAH DR
BEMERABENREERESS
B R HERS °

RFHERTHE2EEZRNGERESR
FREPHEBEMSIHERREMN
X2 B - ARERBATRFES
RABRBELFEFTE  HKARE
RFENHERTNBAEBRI /=

FH

S1BHAKR : AEERFEATR
Bz ERAERAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kre B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. ANFEF=(E)
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December: @ MtTZA=+t—"HAFESHREE
R

Fair value measurements using: Total
ATFEFEFMANER : st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2019

F1E %28 B3IE —B-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FERT FERT FET

Recurring fair value EEMHAFENE

measurements:
Investment property REYHE
Commercial unit [HEX: A
— Hong Kong (note 22)  — & (K12 22) - 30,000 - 30,000
Financial assets THREE
Equity investments at R AFEF AHM
FVTOCI (note 27) 2 R B R
B& (f:E27)
— Equity securities listed —RA&E#® Fmz
in Hong Kong N 13,397 - - 13,397
13,397 30,000 - 43,397
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. ANFEF=(E)
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December: @ MW+TZA=1t—"HAFESHREE
(Continued) MEEE : (8)

Fair value measurements using: Total
ATEHEFBRSMR it
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2018

£1E F2E B3I —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THET TET

Recurring fair value EEMQATFEFE:

measurements:
Investment property REYHE
Commercial unit BEEL
— Hong Kong (note 22)  — &% (ff:#22) = 30,000 - 30,000
Financial assets THEE
Equity investments at  EATEFAEMEZE
FVTOCI WEBBRERE
(note 27) (BiiF27)
— Equity securities listed —REH FH2
in Hong Kong R A 75 5 27,187 - - 27,187
27,187 30,000 = 57,187
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

7.

168

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

®)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group and
valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2019:

The Group’s management is responsible for the fair value
measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial
reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value
measurements. The management reports directly to the
Board of Directors for these fair value measurements.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the management and the Board of Directors at
least twice a year.

For level 2 fair value measurements, the Group will
normally engage external valuation experts with the
recognised professional qualifications and recent
experience to perform the valuations.

Level 2 fair value measurements

Valuation technique
fHERTT

Commercial units located
in Hong Kong
R BRI R ENL

Market comparable
approach

[EECLIE 442907

During the two years, there were no changes in valuation
technigues used.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kre B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

8. REVENUE 8. A
Disaggregation of revenue WA 5 Hr
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by RFEEREFELEEBIZETEZEML
major products or service line for the year from continuing RFGEESHERPEHNBRADFNT -

operations is as follows:

2019 2018
—g-nE  —FNE
HK$’000 HK$000

FHET FHIT
(Re-presented)
(#&E5))

Revenue from contracts with customers EBE B FHREXERFE 155

within the scope of HKFRS 15 BHERANEFESHKRA
Disaggregated by major products BE EERIRIFIEE DIF
or service lines
— Sales of goods —HEEm 618,978 666,611
— Provision of catering service —RHEKRE 10,916 14,871
629,894 681,482
Revenue from other sources R B HA R
Rental income HeUA 54 =
629,948 681,482
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kre B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

8. REVENUE (Continued) 8. WA(E&E)
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and AEBMUE T B E RS R0 E R IZ
services and at a point in time in the following major product H—ISHBEES R MRS E AW

lines and geographical regions:

Electronic Marketing and Securities and
manufacturing distribution of other assets

services communications products investment Total
E7HERE EHRAHEAER RERHMEERE @it
2019 2019 2 2019 2018 2019

ZE-NE \E  ZB-NE £ ZB-pE “T\E ZE-AE
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 $ HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR BT FiEn AT FiEn iy TR

Primary geographical markets TEHETS

— The People’s Republic of ~hEAREANE

China (the “PRC") ([hE])

(including Hong Kong) (@%@/ﬁ) 102,487 105,177 85 - 10,970 14,871 113,542 120,048
— The United States of -ZH2ARE

America (the “U.S.A") L) 31,934 118,123 34,424 36,775 - - 66,358 154,898
— Switzerland -t 242,053 196,631 - - - L 242,053 196,631
— France —%E 56,800 44,327 - = - E 56,800 44,327
— Poland —%# 3,231 4,619 - o - - 3,231 4,619
— United Kingdom —RE 26,460 25,740 - - - - 26,460 25,740
— Others —Eft 133,001 153,270 1,967 6,954 - - 135,058 160,224
Segment revenue AHRA 596,056 647,887 36,476 43,729 10,970 14871 643,502 706,487
Intersegment revenue BEETON
—The USA %8 (13,554) (25,005) - - - P (13,554) (25,005)
Revenue from extemal customers RESNREFRA 582,502 622,682 36,476 43729 10970 14871 629,948 681,482

Timing of revenue recognition WAREZES

Products transferred at ERRE-HEY

apoint in time & 582,502 622,882 36,476 43,729 10,970 14,871 629,948 681,482
Products and services BEAERHER

transferred over time TRk - - - - - - - -
Total @t 582,502 622,882 36,476 43729 10,970 14871 629,948 681,482
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

The Group has three operating segments as follows:

EMS - Electronic manufacturing services
Distribution of - Marketing and distribution of
Communications communications products
Products
Securities and Other - Equity investment, property
Assets Investment agency service and other
operations

Two operations from securities and other assets investment
(Provision of Catering Services CGU and Sales of Medical
Equipments) were disposed of in the current year. The segment
information reported does not include any amounts from the
operation of Sales of Medical Equipments that is classified as a
discontinued operation, which are described in note 17 and note
43(e).

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology
and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as those described in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements. Segment profits or losses do not include interest
income on loans to other parties, gain on disposal of a subsidiary,
interest on loans from independent third party/parties and
unallocated expenses. Segment assets do not include
unallocated bank and cash balances, unallocated prepayments,
deposits, other receivables and other assets, loans to other
parties and deferred tax assets. Segment liabilities do not include
borrowings and unallocated accruals and other payables.
Segment non-current assets do not include loans to employees
and other parties, equity investments at FVTOCI and deferred
tax assets.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as if the
sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current market
prices.

AREB=_HZEDEWT :

ETRERS — ETRERH

NEBAER — EHROHBAER

BEELEML - BERE - MERE
BERE IR R E AR

AFEEEHERSNEMEERENW
BEB(RHESGRBRSELSBMRE
BREHEE) FEWMNHBERTEE
ENBEACKIEEEBNERREN
EEBHNTMSE - *ﬁf‘a@éﬂ%@ﬁllﬁéw
17 BB EE43C) ©

ARG B RS D BB R AR E m &R
BHORBEERBENL - SOMBLE
B RAZEEBEZ TRMNKIM RS
SHIR R

KES Mg quIBZ R ERAR S BT ISR MY
AT ENRER - S MEEL T BEM
HiALTERZMBWA - HE—FHH
BLoRzWE REBIUE=AZER
MENERDERX - HEPEEL T
BARADBERITRB A& - RO BEER

B e HMBKRFEBEREME
E REMATERRELEHBEE -
SEBEBELTBEEEEARRDLIELR
ERREMEBEMNKIE - DEFERDEE
WABEREEREMALTER  EA
FAEET A A2 WS 8 IRER & KR
FETHIREE

AL B E R BT BPE HE R E R
AR BN E =T iHEHEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kre B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

9.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. HEER(E)
(a) Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets (@) BERBFHELEXRBHORE D

HAHER  BERABHER

and liabilities from continuing operations:

Distribution of  Securities and
Communications Other Assets
EMS Products Investment Total

BETHE 2 B HHERHEM
R Em BERE )
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TER TER TER TER

Year ended 31 December HBE-E-HE

2019 TZA=+-ALEE
Revenue from external REIMREPYA

customers 582,502 36,476 10,970 629,948
Intersegment revenue HEBRBA 13,554 - - 13,554
Segment profit/(loss) AEEF/ (B8 29,289 (10,487) (101,961) (83,159)
Interest revenue FIEUA 1,210 4 499 1,713
Interest expense FERZ (1,581) (45) (2,766) (4,392)
Depreciation e (25,515) (354) (25,991) (51,860)
Other material non-cash EERERS

items: JBH -

Addition of license R R

rights payable - 2,713 - 2,713

Additions to segment AEEREEELR

non-current assets 8,146 - 1,058 9,204

As at 31 December 2019 RZE-hE

tTZA=t-H
Segment assets NBEE 411,877 20,487 236,408 668,772
Segment liabilities SBERE 237,663 32,015 41,599 311,277
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets
and liabilities from continuing operations: (Continued)

Year ended 31 December
2018
Revenue from external
customers
Intersegment revenue
Segment profit/(loss)
Interest revenue
Interest expense
Depreciation
Other material non-cash
items:
Net gain on disposal of
subsidiaries
Waive of license rights
payable (note 10)
Additions to segment
non-current assets

As at 31 December 2018

Segment assets
Segment liabilities

BE_ZE-N\%F
+-A=+-HALEE
REINEPIA

AEREA
EER/(E8)
FIEMA
FlERE
il
HtEAERE
1BA :
HEMBRRZ
Wz e
HTEER SEE
(HizE10)
ABERBEE
R

RIZE-N\f
+=B=+-H
PEEE
AEEE

EMS

B7RE

R
HK$'000
TAET

622,882
25,005
36,330

404
(60)
(15,278)

1,947

30,653

375,674
229,985

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

9. DEER(E)
(2) BBERARBELEBHRED
mﬂi%ﬁ‘ééﬁﬁﬁméﬂ:
(1®)

Distribution of
Communications
Products
A

Em

HK$'000

T

43,729

1,281

(286)
®)

1,857

27,703
28,612

Securities and
Other Assets
Investment
H R A
BERE
HK$:000
THT
(CEIEENE))
(& =5)

14,871

(75,742)
9

(2,102)

10,486

373,898
9,223

Total

st

HK$:000

%/ 5L
(Re-presented)
(& =351)

681,482
25,005
(38,131)

415
(346)
(17,385)

1,947

1,857

41,139

777,275
267,820
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kre B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. PEHEBER(E)
(b) Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or loss: (b) 7 EBUTA R s F) sk s 1B B0 ¥ BR -
2019 2018
—g-nE B )\F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET T
(Re-presented)
(Fe=3%1))
Revenue KA
Total revenue of reportable segments e  ZBUL A 4258 643,502 706,487
Elimination of intersegment revenue 2 2P AL 54 (13,554) (25,005)
Consolidated revenue from REFRBEKEEER
continuing operations ERE A 629,948 681,482
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
(Re-presented)
(Fe=3%1))
Profit or loss AR EE
Total loss of reportable segments WEDEPEEARE (83,159) (38,131)
Intersegment elimination 7 EREHE 8 707 (29D
Unallocated amounts: RAOBLEHE -
Interest income on loans to mMEMALTERZ
other parties FEHA 6,631 8,166
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMRB AR Z W - 700
Interest on loans from independent  KEBIE=7H
third party/parties BERAE (2,417) (2,432)
Other unallocated head office Hip R DB AMER &
and corporate expenses NI (85,050) (33,769)

Consolidated loss before tax from REBFECEER 2K
continuing operations Haltr A EE (163,288) (65,757)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kre B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. HEWEE

(
(¢) Reconciliations of segment assets and liabilities: (c) DEHEENBERNSE:

2018
—g-nE  —EF)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000

FHR TR
(Re-presented)
(K&&=751)

Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments  $REHEPEELE(E 668,772 777,275
Assets relating to discontinued EHRKRIEEEEB CEE

operation - 91,268
Elimination of intersegment assets BRI E E (21,435) (23,453)
Elimination of unrealised profits IR B TE 5 KK B (905) (1,613)
Unallocated amounts: ROBLERE

Bank and cash balances RITRIBSER 33,568 39

Prepayments, deposits, other FERTFRIE - e~ Hi

receivables and other assets FEW B R EMEE 26,693 12,629

Loans to other parties mEMALTER 26,209 72,779

Deferred tax assets EERIAE E 1,938 1,938
Consolidated total assets MEEERE 734,840 930,862
Liabilities 8f&
Total liabilities of reportable segments #4555 Ep&E ELE(HE 311,277 267,820
Liabilities relating to discontinued BB EXKZEE

operation - 74,779
Elimination of intersegment liabilities £ & & &K 5 (21,435) (23,453)
Unallocated amounts: ROBLEEE -

Accruals and other payables TEIRE A R E A FE TR 13,985 8,884

Borrowings TEN= 20,000 20,000
Consolidated total liabilities sABEEE 323,827 348,030
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kre B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

9.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. HHER(E)
(d) Geographical information: (d) HEER :
The Group’s revenue from continuing operations from REERERBELEEBRINEE
external customers by location of operations and PR ETE T B 5 A9 WA A 3%
information about its non-current assets by location are FrEEl D 2 3R B B EEEE K
detailed below: ESITONNE
2019 AONRS]
—E-hF —ZE)\F
HK$°000 HK$000
FHT FHETT
(Re-presented)
(#2&E7)
Revenue WA
The PRC (including Hong Kong) FE(BEEE) 113,542 120,048
The U.S.A. ESE 52,804 129,893
Switzerland st 242,053 196,631
France JEE 56,800 44,327
Poland Vit o 3,231 4,619
United Kingdom B 26,460 25,740
Others Efb 135,058 160,224
Consolidated total RE KRR 629,948 681,482
2019 AONES]
—E-NEF —E—)\F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
F#T FHIT
(Re-presented)
(ReE5)
Non-current assets FREBEE
The PRC (including Hong Kong) PR (BIEEE) 134,139 112,900
Consolidated total IRE MR 134,139 112,900
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\‘/T\

B IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

9.

10.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9.

(©)]

Revenue from major customers:

An analysis of revenue from major customers which
account for 10 percent or more of the Group’s revenue is as

(©)

AL
|:|

Br(E)
KEEXEEFHWA

RAREBRAI0SA FHFER
FUWADHTT

follows:

2019 PAONRS]
—ZE—-hEF —E-N\EFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FETT

EMS segment EFRERE S
Customer A ZPA 257,649 306,677
Customer B ZFB 117,363 110,492

INVESTMENT AND OTHER INCOME 10. #®EREMKA

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FAT
(Re-presented)
(re=3%1))
Continuing operations BESEER
Interest income on: FIEWAZKRE :
Bank deposits IRITER 122 146
Bank fixed deposits RITEHFR 1,117 269
Loans to employees and other parties  [AfEE R EMATER 7,105 8,166
Total interest income FBWABE 8,344 8,581
Consultancy fee income = ON - 2,473
Government subsidy BT B 250 -
Reimbursement from suppliers i R S R R E O R S
for testing defective products 1,658 209
Sale of scrap materials HERER 166 12
Waive of license rights payable RN SRR E - 1,857
Written off of trade payables FETE 5 IR S EH 455 -
Other EAh 1,518 2,000
12,391 15,132
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kre B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

1. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES N Hadss KEE
2019 PAONRS
—B-nE T )N\%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FAT
(Re-presented)
(Fe=3%1)
Continuing operations BEREER
Gain on disposals of property, HEME - BE REE W=
plant and equipment - 88
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz W - 2,699
Gain on modification of tenancy agreement {E:TH &3 ~ Wk 6 -
Net foreign exchange gains I W U F 58 3,930 6,347
3,936 9,134
12. FINANCE COSTS 12. BB KA
2019 PAONRS]
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FExT FABT
(Re-presented)
(7 =E%1))
Continuing operations BESEER
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEaEZF B 4,390 -
Interest on loans from independent KEBILE=FHZ
third party/parties BHAE 2,417 2,432
Other interest expenses HAwF B H % 2 346

6,809 2,778
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kre B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 13. PSR (%)
Income tax relating to continuing operations has been EERBEBECEEBNMEHRERIEBRRE
recognised in profit or loss as follows: RSN

2019 AONES]
—E-hE —EN\E
HK$°000 HK$000

THET T
(Re-presented)
(R&E5)

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BRI — HABFEH

Provision for the year FERE 2,225 3,330
Over-provision in prior years BATERERE (1,218) =
1,007 3,330
Current tax — Overseas BIHATR I — B oh
Provision for the year FERBE 292 703
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR 1 <
293 703
Deferred tax (note 39) EIERRIE (M5 39) - (4,599)
1,300 (566)
Under the two-tiered profits tax regime, profits tax rate for the BIEREHFESHEE - REBZEMN
first HK$2 million of assessable profits of qualifying corporations B E R ENE 20000008 T EER
established in Hong Kong will be lowered to 8.25%, and profits i ) B T 15 7 3K #5121 18 8.25% A 7 3K
above that amount will be subject to the tax rate of 16.5%. R - MR A R BB A FE SR i B S 4%
16.5% K9 Tt R BH
PRC Enterprises Income Tax has been provided at a rate of 25% AR R 25% T RET IR FT S R B
(2018: 25%). (ZZE—N\%F :25%) °
Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated ﬁ’rlﬂﬂﬁfﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ?&ﬂﬁ’]ﬁﬁ%% T 7K
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group B EMERRERTE - RIBEEH
operates, based on existing legislation, interpretation and fﬁﬁxﬂﬁﬂ - BEREIFE

practices in respect thereof.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kre B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued) 13, FTSEIRY(Ee) (&)
The reconciliation between the income tax expense/(credit) and TR (K ) BBk B Al 518 Ik A
the product of loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong EENEHMEAAEL 2 8BmNEY
Profits Tax rate is as follows: BRIAT -

2019 2018
—®-nE T N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000

FHET T
(Re-presented)
(F&&E751)

Loss before tax (from continuing operations) &8 Al E38 (K BB K S5 5%) (163,288) (65,757)

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BEBFSHEE165%

of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) ZE—)\F 1 16.5%)
FTE2HIE (27,107) (10,240)

Tax effect of income that is not taxable — B/ERHIU AN T2 (1,903) (9,403)
Tax effect of expenses that are OGIE YR8 Lok

not deductible 24,668 8,282
Tax effect of temporary differences RIEREEERNUETE

not recognised 586 29
Tax effect of tax concession EEVRENBBHLE (2,002) (2,501)
Over-provision in prior years BEFEREBRE (1,218) =
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses ERBTRERTEEED

not previously recognised Mg (772) (528)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERT BB E 12,936 12,824
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries B QBT & = B2 (3,428) 1,371
Others Hitb (460) (400)
Income tax expense/(credit) PSR, (%)

(relating to continuing operations) (BB EES) 1,300 (566)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z — &

/\‘/T\

—NE+ZAZ+—EIHEE

14, LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 14.

The Group’s loss for the year from continuing operations is
stated after charging/(crediting) the followings:

Auditor’s remuneration
— audit services
— other services

Business entertainment
Cost of goods sold (Note (1))
Cost of inventories sold
Allowance on inventories
Reversal of allowance on inventories
(Note (i)

Depreciation on property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Legal and professional fee
Other income and other gains:
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
(note 43(a) & (b))

Gain on modification of tenancy agreement

Reversal of impairment losses on
trade receivables
Other operating expenses:

Loss on disposal of property, plant and

equipment
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
(note 43(c) & (d))

Research and development expenditure

(Note (iii))
Operating lease charges
Land and building

ZHEI 2
— Bk
— EA IR

EBRE
EERA (K@)
BEFEMRA

FERE
FERERE
e O))

EREEENE
FEREXER
A B A M
HEWE  BERRE
W
HEMRBLRZ WS
(FaE43(a) & b))
BRI HE s < et
FEW E 5 SR FOR E B 1R [

Hig & & -
HEME - BB REE
Z B8
HEWBRAREE
(Bt 43(c) (a))
MERFAES
(B &z Gin))
REHEER
T R IEF

FEREXBZFEEBR

AEBEBBELEEB 2FEEBREN
B/ GEA AT EHEHIMAT :

2019 2018
—E-hF — AN
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
(Re-presented)
(FeE751)
1,567 1,600
250 210
1,817 1,810
7,608 4,681
480,764 526,899
14,256 10,409
(10,038) (12,828)
484,982 524,480
24,792 17,385
32,461 -
10,149 12,564
= (88)
- (2,699)
6 =
- (612)
2,178 -
19,193 S7.
17,664 19,863
6,647 41,529
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/\‘/T\

B IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

14.

182

LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
(Continued)

Notes:

0]

@i

(i)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, cost of goods sold includes
approximately HK$110,979,000 (2018: HK$122,670,000) relating to employee
benefits expense and depreciation, amounts of which are also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above and note 15 for each of
these types of expenses.

The Group makes allowance on inventories under respective aged criteria in
different segments. The reversal of such allowance represents the amount of
inventories subsequently used in production or sold.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, research and development
expenditure includes approximately HK$17,437,000 (2018: HK$19,761,000)
relating to employee benefits expense, amounts of which are set out in note 15
to the consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Employee benefits expense
(including directors’ emoluments):

BERMAX
(BRESEM) -

R4

et

0]

(i)

(ii)

(==

BREXK e FEEE(B)
BE-T-NFH-AS+—ALFE  BER

ZKE%EBﬁﬁ;hﬂﬁaﬁfi&%ﬁ%f{mowaooo
B (=T — \F 1226700008 7T) * Z5 &
BRI A EX R 15 R R SRR M 48
e

AEEHERAE B ERNRRENNFEED
B - BEEDEEEANEENHENTES

BE-_T-NAFT-A=+—BLEFE HER
ﬁﬁ%i&@?ﬁﬁﬁa{iahﬁ B 3% 4917,437,000%
L (ZZ—//\fF 119,761,000 7C) * ZESEH
RERE MMM S

1@ 2

2019
—B-hE

2018

— )\
HK$'000
TR

HK$°000
FET

Salaries, bonuses and allowances e~ TEAL MoREh 199,353 233,606
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3Rk #@FEH 214 5% 12,977 13,488
212,330 247,094
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

15.  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Continued)
Five highest paid individuals:

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included none (2018: none) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented in note 16(a). The emoluments
of the remaining five (2018: five) individuals are set out below:

BB @R (&)
RARBHAL

AEE AEBRERSHFALTHE
EX(ZZE-N\F: ER) EMERXH
dwo(@oMF2I - B THAE(ZF
—N\F: BR)ESHFATOMSEIIM

T
2019 PAONES]
—E-NEF —F—)\F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
T F&T
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e - A RERY 32,492 32,541
Retirement benefit scheme contributions ERIEFIE 21 2k 287 338
32,779 32,879

The emoluments fell within the following band:

HeBR THIEE :

Number of individuals

AB
2019 2018
—B-hE —TN\F
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,0017 7T % 4,500,000 7 2 -
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7T % 5,000,000 B 7T = 2
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 %72 2 5,500,000 % 72 - 1
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 7T 6,000,000 72 - 1
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,007 7L % 6,500,000 572 2 -
HK$12,000,001 to HK$12,500,000 12,000,001 7T 2 12,500,000 & 7T 1 =
HK$12,500,001 to HK$13,000,000 12,500,00138 7 £ 13,000,000 7% - i
5 5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 6. EBEHEHMNER
(a) Directors’ emoluments (@) EEHN
The remuneration of every director is set out below: ZEEHMEIIOT

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
RERAES (BRNAAAREREARER) WEARBEARERNHH
Emoluments
paid or
receivable in
respect of
director’s
other services
in connection
Remunerations with the
Employer’s paid or management
contribution  receivable in of the

Estimated toa respect of affairs of the

money retirement accepting Company or

Discretionary value of benefit office Housing  its subsidiary

Salaries bonus other benefits scheme as director allowance  undertaking
REZEE

ERARH

( AEHE

AftERIN EEEK  RERES RENED

fhet &% BAGE  RUBHR RHEAR

ER e BERA EE #E%  ERHEHN HERE  ERNEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TET TiEn TR T TiEn TEx TiEn

Name of director f £3:34
Executive directors HiTEE

Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman) #RB%H (2E) (i) - 91 - - - - - - 91
Mr.Duan Chuanhong ~ BJII4T 54 - 1,000 - - - - - - 1,000
Mr. Xia Xiaobing EpEEE (i) - 22 - - - - - - 2
Mr. Gong Shaoxiang B (iv)

(Former chairman) (FIfF£R) - 582 - - - - - - 582
Mr. Lee ChiHwa Joshua 2B %5%4 v) - 1,455 n - - - - - 1,832
Mr. Shi Xinbiao PHIRE () - 83 - - - - - - 83
Mr. Li Wuhao FRIFEE (vi)) - 1,167 - - - - - - 1,167

Non-executive director ~ ##/7EE

Mr. CaoYuyun ERzEE (viii) 1,167 - - - - - - - 1,167
Indlependent BUHHITEE
Non-executive directors

Mr. Bao Jingiao HEHEE 480 - - - - - - - 480
Mr. Li Huiwu FEREE (ix) 52 - - - - - - - 52
Mr. Wang Guozhen TEERE x) 4 - - - - - - - 44
Mr.Wong ChunHung B4 (x) 148 - - - - - - - 148
Mr. Leung Pok Man 2L (i) 231 - - - - - - - 231
Total for 2019 ZE-nEEH 2,122 5,250 3 - - - - - 7,749
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

16.  BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued) 16, ZH4@&H Mgz (48)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (@) BEH(E)
The remuneration of every director is set out below: ZEEHMEIIDOT

Emoluments

) retirement
Discretionary value of benefit
Salaries bonus  other benefits

bt
i e T Ef G Gl i Eéﬂé
HK$'000 K HK$000 '

BT BT BT FHL

Name of director i £3:54
Executive directors HITEE

Mr. Gong Shaoxiang ZORESE (iv)

(Chairman) (£R) - 1,000 - - E = = 5 1,000
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua  2E% %4 V) - 1,800 400 7 g 3 7 E 2,200
Mr. Duan Chuanhong ~ BJIII %4 - 1,000 1,000 - - - - - 2,000
Mr. Shi Xinbiao kv Vi) 5 1,000 4 S 5 = S 5 1,000

Non-executive director ~ F##/7EE

Mr. CaoYuyun ik (viii) 2,000 - - - - - - - 2,000
Indlependent BUHHITEE

Non-executive directors
Mr. Bao Jingiao HEHEE 480 - - - - - - - 480
Mr.Wong ChunHung %4 (xi) 240 - - - - - - - 240
Mr. Leung Pok Man 2R (i) 240 - - - - - - - 240
Total for 2018 b SO 2,960 4800 1400 g = g = 5 9,160
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued) 16, Z=@F| NaREZS (&)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEEFHM(E)
Notes: Hiat
0) Estimated money value of other benefits include salaries tax paid, rent 0) Hin @AM SR EEREENEE

paid, share options, insurance premium and club memberships. B -BNES BRiE REBRERXSMH
g8
(D) Appointed on 12 July 2019. (i RZZT-—NFLtA+=-AEZRT-
(i) Appointed on 28 November 2019. (i) —ZT-NAF+—A=t+N\BEZE-
(iv)  Resigned on 12 July 2019. (iv) AZE-NELA+ZHEHE -
w) Removed on 17 December 2019. () RZZT—-NF+-A+tAHEER-
(vi)  Resigned on 31 January 2019 ) RZZE-—AF—A=+—HEHITE-
(vii)  Appointed on 6 June 2019 and resigned on 18 November 2019. (vii) ANZE-NFARANBEZARR=T
—hE+—A+\BEHT -

(viii)  Resigned on 29 July 2019. (viii) —E-NEFELARZt+HNBEHE-
(ix)  Appointed on 14 October 2019. ix) RZT-NFT+ATNEEEZET-
x) Appointed on 28 November 2019. ) RZZ—NF+—A=+ \BEZE-
(xi)  Resigned on 12 August 2019. (xi) AZE-NENA+ZBEHE -
(xii)  Removed on 17 December 2019. i)y RZZE—NF+_A+tBHEER-
None of the directors waived any emoluments during the FAN-BEBEEEHREECENE (=
year (2018: Nil). E-N\F:E)-

(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements ) EFENRH  THREHNERE
or contracts =

BB AN AR [ 4 SRR o 5 (AT B

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in

relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company and the
director’s connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

17. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 7. BERIEEEER
On 31 December 2019, the Company entered into a sale and RZBE—NF+_A=+—8 ARQ7F
purchase agreement to dispose of interests in Anhui Huayuan Y —MEEHEAHELRRERRS
Guoyi Medical Investment Management Limited (Z#EE R 14 E"*F&ﬁ BAERAREE] &
BEREEEAR DA (“Guoy”), which is significant in the CHERHASRENESREBEE
Group’s securities and other assets investment segment ?xé"*‘ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ BEK - EAHEE
operations. Details of the assets and liabilities disposed of, and EREBEUREREESEESNFE
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal, are disclosed in WEERMIFE43(e) ©
note 43(e).
2019 AONES]
—E-NEF —ZE—N\F
HK$°000 HK$000
Tz FHETT
(Loss)/profit for the year from BRIEREEK 2 FE
discontinued operation: (B8]),/ &5 -
Revenue WA 58,204 53,702
Cost of Sales SHE RN (53,114) (28,487)
Other income =N 451 2,223
Selling expenses HEMY (1,529) (1,733)
Administrative expenses THER (3,824) (2,529)
Other operating expenses Hmgesm (14,684) =
Finance cost BB R AR (1,283) (1,874)
(Loss)/profit before tax BFELAT (B1B), & A (15,779) 21,302
Income tax credit/(expense) FriSFiEe,/ (B) 286 (5,410)
(15,493) 15,891
Gain on disposal of operation (note 43(e)) H&E %5 2 Wzk (Kt 43 (e)) 754 —
(Loss)/profit for the year from BERIREEKZFE
discontinued operation (E18) /%A (14,739) 15,891
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

17. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 7. ESERIELEFEBH(E)
2019 PAONES]
—E-NEF —ZT—)N\F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
TET FHTT
Attributable to: AT & F R
Owners of the Company KAREAR A (7,147) 8,104
Non-controlling interests FEPERS RS (7,592) 7,787
(14,739) 15,891
(Loss)/profit for the year from ERIMEEEBZFE (518),/
discontinued operation include RAIBIELAT&IE
the following:
Depreciation on property, plant and ME - R NREITE
equipment 98 103
Cash flows from discontinued operation: B4R Q& %R > IH SIS -
Net cash (outflows)/inflows from ETEFIRE (Rt),/ RAFE
operating activities (23,264) 11,237
Net cash inflows from investing activities & E8IR & mAFEE - —
Net cash inflows/(outflows) from MEEFESAEA(CGRL) F5E
financing activities 5,500 (3,053)
Net cash (outflows)/inflows RBe (R, MAFE (17,764) 8,184
18.  DIVIDENDS 18. X B
No dividends have been paid or proposed during the year ended HE-_Z-—NF+A=+—HLEFE
31 December 2019, nor has any dividend been proposed since BEDRENEIRERS - BB FREH
the end of the reporting period (2018: Nil). RKARIPERRBEMBRE(ZE—
F )
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

19. LOSS PER SHARE 19. HERE
From continuing and discontinued operations REFERERIIEEET
The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the FRERBEBIETANGTE
following:
2019 PAONES]
—E-NEF —F—)\F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
Tz FHIT
Loss BB
Loss attributable to owners of ARETESREAREIB
the Company, used in the basic loss NARHEE AELEE
per share calculation (171,735) (57,984)
(a) Basic loss per share () BREXERE
Number of shares — Basic AR — AKX

Weighted average number of BRETESREALREEZ
ordinary shares for the purpose of DO 19 3 37 AL A% 2R
calculating basic loss per share 5,945,311,400 5,945,311,400
(b) Diluted loss per share (b) EBREEEE
No diluted loss per share was presented as the Company ARARBHE_E—NER_ZF
did not have any diluted potential ordinary shares for the —N\E+-_A=+-—HItFEYE
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. EAEEETE LB W EZ7

SREEEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

19.  LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic loss per share from continuing

operations is based on the following:

Loss

Loss attributable to owners of

19. ShREE(E)
REFBESLER
FrEH
R T&IE :

2019
—E-NF

HK$°000
TR

B8

AR ESRERNBIRZA AR

ERBER T BREREENE

2018
—N\F
HK$'000
T

190

the Company, used in the basic loss wE AELEE
per share calculation (171,735) (57,984)
Less: (Loss)/profit for the year from B BRI EER I FE
discontinued operation (B8),/ &5 (7,147) 8,104
Loss for the year attributable to BB R TS 7 IR AE R
non-controlling interests from FE(RFE E1E
continuing operations - (897)
Loss attributable to owners of ARFTBRHECEER 2 BREAR
the Company, used in the basic loss B2 AR EHEE ARG EIE
per share calculation from
continuing operations (164,588) (65,191)
From discontinued operation RE BRI EER

Basic loss per share from the discontinued operation is 0.121 HK
cents per share (2018: gain of 0.137 HK cents per share) based on
the loss (2018: profit) for the year from discontinued operation
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$7,147,000 (2018: approximately HK$8,104,000) and the
denominators used are the same as those detailed above for
basic loss per share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 20. % - WE K&
Plant,
machinery, Furniture
Land and Leasehold moulds and and Motor
building improvements tools equipment vehicles Total
HEXE BE #3%-
T REF I® HARIE HGRRRE RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT T T T

Cost or valuation BAGEE
At 1 January 2018 RZZ—-\F—HA—H 29,000 19,358 137,895 10,607 1,344 198,204
Additions BE - 11,369 27,487 2,283 - 41,139
Elimination of accumulated ~ Z3HTEE

depreciation (687) - - - - (687)
Gain on property revaluation  #1¥ Bz 3,687 - - - - 3,687
Disposal of subsidiaries HENHBAR

(note 43(b) & (¢)) (W 43) K (c) (32,000 - - a1 - (32,117)
Disposals HE - - (2,199) (569) - (2,768)
Written off ik = = (15,623) (50) - (15,673)
Exchange differences ERERE - (800) (4,033) (243) (29) (5,105)
At 31 December 2018and ~ R=E—N\E+-A=+-A

1 January 2019 k=E-NF—-A—H - 29,927 143,527 11911 1,315 186,680
Additions BE = 1,245 7,576 383 - 9,204
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR

(note 43(d) & (&) (W43 K ) = (1,078) - (573) (332) (1,983)
Disposals HE = 5 = 114) - (114)
Written off ik 2 (1,055) (27,746) (4,554) 2 (33,355)
Exchange differences EREE - (327) (1,340) (63) 4 (1,734)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NF+=A=1+-A < 28,712 122,017 6,990 979 158,698
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

l\‘/T\

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

192

20. M -

TR Bs e s s (4B

Plant,
machinery, Furniture
Land and Leasehold moulds and and Motor
building improvements tools equipment vehicles Total
HEXE BE #3%-
T REF IR HARIE HBRARRE i st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#% AT T B B THT
Accumulated depreciation R E
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\&—A—AH - 11,404 119,748 8,458 718 140,328
Charge for the year FEEA 687 4,481 10,700 1,236 384 17,488
Elimination on accumulated ~ Efk 25T E
depreciation (687) - - - - (687)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR
(note 43 (b) & (¢)) (Hrat43) % (c) - - - (116) - (116)
Disposals HE - - 2,182 (270) - (2.452)
Written off HsA - - (15,623) (50) E (15,673)
Exchange difference fE i E5 - (588) (3,238) (269) 17) (4,112)
At31December 2018and  R=Z—N\E+-F=1+—H
1 January 2019 E=Z-nF—-A—AH - 15,297 109,405 8,989 1,085 134,776
Charge for the year FEEH - 7,610 16,585 559 136 24,890
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWBAR
(note 43(c) & () (Wi 43) R (o) - (738) - (309) (238) (1,285)
Disposals HE - - - (25) - (25)
Written off Hsa - (1,044) (25,683) (4,539) - (31,266)
Exchange differences [ERZEE - (274) (1,018) (56) 4 (1,352)
At 31 December 2019 RIE-AE+ZA=1+—H c 20,851 99,289 4,619 979 125,738
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2019 RZZF-hE+=A=1—H - 7,861 22,728 237 - 32,960
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\$¥+ZA=1+-A = 14,630 34,122 2,922 230 51,904
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z — &

20.

21.

B IR

—NFFZA=+—HIFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The Group’s land and building in Hong Kong were revalued at 31
December 2017 on the open market value basis by reference to
market evidence of recent transactions for similar properties by
Colliers International (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent firm
of chartered surveyors. It was disposed of on 1 August 2018 (note
43(c)).

During the year, the Group changed the estimated useful lives of
certain plant, machinery, moulds and tools from 3 years to 2
years. As a result of this change in accounting estimate, the
depreciation charge increased by HK$3,638,000 for the year and
will decrease by HK$303,000 and HK$3,335,000 for the
following year and the year after respectively.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

20.

ME - WE k& (E)

AEBEREBN L RETHBE IR
BIEED RSN BERYERER ()
BERARZEZRLUMENLRRZ WS

BBRERARATERER _T—tF+=
=tT—BEH INR_FT-NFNA

— A& (HFE430) -

TR AKEGETHE - #a5 RA
RTRZAAAEAFHRRIFENRRD2
FoANLES AR FRNE
& M8 IN3,6380008 7T » WHHKE R
E & F E 5 5l R 4303000% T K&
3,335,000 % 7T °

EREEE

Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
HAE L HEEF #Et
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FABT FET FAT
At 1 January 2019 (note 3) —h&F—A—H
(Btat 3) 1,912 75,813 77,725
Additions R > 20,367 20,367
Depreciation e (635) (31,826) (32,461)
Modification [EH) > (411) (411)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMREAR - (2,512) (2,512)
Exchange differences fEHZ% (26) (162) (188)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—NE+=A
= i#9 5ls 61,269 62,520
Lease liabilities of HK$59,605,000 are recognised with related R-_ZB-hE+A=+—H BE#R

right-of-use assets of HK$62,520,000 as at 31 December 2019
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

A& & 559,605,000 7% 7T K& 48 B8 &0 4 F
& EE62,520,0008 7T - i FAAFE
MEEEEFTNERERIN  HERZ
FHEMEREMRLY - BEEETSH
PMEFRIELR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

21.

22.

194

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Depreciation expenses on right-of-use assets

Interest expense on lease liabilities (included in
finance cost)

Expenses relating to short-term lease (included in

cost of goods sold and administrative) THER)

EREEEZITERX
HERBEZNERAX GEARERA)

ERREE (&)

2019
—E-hE

HK$°000
FERT

32,461

4,390

BREHHEENHX GTABERAR

6,647

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note 43(h).

For both years, the Group leases various offices, factories and
staff quarters for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into
for fixed term of one to ten years. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At 1 January and 31 December

R—A—BER+=-A=+—H

HERSRHBBOFBERNME
43(h) °

RMEHE ARERELEREZE
WMAE IHREIES HEAKK
—E+FMEEFMFL - MEGRKER
BRI AR - WE S BR’BT RGN
Ko et o PR EETE AH B M A Ad 1 A SR el A
BRER AREERGHNTERLE
BRI R BT THOHAR]

BREME

2019 2018
—E-NF —T-NF
HK$'000

FET

HK$’000
FET

30,000 30,000

Investment properties were revalued at 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2019 on the open market value basis by reference to
market evidence of recent transactions for similar properties by
Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited, an
independent firm of chartered surveyors.

For commercial properties and offices, the Group used market
comparable approach.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

23. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 23.

The Group’s interests in prepaid land lease payments represent

BNHEENIA
AEBEREN LB ERIBNEEIETR

prepaid operating lease payments and their net book value are

analysed as follows:

N ERERBRELREFE A9
wm

HK$000
T

At 1 January 2018
Exchange differences
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments

R-—F—N\F—A—H 2,641
bE = H (105)
JEA L 4 7H B R IR 3 (624)

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019

Reclassification due to adoption of HKFRS 16
(note 3)

RZE—NEFE+-A=+—8K

—=—hE—H—A 1,912
RN BB B EERIFE 169 MER
DE(HEE3) (1,912)

Restated balance at 1 January 2019

R-F—NF—A -G (EE7)) -

Current portion
Non-current portion

2018
—N\F

HK$'000
T

BNEAER 2 624
SERNERER > 1,288

1,912

Annual Report 3% 2019 195



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kre B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

24. GOODWILL 24. mEE
Catering
Services CGU
EHRERS
ELEN
HK$'000
T
Cost 2%
At acquisition date, 31 December 2018 and REEER —E—N\F+_A=+—H
1 January 2019 r—E-NF—H—H 18,814
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 43(d)) B A E (HEE43(d)) (18,814)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—hhF+=-A=+—H -
Accumulated impairment losses ZitEEE
At acquisition date, 31 December 2018, RWERR —T—\F+=-_A=+—8"
1 January 2019 and —2-hhF—-A—BK
31 December 2019 —F-NhF+=ZA=+—H -
Carrying amount BRTEE
At 31 December 2019 RZE—hF+=-A=+—H -
At 31 December 2018 R-_E—)/\F+-_A=+—H 18,814
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from that
business combination.

The Group acquired 100% equity interest of Pride Review Group
on 17 July 2017. The goodwill arising from the acquisition is
allocated to the Catering Services CGU.

The recoverable amounts of the Catering Services CGU have
been determined on the basis of their value in use calculations
using discounted cash flow method. The key assumptions for the
discounted cash flow method are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and budgeted gross margin and revenue
during the period. The Group estimates discount rates using pre-
tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the Catering Services
CGU. The growth rates are based on long-term average
economic growth rate of the geographical area in which the
business of the Catering Services CGU operates. Budgeted gross
margin and revenue are based on past practices and
expectations on market development.

In 2018, the Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by the directors for the
next five years with the residual period using the growth rate of
3%. The rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant markets.

In 2018, the rate used to discount the forecast cash flows from

the Group’s Catering Service CGU is 19.08%.

On 31 December 2019, the Group has disposed of the entire
equity interest in Pride Review Group.

R—EXBEHF T RENEEREER

PEERRUZEBAHIBZNRESE
HEEAL -

AREEBR -_ZE—+tF+-At++BHKE
Pride Review £ B #9100% A% #& - U iE =
HEANEESEEEYRBERSEL

oo

BT e

ERRGHEEEABEL 2 KT SRR
ERERREREEZRBELEREEE
EoRERBEREEZPHELZIER
RERMBRE - BREURHPABEE
MR et - AN S IR AR AT A R A
FHREIRE - ZA K RIRTISREHEE
HREECHEARERRSELENZ
FERR - BRXTIUERRBREE
ABENRERBREER REBTFHE
EIRREQEE - BEENRRKATS
PUBEIBHI R M58 R 2 TREIAELE -

W2 /\F AREREZREHE
T TR SO B F L 2 KA
BIRE AR TR 3% 2 R R 2t
8 - AMLL L ABAE BTS2 T
REERE -

RZZE—/\F ARMEEREAEEE
BRGERCELBEMNZBARETEZ
L& 519.08% ©

RZE—NE+=-F=+—H K&HE
2 £ Pride Review £ E H) 2 ZBAHE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

25. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 25 BEEE
License Customer
rights relationship
(note a) (note b) Total
45 RE EFBAE
(Kiita) (KiaEb) st
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET TET FETT
Cost 5%
At 1 January 2018, RZE—NF—H—A8-
31 December 2018, —FE-NF+=-A=+—8"
1 January 2019 and —ET-NF-HA—BK
31 December 2019 —E-NAF+=-A=+—H 32,458 13,707 46,165

Accumulated amortisation BB RRERE
and impairment losses

At 1 January 2018, RZE—NF—H—H8"
31 December 2018, —E-NF+=ZA=+—H"
1 January 2019 and —F-NF—-A—BK
31 December 2019 —E-NF+ZA=+—H 32,458 13,707 46,165

Carrying amount REE

At 31 December 2019 R-_E—-NFE+-_A=+—8H = = =

At 31 December 2018 RZE—-N\F+=ZA=+—H = = =

Note: Ffaz -

(@ License rights represent the right to use the “RCA” trademark in trading of (@) ﬁﬁ%jﬁﬁ%@&bu?ﬁﬁ?%f%%%éﬁﬁiﬁ
certain manufactured business phones in the U.S.A. and Canada. The license B {2 F TRCA B AR H HE A - %gﬂgaﬁé:g
rights expired on 31 December 2018 and was further extended to 31 December —N\F+-A=t+—HER# UE-SLERE_
2020. ToZE+-A=+—A-

(b) Customer relationship represents the future economic benefit to the Group (©) g}f Eﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ’%éﬁﬁﬁ@égﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁ
arising from regular contact between individual customer and the business MEEH AR EELORRILENE - FERHE
entity before business combination. The amortising period of customer RMBHBRIZE6F -

relationship was 3-6 years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 26. RTBRRIMIEE
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 are as RZE-NF+ZA=+—HWBRR
follows: FIFEIBT
Place of Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ interest/ voting power/
Name of subsidiary establishment Issued and paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
EEEaRER RERE/
MEARERE FEMAAL,/ B L it B BRTRARRAK HERANEAL TEXR
Dlrect Indirect
;3 i3
Captain Ace Limited British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares 100% - Inactive
("BV.L" of US$ each LREY
KERLES 100 REREE
([EBELES]) 1ETH L ER
Charm Year International Limited B.V.I. 100 ordinary shares 100% Investment holding
SIFEEBRAR REEZES of US$1 each REZR
100 REREE
[Etiok: gl
China Khan Limited B.V.L 100 ordinary shares 100% Investment holding
ERERANF RBELHS of US$1 each KREER
100 R EREE
[Etiok: gl
Fortune Cycle Investments Limited ~ B.V.I. 100 ordinary shares 100% Investment holding
RBEAES of US$1 each REER
100 EREE
[Etiok: 2T
Grant Global Limited B.V.I. 100 ordinary shares 100% Inactive
RBEIHES of US$1 each TEER
100 REREE
[Etiok- 251
Natural Perseverance Limited B.V.I. 100 ordinary shares 100% Investment holding
KEBRAF RBEIHS of US$1 each REER
100 R EREE1ETH
LAk
Powerled Limited B.V.I. 100 ordinary shares 100% Investment holding
BERRAT REEZES of US$1 each REAEER
100 REREE
[Etiok=F T3
Power Trump Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 100% Investment holding
BB 1008 LA EBR RAZR
Sheer Victory Limited B.V.I. 100 ordinary shares 100% Investment holding
RBEIHS of US$1 each REER
100 R EREE
[Eli0k=F T
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/\‘/T\

206.

200

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 are as

follows: (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

o PNCEE

ValueCatch Global Limited

ValueCatch Global Fund One Limited

ValueCatch Global Fund One CIP
Limited

Winning Global Holdings Limited

China Healthcare Partners Limited

Dayshine Global Investments Limited

Ever Billion Industrial Limited
BEEXERAF

Idea Perfect Holdings Limited
EXEERER A

Keenpro Investments Limited

RAREBRAR

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

ML, B L

Cayman Islands

SRS

Cayman Islands

G

Cayman Islands

G

BV
RBRAES

Cayman Islands

RERS

BV
RBRAES

Hong Kong
0

Hong Kong
£

BV
RBRAHS

Issued and paid up capital

BERTRAZRE

1 ordinary share
of US$1 each

1REREE
[EStiok- g1

1 ordinary share
of US$1 each

1RERER
[EFtiok a1

1 ordinary share
of US$1 each

1REREE
B0k 251

100 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

100 REREE
[Eptiok=F L3

1 ordinary share
of US$1 each

1RERER
[Eptiok= gl

1 ordinary share
of US$1 each

1REREE
[Etiok: gl

Ordinary share
of HK$1
okl

Ordinary share
of HK$1
VBT L AR

1 ordinary share
of US$1 each

1REREE
[Etiok 251
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26. REIBARIMIEE (8)

A ——

BFBNT - ()

Percentage of ownership
interest/ voting power/
profit sharing

EhRERRERS RERE/

HERNEIL

Direct

B

100%

100%

100%

100%

Indirect

G

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

—NFTZA=+—HHNERF

Principal activities

FERHK

Inactive

LEEG

Inactive

LEER

Inactive

TEES

Inactive

TEEG

Inactive

BEXK

Inactive

ERXH

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

RAZR

Investment holding

REER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 26. RMBARIAIRE (&)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 are as W=
follows: (Continued)

BFBENT - ()

—NFTZA=+—HHNERF

Place of Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ interest/ voting power/
Name of subsidiary establishment Issued and paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
EtEaRERER BRERE/
HEARERE TEMAL,/ B Lt B BRTRAZRA HERANEA FTEXEK
Direct Indirect
B k3
Sheer Victory Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share - 100%  Inactive
0 of HK$1 BEER
1BTR L BR
Sino Achieve Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100%  Investment holding and
REERAF B5 of HK$5,000,000 trading
5,000,000 #7THY REERKES
E=gille
Space Wisdom Limited B.V.I. 1 ordinary share - 100%  Inactive
BRBRAR KBRS of US$1 each EELH
1REREE
[Etiok: gl
Talent-Asia Real Estate Holdings Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100%  Investment holding and
Co. Ltd. BB of HK$50,000,000 provision of property
RERDHERRERA 50,000,000 7 T KO 38 A% agency service
REAZERRERDE
RERS
Telefield Asia Pacific Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share - 100%  Inactive
FETRKERAF 0 of HK$1 BEER
TETHL AR
Telefield Holdings Limited B.V.L. 410,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Investment holding
EBRELEHS of US$1 each REER
410,000 R EREE
[0kl
Telefield Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100%  Investment holding,
FEBRAT /B of HK$20,000,000 and electronic manufacturing
non-voting deferred services for
shares of HK$5,000,000 telecommunications,
20,000,000 % 54 security, car electronics,
TERR home appliances, other
5,000,000 & T consumer and industrial
R FERTRG electronic products

R - B
RE AEETFER -
REHEER
TEETERN
EFRERSE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 26. PHBARIMIKE (B)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 are as RZEBE—NEF+_A=+—HKEBERA

202

follows: (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

o PNCEE

Telefield Medical Devices Limited

PERRSMARA

Telefield NA Inc.

Telefield Universal Limited

PERFARR

Well Dragon Electronics Limited
BEETHARAT

Wise State Investment Ltd

BEARBBRAR

SRIEE (BN BRATE
Ding Cheng Investment (Yangzhou)
Limited*

BEMFEEFERAR

Guangzhou Telefield Limited *

BMPEEFERAA
Guangzhou Zhong Sui Limited *

BN EBHERERAT
Guangzhou Zhuo Feng Plastics Co.,
Limited *

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

ML, B L

Hong Kong
0

USA.
*E

Hong Kong
0

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

PRC
e

PRC
PE

PRC
PE

PRC
RE

BFBNT - ()

Percentage of ownership
interest/ voting power/
profit sharing

EhRERRERS RERE/

Issued and paid up capital
BORMERAE HERANEA

Direct Indirect
B ik

Ordinary shares - 100%
of HK$1,000

1000 BT H) EBR

Share capital - 100%
of US$2,000,000

R 72,000,000 7T

Ordinary shares - 100%
of HK$15,600,000

15,600,000 T4
Lk

Ordinary share - 100%
of HK$1

TBTR L BR

Ordinary share - 100%
of HK$1

BTN ERR

Registered capital - 100%
of RMB200,000,000

AMERARE
200,000,000 7T

Registered capital - 100%
of US$8,060,000

AMER
8,060,000% T

Registered capital — 100%
of US$1,500,000

AMER
1,500,000 7T

Registered capital - 100%
of US$2,000,000

FMAER
2,000,000 7T
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Principal activities

FERHK

Trading of personal care
products

HAERERE S

Trading of business
telephone system

EESEESET

Investment holding
and trading of
telecommunication
products

REZBRK
EHNEMES

Inactive

LEEG

Investment holding

REZR

Inactive

TEER

Manufacture of
telecommunications
and other products

BERREMERD

Manufacture and sale of
consumable electronic
products

HESFEMRR
BEREE

Inactive

EREH
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z — &

206.

—NE+ZAZ+—EIHEE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 are as

follows: (Continued)

Place of

incorporation/

Name of subsidiary

WEAR AR

EREEFACRINBRAA PRC

Huashi Management Consultancy H
(Shenzhen) Limited *

ERBEZERORNBERAF PRC

Healthcare Holdings (Shenzhen) F
Co., Ltd*

HERSERERERAF PRC

Shanghai Fu Mian Management e
Consultancy Limited*

* English names for identification purpose.

Except for Guoyi, all subsidiaries

establishment

AR R 5

EETRERRE

Registered capital
of RMB300,000,000
AMERARE
300,000,000 7T

Registered capital
of RMB500,000,000
AMERARE
500,000,000 7T

Registered capital
of RMB100,000,000
AMERARE
100,000,0007C

established in the PRC are

wholly foreign-owned enterprises. Guoyi was disposed of during

the year.

As at 31 December 2019, the bank balances of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB and deposited with
banks in the PRC were amounted to approximately
HK$45,273,000 (2018: HK$27,663,000). Conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

26.

Issued and paid up capital

RITBARHIRE (B)

RIE—NE+_A=+—"HHBLRA
REEBT - (8)

Percentage of ownership
interest/ voting power/

profit sharing Principal activities
EtEERERR, BRERE/
HERANEA FEEK
Direct Indirect
=3 i
- 100%  Inactive
BmER
- 100%  Investment holding
REZR
= 100%  Provision of
consultancy service
REEARS

XA PRRI RS -

BREIfRHN - FRBFER B SZEY P 2 A
BRINTEELE - BIaERFALE -

—NE+=—A=+—8  ~&EK
PR A TIAA R ERFRRF
B A IRITHYERITAE R B A 45,273,000 7T

—ZF— )\ :27,66300087T) - AR
H AN RS P B AN E B R R A
[E - EERNESERTORE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

27. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FVTOCI 27. WAFEFT AEAM S E WS A AR
w"E
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#BxT T
Equity securities, at fair value RARFES - mAFE
Listed in Hong Kong REB L™ 13,397 27,187
13,397 27,187
Analysed as: DATER
Current portion BIERER > 3,789 5,328
Non-current portion FEBNHAER 9,608 21,859
13,397 27,187
The fair values of listed securities are based on current bid prices ETRBHZAFEDRERSHRZER
at the end of the reporting period. All equity investments at TEAEBME - MR FEFAEM
FVTOCI are denominated in HK$. FHRSERBEREE LB TAE
During the year, fair value changes in respect of the Group’s TR AHEREMEEKSERHAN
equity investments recognised in other comprehensive income SERERENAFEEDSER
amounted to HK$9,353,000 (2018: HK$25,716,000). 9,353,000/ 7T (= F — /\% : 25,716,000

BIT) e
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

28.

29.

INVENTORIES 28. 78

2019 PAONES]
—E—-hF —E-N\E
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#&x T
Food and beverages 8N - 469
Raw materials R4k 36,163 55,482
Work in progress E Sy 15,280 20,912
Finished goods R T 22,554 27,169
Goods in transit EEE R 5,930 9,930
79,927 113,962

TRADE RECEIVABLES JEULE SRR

2019 2018

—E-NF —T-N\F

HK$°000 HK$000

FHT T

Trade receivables FEWE 5 R K 132,912 156,205
Allowance for trade receivables B E 5 ARk (FisE6(0)

(note 6(c)) (1,860) (444)
131,052 155%76.s

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on credit.
The credit terms generally range from 30 to 120 days. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. For new customers,
payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by the directors.

AEFBERXPTIENEENAETE
BE-EEH-RNTFIOER0KXR- FH
EFUARREERE - EFP KA
BN RIA - AEBBUN AR E R

IE?’E%}E‘E%&’:?“ - BEEFHERHNE Y

=1
,%u R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kre B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

29. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 29. EWESER(E)
The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice R EOMMNERE SRR EE)
date, and net of allowance, is as follows: ERERDATIOT

206

2019 AONES]

—E-NEF —E-N\E

HK$°000 HK$ 000

THExT TFETT

0 to 90 days 0F 90K 108,667 135,996
91 to 180 days 91E180 X 22,142 17,454
181 to 365 days 181 % 365K 133 1,305
Over 365 days 365 KA 110 1,006
131,052 155,761

Reconciliation of allowance for trade receivables:

FEUE 5 BRSO B HIBR B SN T

2019 PAONKS]

—E-hEF —E—)N\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHTT

At the beginning of year REY] 444 3,601
Impairment losses for the year FEREEE 1,550 148
Bad debts written off i $H 22 BR - (14D
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HE AT (134) -
Reversal £ (o) - (3,164)
At the end of year RERXR 1,860 444

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers
that were in financial difficulties or were in default in payments
and the receivables are not expected to be recovered.

Link-Asia International Co. Ltd 3R B B 2 AR A 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

29. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 29. BRWESER (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are AEBREKESERCEREFERAUT
denominated in the following currencies: BHEGHE -

2019 AONES]

—ZE-hF —E—)\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

F#&T T

United States dollars (“USD”) Zrx(ZEx)) 127,490 131,606

HK$ BT 29 693

RMB AR 3,533 23,462

Total EEF 131,052 155,761

30. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND  30. TEfIRUIE - &€ - HAEKFIE K

OTHER ASSETS HEWEE
2019 AONES]
—E-NEF —T—N\F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FH&T F&7T
Prepayments TEfFRIE 52,189 4,651
Prepaid consultancy fee B EME 16,864 7,500
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERIE = 624
Deposits e 2,155 8,145
Purchase deposits EBEZE 1,841 49,533
Other assets — consumables Hih&E — HfER - 4,171
Other receivables oA e Y SRIE 8,064 10,415
81,113 85,039
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

31.

208

LOANS TO EMPLOYEES AND OTHER PARTIES

Loans to employees and other parties represent loans advanced
to employees and other independent third parties detailed as
below. The Group has engaged external independent valuers to
assist the management to assess the expect credit loss (“ECL”)
rates at end of reporting period.

3l

mEE REMALTER

AEEREMALTEREREER KA
BUE=FTBENNER #BEAT - A
R 1B TSNS 8 ST {5 (B UA 16 B 8 32 B AF
ERHmERRNEREEBE((FRHAE
EEBEFE -

Principal Accrued
balance at interest as at Balance at
31 December 31 December Cumulative 31 December
Terms of loan 2019 2019 ECL rate allowance
RZB-hE RIB-NE
TZA=t-A tZA=t-H bk
e ZASLR RIS REERZ 2R &zt
HK$°000 HK$°000 % HK$°000 HK$°000
TR TR ) TR TR
Independent Unsecured, repayable on 0] 45,000 9,750 61.39% (33,611) 21,139 44,797
third party A 12 September 2020 and
bears interest of 12% pa.
BUE=ZFA EERBER_T-TF
AAT-BEER
REFIED%EE
Individual E (2018: Unsecured, repayable on 5 April (i 21,000 3,590 87.00% (26,614) 3,976 27,982
Individual A) 2019 and bears interest of 12% pa.
BEAE(ZZ-N\E: E&ER ER-Z-"ENATA
EAA) BEREEFED%E S
Independent Unsecured, repayable on (i) 26,000 473 1.00% (264) 26,209
third party C 20 February 2021 and
bears interest of 5% pa
BIUE=HC SR BRZT=—%FZA
_+Ertﬁﬁiﬂ$%uﬁ
Employees Unsecured, repayable on demand (iv) - - - - - 2,649
and interest free
EE EER REKEERES
Total 98,000 13,813 (60,489) 51,324 75,428
@i
Current portion 72,000 13,340 (60,225) 25,115 30,631
i)
Non-current portion 26,000 473 (264) 26,209 44,797
FEEEH S
98,000 13,813 (60,489) 51,324 75,428
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. LOANS TO EMPLOYEES AND OTHER PARTIES 3. MEERAEMATERE)

(Continued)

O] Lifetime ECL is recognised as the loan was deemed default and considered 0} 2 HIFEHIE EE B R ARIERE NN ERI W
credit-impaired (2018: Lifetime ECL is recognised as credit risk has increased EAEERE(ZE—N\FE: 2HEHEEEE
significantly since initial recognition). BRAEERR - BYBRERLEAEEM) -

(i) Lifetime ECL is recognised as the loan was default and considered credit- (i) AHEH BB R AEENL KR AE
impaired. BRE -

(i) 12-month ECL is recognised. @iii) EHERAREABHEESE-

(iv) ECL for employees’ loans are considered minimal. (iv) EEEFNTEHEE BRS8N -

Principal Accrued
balance at interest as at Balance at
31 December 31 December Cumulative 31 December
Terms of loan 2018 2018 ECL rate allowance
RZB-N\E R=B-N\E
tZR=t-B t+ZA=t-A L 2it -
PZ5 7] P gl EEFEE B 3 ZE
HK$'000 HK$'000 % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER % TEr TEr ThL
Independent Unsecured, repayable on 0] 45,000 4320 11.04% (4,523) 44,797 -
third party A 12 September 2020 and
bears interest of 12% p.a.
BUE=FA BER ER-F-TENATZA
BRREERIZ 0 E
Employees Unsecured, repayable within one yearor (i) 2,649 2 % ~ 2,649 2,188
on demand, bearing interest of 9% or
interest free
= EER BR-EAIRENERR
BRE%EREE
Individual A Unsecured, repayable on (i) 27,000 2,388 5.36% (1,406) 27,982 -

5 April 2019 and
bears interest of 12% p.a.

fBAA EER ENZZ-NERARA
BRREERZ 205 E
Independent Unsecured, repayable within = = = - - 29,748
third party B one year and bearing interest
of 8% p.a.
BUE=HB &HR BN -FRREREENR
8%3t 8
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31, LOANS TO EMPLOYEES AND OTHER PARTIES 3. MEEBREMATERE)
(Continued)

Principal Accrued
balance at interest as at Balance at
31 December 31 December Cumulative 31 December
Terms of loan 2018 2018 ECL rate allowance
RZB-N% RZB-N%
“B=t-B t=RA=t-H L g3t
P25 7] ZEHIE REEER R @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 % HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER % TER TER
Individual B Unsecured, repayable within - - - - - 30,945
one year and bears interest
of 10% pa.
fAAB BER ER-ENERREEN®
10%3T8
Individual C Unsecured, repayable within - - - - . 30,937
one year and bears interest
of 10% p.a.
fAAC EER ER-ENEERERENR
10%3 8
Individual D Unsecured, repayable within - - - - - 1175
one year and bears fixed interest
of RMB20,000
fEAD BER ER-ENERRZETHE
ARE200007T:1 8
Total 74,649 6,708 (5,929) 75,428 94,993
it
Current portion 29,649 2,388 (1,406) 30,631 94,993
k)
Non-current portion 45,000 4320 (4,523) 44,797 o
FAEHH
74,649 6,708 (5,929) 75,428 94,993
0) Lifetime ECL is recognized as credit risk has increased significantly since initial @ ZHEHEEEEERAEERR - BYHER
recognition. HEAHEIL AN o
(i) ECL for employee’s loans are considered minimal. (i) EEERNEREEBEWE AEMN -
(i) 12-month ECL is recognised. @iii) ERER2EAEHEERIE -

210  Link-Asia International Co. Ltd IR B B 2 AR A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kre B R M At

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE —ZF—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

32. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND CASH 32. BEEMIRITERNIBEITRIRE &4
BALANCES
()  Pledged bank deposits represented deposits pledged to () BEBERTFERIEFBEEREIEF
bank to secure banking facilities such as corporate credit FIRITAESRITRE (WA RE
card and general bank account services. BRE—MRIBITRERE)
(i) The followings are bank and cash balances details: () RITRBEEHFBOT :
2019 AONRS]
—E-NF —F-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#&T FHIT
Cash on hand EFRE 105 118
Cash in transit EBrRe 15 45
Fixed deposits TEHIfF R 85,250 11,625
Cash at bank RITRS 155,961 328,362
Cash and cash equivalents in the RirEHEMERD
consolidated statement of ReRIRSEEY
cash flows 241,331 340,150
Cash in margin account of BLRITRESEFPZE S
brokerage firms 33 14,059
241,364 354,209
(i) The pledged bank deposits and bank and cash balances of (i AEEBEMBRITERAREITRIER
the Group are denominated in the following currencies: SEBTIRATERHE -
2019 AONES]
—B-hE —TN\F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FHT T
Uusb eV 162,138 55,574
HK$ BT 24,598 262,365
RMB AR 45,348 28,196
Euro (“EUR”) Bioc ([BoT]) - 74
Singapore dollars N T 9,279 9,249
Others HAith 1 i
241,364 355,459
As at 31 December 2019, the bank balances of the Group’s N g e ) = BN
subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB and deposited &£H f?’\]‘:F' @Mﬁ%@ﬁ_b/{/\%ﬁ@aﬂﬁ
with banks in the PRC were amounted to approximately R E"Jf_ﬁﬁﬁ"]ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
HK$45,273,000 (2018: HK$27,663,000). Conversion of ?\’945,273,0907_% TEC=E= ¢ "
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign 27,663,000 7T) © AR H A
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of HEIA S B N B IR M0 B A B
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange EIEREBEIRIRTE AR o
Regulations.

Annual Report %k 2019 211



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kre B R M At
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33. TRADE PAYABLES 33 ENESERX
The aging analysis of trade payables, based on invoice date, is as AEBZREZHRTENELTEZER
follows: FIBRER DITEAT -
2019 AONES]
—E-NEF —E—)\F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
F#&T FH&TT
0to 90 days CESCIOFN 46,675 70,149
91 to 180 days 9NE180K 6,601 2,619
181 to 365 days 181 % 365 K 234 2,133
Over 365 days 365 KA 912 1,573
54,422 76,474
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are AEBEERNEZERZERMEERANUT
denominated in the following currencies: EHEHE
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E=—)\F
HK$°000 HK$000
FHT FHETT
usD EViv 22,986 7,860
HK$ BT 25,500 26,471
RMB AR 5,827 41,596
EUR BT 109 547
Total &5 54,422 76,474
34, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 34, TEiRER NEHMERFIE
2019 PAONRS]
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$000
FHT T
Accrued salaries R 111,892 111,536
Accrued expenses TEIRRAX 31,770 47,676
Accrued borrowing interests TEIRIEEF B 6,144 7,433
Customer deposits 2R 21,833 45,344
Other payables H T F0R 7,554 3,474
179,193 215,463
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/\‘/T\

35. LEASE LIABILITIES

—NE+ZAZ+—EIHEE

35.

Minimum lease payments

//////

Present value of minimum
lease payments

RERENE BRERENEZRE
2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-nE —T-N\F “B-hE —T-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TER THr TER AT
Within one year —FR 27,228 - 26,359 -
In the second to fifth years, E-FZERE(ARER
inclusive M) 29,851 - 25,685 -
After five years RFUE 13,401 - 7,561 -
70,480 - 59,605 -
Less: Future finance charges W AR ER (10,875) - N/A N/A
Present value of lease obligations FEZEZIE 59,605 - 59,605 -
Less: Amount due for settlement i : 1218 8 A E|EAfE 708
within 12 months (shown (ﬁé,ﬁ@)ﬁ@ﬁ\]ﬂ
under current liabilities) (26,359) -
Amount due for settlement after 1218 A 14 S| BB e 208
12 months 33,246 -

All lease liabilities are denominated i

n Hong Kong dollars.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1
January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which
were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17.
Comparative information as at 31 December 2018 has not been
restated. Further details on the impact of the transition to HKFRS

16 are set out in note 3.

PRETHEREHAETTE

AEECDERALETEREERERE
BMBREENEGT  UHER_-F
—NF—A— BEERRARER T

REBBSERE T RAOBEREERE
WHERANEHERE - R_F—-\F

T-A=T—BNUBENLARES B
BBEERBMBRSERBIHRNT
B SHBENIMES
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

36. AMOUNTS DUE FROM A RELATED COMPANY AND 36. FEUN—FRIREE R B FIE K m) —E M
LOAN TO A NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER OF A BARZ— %## Hxﬂx%féﬁk
SUBSIDIARY
() The amount due from a related company, is unsecured, () JEW—FREIREE R RFUA AEEE
interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment. % 8 B EE T E R o

(i) The loan to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary (i M—TEMBARZ — & IR R
which bears interest at 9% p.a., is unsecured and repayable BERIRFERNRI%ETE - AEIEE
on demand. RIREKEE -

37. BORROWINGS 37. {88

AONES]

—E-hE —E—)N\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

TERT T T

Loan from a related company (note (1))  REA—FEEERARNER(HFG) 558 569

Loans from a related company (note (i) x@— FEﬁEgLZ\\j,\i (HtaEcin) - 19,698
Loan from an independent third party KE—RBYE=ZHER

(note (iif)) (K&t D) 20,000 20,000

20,558 40,267
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37.

BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

0] The amount represented loan from a related company which is non-interest
bearing, unsecured and repayable on demand.

(i The amounts represented loans from a related company which bears interest at
9% p.a., unsecured and repayable on 31 December 2019.

(i) The amount represents loan from an independent third party, which bears
interest at 12% p.a., secured by charges over the shares of the Company’s
subsidiary (China Khan Limited and Telefield Holdings Limited). At 31 December
2019, the aforementioned subsidiaries held non-current assets of HK$59,577,000
(2018: HK$44,173,000) and current assets of HK$356,367,000 (2018:
HK$339,915,000). At 31 December 2019, the accrued interest of HK$6,144,000
(2018: HK$3,727,000) is included in accrued borrowing interest as set out in
note 34.

On 21 October 2019, the Company has been served a writ of summons issued by
the Court of First Instance of the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region by the lender as the Plaintiff against the Company as the
Defendant. The Plaintiff claims against the Company for a sum of
HK$20,000,000, being the loan principal under a facility agreement, plus
interest and costs (the “Legal Proceedings”).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Company has entered into a
settlement agreement in respect of the Legal Proceeding, pursuant to which,
amongst others, to settle the amount in full and final by way of assignment of
the rights of two loans due to the Company, namely, the loan to independent
third party A and individual E as set out in note 31, and the Plaintiff has
unconditionally and irrevocably agreed in writing to waive its right to claim
again the Company.

Borrowings are arranged at fixed interest rates or non-interest
bearing thus expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
Except for the loans from related companies which are
denominated in RMB, other loans are denominated in HK$.

The directors estimate the fair value of the Group’s borrowings
at 31 December 2019 and 2018 approximate to their carrying
amounts.

o ZEEARA —HEEARNEE - BIERRE
BREBER

() mEWARA-MBEAAOER  HEERE
it e WEMAR-T-AFTZA=+—
A -

(i) ZEBEARE—BBIUE=FHER - HRER
KDL AARRNBAR (EEERAA
F Telefield Holdings Limited) &9 f% 17 # a2 42 4R o
RZE—NAF+=—A=+—8 LB ARE
BIEREBEAESIS77000B (=T — )\ 4F ¢
44,173,000 7T) R 8 & 2 356,367,000 7T (=
T — )\ 13399150008 7L) c R=ZT—NF
+ZRA=+—8 ' EFF56144,000FT(ZF
—J\F : 3,727,000/ 7T ) 5t A GE34F i A9 T8
RIEEFE -

RZFB-AF+AZ+—H FARFAKRIHEE
FRIfTHRESEERRNVEER L NESR - BX
MEBRERARAMEAEERHFA - RER
RABBRRA 20,000,000 7T - BIELE %
BTHERAE  SMAERKA(DERF

0 -

RIBELRE - AR RIFARFAIRFR] LN
B B (A ) RKEBEREMERER
B RERE BUEE R (A R 3 PR B 58 =
FARBEAENER) - MRS A S &G
P R AR R R B M E R A D BRH AR AE
o

EEREENXGFERREE  EAKHE
EH A FENERRER - RAARBE
MRER R BRI - HMERABETTA
{EO

ESEAAKER-_FE-—NLER=F

—N\F+ZR=+—HBZEEZATE
EEREERS
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38. PRODUCT WARRANTY PROVISIONS 38. EmRAEE

The movement in the Group’s product warranty provisions are AEBERRBEBEEZEHSTOT
analysed as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hF —E—)N\F
HK$°000 HK$000
TFHExT T
At 1 January wn—A—H 2,498 3,336
Provisions used EBAEE (2,498) (3,336)
Additional provisions BEONE 2,059 2,498
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 2,059 2,498
The Group has committed to repurchase its products from or EETHOHEBIE ThREREFPREURE
offer replacement of its products to certain distributors when B AREEAZRZSEDHEBERE R
these distributors receive returned goods from unsatisfied RFERER ZBERRABEREES
ultimate consumers. Such kind of provision for product BRREKTFBTLEHRER  WIHTHR
warranties are recognised based on past experience of level of FHIRE(WEA) -
repairs and returns, discounted to their present value as
appropriate.
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hEF= A=t BLEE

39. DEFERRED TAX

39. EREFIE

Accelerated License
tax rights Land and
depreciation EVEL] buildings Others Total
MERBITE FrEEANR THRETF Hit Fo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT AT TAET FET TAET
At 1 January 2018 “T-N\¥—A—H - 1,102 (4,198) 930 (2,166)
Credit/(charge) to profit or FEBRTI A
loss for the year e/ (BR)
— origination and reversal of —GREREEE
temporary differences K m - (236) 4,693 142 4,599
Charge to other comprehensive — FE EM 2 EURzET
income for the year S REH = = (495) = (495)
At 31 December 2018 and R-E-—N\&E
1 January 2019 +ZRA=t-8Bk
“T-NF—A—H = 866 5 1,072 1,938
Credit/(charge) to profit or FEEZTIA
loss for the year e/ (BR)
— origination and reversal of ~EREEEL
temporary differences )& E] = = = = 5
Charge to other comprehensive  EEH 2 EUzsH
income for the year FIABER F > 7 7 >
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE
+=ZA=+-H - 866 - 1,072 1,938
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for AT BRERE PSR R EET B
consolidated statement of financial position purposes: RO -

2019 AONES]

—E-NF AGS

HK$°000 HK$'000

FE&T FETT

Deferred tax assets FEMRIEEE 1,938 1,938
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIEEE = =
1,938 1,938

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$11.1 million (2018: HK$13.1 million)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset
in relation to unused tax losses has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately HK$0.2
million (2018: HK$2.2 million) that will expire before 2022. Other
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

RREPR 2EEESASARIE
B3 18 49 511000008 T(ZE— N\ & :
13,100,000 7T) + A] BREHIARAOHEF] ©
AR RBETER R ICHE TR » I E e
REBABARBEBEENELCRHEE
E e *ﬁwu%ﬂlﬁgﬁ%§@¥ﬁﬁ—!ﬁ\ = —
B fE o BV 518 495 200,000 7T (— &
— \%E : 2,200,000 7T ) o H {th F5 B &5
B AT 4R R B4 ES o
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40. SHARE CAPITAL 40. PEA
2019 2018
—g-hE -2 N\%
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
€4 <8 R TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TAT FTAT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each FAEE 0.00178 T E B
At the beginning and the end of the year REFRER 1,500,000,000,000 1,500,000 1,500,000,000,000 1,500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each GIREE 0.001 5 T L&A
At the beginning of the year and REFRER
the end of the year 5,945,311,400 5,945 5,945,311,400 5,945
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard AEBEEREANBZESHEREEN
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to BEKEERD  WRAEBLEERER
maximise the return to the shareholders through the i BREFERFADR AEEE
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall BEREEE F—FE WA -
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The AEEZRBRLPIEEERSTE K&
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to A e EAR R B B R B R B E MR
it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk BEMEREALEBIYERAZ - A7
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or HRAABRERNERE  XEEARR
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment BRIE - BITHR - BERG - S5
of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts, & BORAEEKEEEENRE -
redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.
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40. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by
adjusted capital. Total debt comprises borrowings (except for
bank overdrafts). Adjusted capital comprises all components of
equity (i.e. share capital, retained profits/accumulated losses and
other reserves) except for non-controlling interests.

During 2019, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
2018, was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at
reasonable level. The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at 31
December 2019 and at 31 December 2018 were as follows:

40.

AN (48)

AEERBEGHEHBEARLRER
B 2L RDREBHBRIACRHEE
A8 - REKRBEEE(RITEXR
SN - BB EARBIEMA R (A
A REEF,RETEEREMMER)
(FFIEBRRERRRRIN)

R-F— ARG AEEZ R
—NEABBE - ABEBHEHEE
A EEHRAEAT - RZB—NE
+t-A=+-BR-B-N%F+-5

/\—?

=t BEMEBEERBEERLENT

2019 AONES]

—ZE—-hF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT TFHIT

Total debt 1B IET 20,558 40,267
Adjusted capital LR E AR 411,013 572,804
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B LR EAR LK 5.0% 7.0%

The only externally imposed capital requirement for the Group
to maintain its listing status on the Main Board of Stock
Exchange is that it has to have a public float of at least 25% of
the shares. Based on the information that is publicly available to
the Group and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Group
has maintained sufficient public float throughout the year ended
31 December 2019 as required under the Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange.

REBARERERDEBAZMER £
A E—BETRINARERRER AR
Rk 2 TMER25% © BIBEANEBFATE E’]
AABHRBESEHMM REBEEC
Sl oA = F BT E- ZK%’%@
—EHARBBIF EMRAIMEENEH
NRFFRE -
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41, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 4. RNRRZIABNRRK KR
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company @) AREZEBARRE
2019 2018
—E-hF —ET-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT T
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB MR 6,686 9,654
Right-of-use assets FREEE 31,116 -
Investments in subsidiaries R B A RIHIRE 26 27,854 57,851
Equity investments at FVTOCI B EFAEAM
SEREHRERE 9,607 21,859
75,263 89,364
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE YR B A B FTE 41(c) 121,896 73,712
Prepayments, deposits, other TENFIE -~ e B
receivables and other assets JEWFIB R EME E 35,870 23,711
Loans to other parties mEMALTER 26,209 -
Equity investments at FVTOCI BAFERAEM
FEWERRERE 3,789 5,328
Pledged bank deposits BIIRIRITFER - 1,250
Bank and cash balances SRITRIR S ek 53,856 255,585
Total current assets RBEEHAE 241,620 359,586
Total assets EEHE 316,883 448,950
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41, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 4., RABZ2HBHRARMEEEZS

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued) (#8)
(@) Statement of financial position of the Company (Continued) (@) ARNATZEHBHRRE ()
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-N\EF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FETT
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Equity e
Equity attributable to owners RAREE AELER
of the Company
Share capital A& AR 5,945 5,945
Reserves HiE 41(b) 243,318 408,820
Total equity ERBE 249,263 414,765
Non-current liabilities kRBERS
Lease liabilities HEBE 9,144 =
Total non-current liabilities kRBEEHEE 9,144 5
Current liabilities RBEE
Accruals and other payables TERBR R EMmENFUE 17,535 13,857
Lease liabilities HeEaE 20,940 z
Amounts due to subsidiaries JER B R R FE 41(c) 1 328
Borrowings BE 20,000 20,000
Total current liabilities RBEEAER 58,476 34,185
Total equity and liabilities EEhkEEHEE 316,883 448,950
Approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2020 and EFefN S _TF=A= 'i' H
are signed on its behalf by: HEW B TIALTRAEEE
Lin Dailian Xia Xiaobing
PRAC BB BEhE
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41, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 4. RNRAE) 2 BB R K e

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued) (&)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) ARAZEEE
Equity
Share Investments
premium Merger  Accumulated at FVTOCI Capital
account reserve losses reserve  contribution
BRATE
FARMZE
KERRE
R EER AfHRE RitEE RERE gt by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
THAL BT BT THL T Thr
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F—-F—-H 603,750 3171 (198,560) - 11,280 419,641
Adjustment on initial application BRERB BN EREER
of HKFRS 9 FRMAE - - 27,198 (28,145) - (947)

Restated balance at 1 January 2018 RZE-\F-A—-BREH

(=E5) 603,750 3171 (171,32) (28,145) 11,280 418,694
Total comprehensive income for the year  FE 2 E M 458 - - 15,842 (25,716) - (9,874)
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-\E+-fA=t-R
1 January 2019 R=E-N%5-F-H 603,750 3171 (155,520) (53,861) 11,280 408,820
Total comprehensive income for the year [ 2 Y &5 - - (174,855) 9,353 - (165,502)
Disposal of equity investments HERELE (7,949) 7,949 - -
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+-A=+-8 603,750 3171 (338,324) (36,559) 11,280 243,318
(¢)  The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, (© EU(FERDKIBARRIEAEIR
interest free and have no fixed terms of repayments. . B REETENE -
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The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

M

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

Share premium account

Share premium represents the amount of the excess
of issue price of the Company’s shares over its par
value.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares issued by
the Company in exchange for the nominal value of
the share capital of its subsidiaries arising from the
group reorganisation.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 4(c)(iii) to
the consolidated financial statements.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve has been set up and
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies adopted for land and buildings in note 4(d)
to the consolidated financial statements.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of shares of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group
reorganisation in 1997, over the nominal value of
shares of Telefield Holdings Limited issued in
exchange therefor.

$§.Tnﬁﬁﬁ§5)ﬁiﬁm@j% RA1E
mhEMEERERGAERE
FRAET o

(i) KHEER

B fn i B R AR B B A
HITEBBEEEMNTSHE

(i) EHHRE
afEEARESEEAN
R A EITRD R EE AR
HIBARRAEE L ZR

(i) SMEREEE

SMNEME F B EERREEI
EBMBRRELNFE S
EER - ZHEBREBEKREH
TS ¥R SR M 2T 4C0)Cii) P&t & &1
BRI

(v) MEEMGREE

MESHHEBRBEREVH
R MY EE A P BE T3
BFRMAN ST BORE K&
BRIE o

) AR
REBNPMARBIER—N
NAEFIREE B E A REN

B R ARG EERE B TTelefield
Holdings Limited & E % &
BRHZEITHROEEZED
ER o
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(vi)

(vii)

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable, is
appropriated from the profit after taxation of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws
and regulations in the PRC.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents gains/losses directly
reflect in equity resulted from change of equity
interests in subsidiaries without change of control.

(viii) Capital contribution

(ix)

The amount represents the difference between
inception fair value and proceeds of non-interest
bearing loan from shareholder, which regarded as
capital contribution.

Equity investments at FVTOCI reserve

The equity investments at FVTOCI reserve comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investments at FVTOCI held at the end of the
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy in note 4(k) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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(vi)

(vii)
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ZRREAFEEKRABRR
RRERMERBZENE
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43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 43, 4A8 B4 ns XM
FLOWS

(@) Disposal of Navigator Holdings Limited and its subsidiary (@) H % Navigator Holdings Limited & E
Dol-Fin Asset Management Limited (“Navigator Group”) WEBARAKERREEERGRA
7] ([Navigator £ )

On 31 March 2018, the Company disposed of its 100% RZE—N\E=A=+—8 &2

equity interests in Navigator Group at a consideration of 7] #5 Navigator £ & 2 & 2B # z%

HK$700,000 to an independent third party. Net assets at EFBIE=7  K{EAE700,000

the date of disposal were as follows: Bre R EBHcEEFED
T

HK$'000
TAET

FE -

A

Net assets disposed of BEHEE

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 11) HEMB ARz W (FaEn) 700

Total consideration satisfied by cash IR e & NaRE 700

Net cash inflow arising on disposal: AHEELAMNIRERAFE
Cash consideration received BUWIRERE 700
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BEHEREKIREEEY =

700
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43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 43, #A B RERME (B)
FLOWS (Continued)
(b) Disposal of Gabrio International Limited and its subsidiary (b) H & Gabrio International Limited
Telefield Lifestyle Limited (“Gabrio Group”) HEfBARPEAERIR AR AR
([Gabrio =& |)
On 10 August 2018, the Group entered into a sales and NR-ZE—-NFENATH "EFZE
purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Group agreed SAT—MEEWHE Bl AEE
to sell its 100% equity interests in Gabrio Group and the B E# GabrioEBE 7 2 B2 R
shareholder’s loan to Mr. Liu Chi Cheung at a consideration REFHEFLiuChi Cheungfe & -
HK$7.8. Net liabilities at the date of disposal were as REAISEBT REERHZE
follows: BEFRENT
HK$'000
T
Property, plant and equipment W - B N 1
Trade receivables FEWE 5 AR K 419
Bank and cash balances IRITRIR &5 2,304
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFRIE ~ iR R EAEKFUE 10
Trade payables e E SRR (320)
Accruals and other payables TEIRE F & E R SRIE (6,436)
Amount due to the Group R AREBFUR (10,479)
Net liabilities disposed of BHEAEFE (14,501)
Non-controlling interests ey e 2,023
Sales loan HEER 10,479
(1,999)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 11) HEMRBAR 2 W (FaEn) 1,999
Total consideration REBRE =
Consideration satisfied by cash LR e &R E -
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: R EELHRSRHIFER
Cash consideration received BMIRER(E -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BHEREMREEED (2,304)
(2,304)
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43 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (Continued)

(

Disposal of a subsidiary — Circuit Development Limited
(“Circuit™)

On 1 August 2018, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Group agreed
to sell its 100% equity interests in Circuit and the
shareholder’s loan to Dragon Fortune International Limited
at a consideration HK$32,000,000. Net assets at the date
of disposal were as follows:

BREMEBRME (E)

& — MM E A — Circuit
Development Limited ([ Circuit )

RZZE—NEFENA—B ' A5£E%
AT —HEERE B AER
RECircut 22 HEZ LR E
HHETEREEBRERAR - RE
/32,000,000 7T - RIEEBHZ
BEFENAT :

HK$'000
TR

Investment property "EME 32,000
Bank and cash balances IRITRIRE 45 50
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFRIE ~ e REARUGR 2
Amount due to the Group B AL BB (6,898)
Net assets disposed of BHELEEFE 25,154
Sales loan HEBEX 6,898
324052
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (note 14) HE—RNBARZEE(Hiti4) (52)
Total consideration RE®EE 32,000
Consideration satisfied by cash AR & &R E 32,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: AEEEENRESRAFEE
Cash consideration received 2WRERE 32,000
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BERERERINEEEY (C)
31,950
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43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 43, #A B RERME (B)

FLOWS (Continued)

(d) Disposal of Pride Review Limited and its subsidiaries: Nice (d) & Pride Review Limited & E /@
Merit Limited, Ace Wealthy Limited, Chief Hero Limited, NAE) B ARAR] ~ Ace Wealthy
Excel Limited, Easy Time Limited and Earn King Limited * HHBR AT - ZERAER
Corporation Limited (collectively, the “Pride Review NA) - BPHEAERQBIMMELZERA
Group”™) 7] (%578 [ Pride Review £H |)

On 31 December 2019, the Company entered into a sales RZE—NF+-_A=+—H8" 'K
and purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Company RNAER T EEHE - &k
agreed to sell its 100% equity interests in Pride Review KA ) [E B A5 Pride Review £ & 2
Group at a total consideration of HK$100,000. The disposal > PEZLE - LR E A100,000
was completed on 31 December 2019. Net liabilities at the BLe HEFSHERZZ—NLF
date of disposal were as follows: +ZA=+—B8%K - RHERH
ZEEFBENT
HK$'000
FHETT
Property, plant and equipment Y BB KRR 604
Right-of-use assets FREEE 2,512
Goodwill (S 18,814
Bank and cash balances RIT NI B MR 686
Inventories FE 215
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — FENFIE « 24 K E fb fE Y 7B 2,057
Tax assets HBEE 969
Trade payables JEHE SRR )
Accruals and other payables TEIRE R R H A E FRIE (4,246)
Lease liabilities HEaEF (2,241)
Amount due to the Company JE AN A R FRIB (12,754
Net assets disposed of BHEEEFE 6,539
Sales loan HEER 12,754
19,293
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (note 14) HEMRB AR EE (KF14) (19,193)
Total consideration BRE 100
Consideration satisfied by cash LIRS &ENHRE 100
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: AEEEENRESARAFEE
Cash consideration to be received WBUIR SR (E 100
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BHEReMREEEYD (686)
(586)
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43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 43, &ZAaRenExMT (48)
FLOWS (Continued)

(e) Disposal of a subsidiary — Guoyi () HE—MWEBAR —EHHE
On 31 December 2019, the Group entered into a sales and RZE—NF+ZA=+—H &
purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Group agreed EEFI T —MHEEWHE - Bt
to sell its 51% equity interests in Guoyi at a consideration AREBREBEMEHSI%EZ B
HK$616,000. The disposal was completed on 31 December € KBA66000B L HESE
2019. Net assets at the date of disposal were as follows: BHERN —_ZE—-hE+=-_A=+—H
TR RHEHHZ2EEFEN
T

HK$'000

T

Property, plant and equipment VI - BB R ERE 94
Trade receivables JEUE ZER R 11,607
Bank and cash balances RTINS 45k 1,695
Inventories FE 1,185
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — FBRT3RIE - &4 & E i fEY B 19,551

Amount due from non-controlling interests ﬂEMﬂsz REEZS TR 2,143
Trade payables JERTE SRR (184)
Tax liabilities HIEaE (4,688)
Accruals and other payables TERBRAMEMENFUE (9,608)
Borrowings R (19,709)
Net assets disposed of BHEEEFE 2,086
Non-controlling interests eI R (2,436)

Release of foreign currency reserve AEBR SNE 15 27
(138)

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 17) HEKB AR (HiE17) 754
Total consideration wRE 616
Consideration satisfied by cash NIR &R E 616

Net cash outflow arising on disposal: AR EEERIRES R T F5E -

Cash consideration to be received 1R &R (B 616
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BEHEREMREEEY (1,695)
(1,079)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (Continued)

"

€e))

Major non-cash transaction

Additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities during
the year of HK$20,367,000 (2018: HK$Nil) were due to
effective of new lease agreements.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.

43 HEBRERERWTE(E)

O ETEIFRERS
FREAEAEEELTEERSE
20,367,000 T(ZE—N\F: =T
BIT) Ty RN E WS TR -

(90 BMEEHEAZEBEHE
AEBREBME TS MEELAZBERN

25 pEASMIFRSES O
FIR TR - HREBEBHELNR
B AAZEEBRELMRNEAS
RE  RAKENGFARSRER
TOESRERPIRERE

Impact
on initial
application Restated
of  balance at
1January  HKFRS16  1January Interest  Disposalof  Exchange 31 December
2019 3) 2019 Addition  Cash flows expenses  subsidiaries difference 2019
BRER
BRUBRE R-F-NF
EQE6%  -A-AN “E-NE
“E-NE Hye e g HE e
-B-H f (&=5) ReRE 53 EﬁE’W =t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS HK$'000
TT ThT T ThTL
Lease liabilities (note 35) REBEMWHT) 75813 75813 19,949 (38,102) 4390 (2.241) (204) 59,605
Borrowings (note 37) wEW23) 40,267 40,267 (19,709) 20558
40,267 75813 116,080 19,949 (3,102) 4390 (21,950) (204) 80,163

B8 (Hit37)

Borrowings (nhote 37)

1 January
2018

—2-N\fF
—A-H
HK$'000
THET

43,139

Cash flows

RERE
HK$'000
THET

(1,780)

Exchange 31 December
difference

7
=5
HK$'000
THET

(1,092)

2018
—E-N\F
+=A
S
HK$'000
FHET

40,267
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43, NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 43, #ZeWens RME(8)
FLOWS (Continued)

(h)  Amounts included in the cash flow statements for leases (hy HERESRERFTHSERFEUT

comprise the following: &IF -

2018

—ZT—N\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

THxT FHIT

Within operating cash flows KERSREN 474 43,841

Within investing cash flows KRERESREAN = =

Within financing cash flows MERSTREN 37,628 -

38,102 43,841

These amounts relate to the following; ZESTEHNTRIBARHS -

Lease rental paid

ENEERS

2019
—E-hEF

HK$’000
FET

38,102

AONES]
—ZE—)N\F
HK$000
T T

43,841
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@

(i)

At 31 December 2018 and 2019, the Group had an
outstanding guarantee (the “Guarantee”) to one of the
suppliers of an overseas subsidiary (the “Disposed
Subsidiary”), which was disposed on 7 October 2015, for
payment in relation to a sum of US$2.6 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$20.3 million), representing a trade
balance under dispute between the Disposed Subsidiary
and the supplier. The supplier subsequently sold the trade
balance to a third party.

During 2017, the Disposed Subsidiary had agreed with the
third party for a final settlement by instalment of
US$650,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5.1 million).
In this regards, as at 31 December 2019, the Group had an
outstanding guarantee of the sum limited to US$650,000,
subject to the full payment of the final settlement effected
by the Disposed Subsidiary.

The Disposed Subsidiary had issued counter guarantee to
the Company to indemnify the Company for any loss in
relation to the Guarantee.

In 2018, a lawsuit was lodged against a subsidiary of the
Company, Guangzhou Telefield Limited. The plaintiff seeks
compensation of approximately RMB1 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$1.1 million). A settlement agreement
was signed with the plantiff to compensate RMB1 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$1.1 million) in five
payments. As at 31 December 2019, four payments were
made and the remaining compensation was approximately
RMBO.2 million (equivalent to approximately HK$0.22
million).

Apart from the above, the Group and the Company did not have
any significant contingent liabilities.

Link-Asia International Co. Ltd IR ZEIERBE 2 ER AT

®

()

R _ESCRratsh -

AZE-\FERZZT—NF+=A
:+—E*$%I£E$_§—£
FTAELBHEEZBINHERR
(BELREMBAR] 2 Ep—&1#
FERS A AR E R ([ ER])
HARH4E 26000003 T (48
& R 4920,300,0008 7T) 2 FE
ST E HEH B A R R R 2
FHESEG - BrEEREHE
BOEBTE=F -

RZT—tF BEEHBA

ﬁ%:ﬁkﬁﬁ%ﬂ%’ﬁ%ﬁﬂ
650,000 3 7T, (18 & M 475,100,000
BI) e Bt E - RZT—NF
+ZA=+—H8 AEEBEHEE
B £ 1R © 8 £ R AB650,000%
T RTEHEWE A R ERES
S REMBFEME

BEHEMBRARERARRELR
R ARZERIEABRAN
RAEEHBERE

RZE—N\F AR FHER A
EMPEEFERARIFELF
B REBRBEHEEHARK
1,000,000 7t (A8 & 7 471,100,000 &
J0) > MRS RIMBIHEAS R
HAEE (8 AR % 1,000,000 7T (FE R
#31100,0007L) e RZE—NF
+—A=Z+—H8 EXFMmEK
I B TEENR AR 200,000
JC (FHE R 49220,000%7T) -
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45. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 45,

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

B AYE
AEBRMERRNERALEMT -

2019 PAONES]
—E-hEF — N\
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FHBxT FETT
Plant and machinery B M 23
Contracted but not yet incurred BRIYMERESE 96 320
46. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 46. REHE W=
The Group as lessee AEEBEEA

At 31 December 2018 the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

R-ZE-NE+-_A=+—H" RET
ARG EHEANNRRKERER
TRABRELT ¢

PAONES]

— )\

HK$'000

TFETT

Within one year —FR 40,718
In the second to fifth years inclusive —_FEFRF

(BREEEMT) 48,965

After five years HEAE 728

90,411

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its staff quarters, factories and offices.
Leases are negotiated for an average term of one to ten years
and do not include contingent rentals.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for staff
quarters. As at 31 December 2019, the portfolio of short-term
leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the
short-term lease expense disclosed in note 21.

REMERBEAKERETELE
2 BEMRAZEMNNES  £HH
BEENTOEMNF—=+F X TE
BHAEE -

AKEEMRE THES T IENEE -
R=B—NF+-A=t+—B EHE
E182 SR H 2 BB GG R RN
e AR A A AL
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z =L —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

46. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued) 46. EMEHZE (B)
The Group as lessor AEFEBHEA
Operating leases relate to investment property owned by the KEMERASERENREYES
Group with lease terms of 2 vears. All operating lease contracts B HEBAMF TALEHESNH
contain market review clauses in the vent that the lessee BEARATFEEHREENTEER
exercises its options to renew. The lessee does not have an HEAM IS BB G - ABARERE
option to purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period. MBI EBEEZFEAEERE o
Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows: HENSEBWHEERENT
2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
FEx
Within year 1 —FR 644
In the second year F_F 590
Total et 1,234
The following table presents the amounts reported in profit or TRINEREBEFE2YIHNEEE
loss:

2019
—E2-hE

HK$°000
FERT

Lease income on operating leases wEHE 2 ERA 54

234 Link-Asia International Co. Ltd BT HEEXGR AT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z — &

/\‘/T\
—NEFFT—A=+—HIFFE

47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those related party transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following transactions with its related parties
during the year:

Bl — R EE IR
Interest on loans from a related company KE—BH—ZFXEZREFHEHN

Amount due from a director

owned by a substantial shareholder RAEA

ELENSE RS

47.

FETRS
Wk & B I SRR A5 R MO RRIE
R HREEBSI - AEEPENRBES
EUTRS
2019 2018
S N\
HK$°000 HK$000
FER BT
204 =
1,332 1,873

The details of remuneration of key management personnel,
represents the emoluments of directors of the Company paid
during the year and set out in note 16(a).

48. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(i)  Placing of new shares of the Company (the “Placing”)

On 29 January 2020, the Company and Zinvest Global
Limited (the “Placing Agent”) entered into a placing
agreement (the “Placing Agreement”), pursuant to which
the Company has conditionally agreed to place through
the Placing Agent, on a best endeavor basis, in aggregate
of up to 1,189,062,000 new shares of the Company to be
allotted and issued pursuant to the terms and conditions of
the Placing Agreement (the “Placing Shares”).

On 19 February 2020, the condition precedent set out in
the Placing Agreement had been fulfilled, and completion
of the Placing took place on 19 February 2020 in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Placing
Agreement. In accordance with the terms and conditions
of the Placing Agreement, the Placing Shares are to be
placed by the Placing Agent on a best endeavour basis.
The Placing Shares under the Placing have not been fully
placed. An aggregate of 1,189,060,000 Placing Shares,
which represents approximately 16.7% of the issued share
capital of the Company immediately after completion of
the Placing, has been successfully placed to not less than
six Placees, at the placing price of HK$0.035 per Placing
Share. The net proceeds from the Placing (after deduction
of commission and other expenses of the Placing) are
approximately HK$41.4 million.

ITREEERENFHMH(ARREFERN
FAREMNOME)FIFERHFE66R)

Apae ey (iEE=1R])

ZFE—A=F+NAB AR
BHEEREAFERARAR ([RE
REDITUREHRZE(REH
#F) B AARIEERERE
FRRERBIZBHENELER
& BEREEHRBNGRREEHE
ABBRETARARS
1,189,062,000% M A% ([ EL &A% 15 ]) o

RZZEZTF-_A+NAB  BEE®H
EPTE A MR ER - BRI
BR & e A R R ikt - Be B F IR
ER-ZT-_ZE-_A+AHEK -
BRI EHEAIRR G BE
B mil s RIBRIBHEZHESE
e - BRESIE FHESRMNKRE
BHEE - & 3£1189,060,000 A FL
ERMUERBHERESHETKE
RABEBEITIRAL6.7%) BTN
RETFTTIRANBEEA - BEE
AEREERD0.0358 L - BLE
EHEMERIBFEFKREESEE
A REMRIE) DR
41,400,000 7 7T ©
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Details of the Placing are set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 29 January 2020, 3 February 2020 and
19 February 2020, respectively.

On 17 February 2020, the Company proposed to the
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general
meeting to be held on 10 March 2020 (the “EGM”) to
terminate the share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 31 December 2010 (the “2010 Share Option
Scheme”) and to approve and adopt a new share option
scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”). Details of the
New Share Option Scheme are set out in the circular of the
Company dated 17 February 2020.

On 10 March 2020, at the EGM, the proposed adoption of
the New Share Option Scheme and the termination of the
2010 Share Option Scheme were duly passed by the
shareholders of the Company by way of poll.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
Company has entered into a settlement agreement in
respect of the Legal Proceeding as set out in note 37(iii).
Details of which are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 24 March 2020.

Link-Asia International Co. Ltd IR ZEIERBE 2 ER AT

FHAREFENFBESRIHENAA
ARMA-ZT-_TEF—HA=+N

A -ZZT-F_A=HRkZ=T

ZF_A+NARE -

RZZZFEF-A+tH AR

IS —EF= H+Eﬁﬂm%$
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Subsequent to the end of the reporting period and up to
date of approval of these financial statements, the Group’s
equity investments at FVTOCI has suffered a decline in
market value of approximately HK$9 million, primarily due
to market volatility as compared to the carrying amount as
at 31 December 2019.

After the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been and
continued to be implemented across the globe. The Group
is paying close attention to the development of, and the
disruption to business and economic activities caused by,
the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its impact on the
financial position, cash flows and operating results of the
Group. Given the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of its impact
on the Group’s financial position, cash flows and operating
results at the date on which these financial statements are
authorised for issue.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach,
comparative information is not restated. Further details of the
changes in accounting policies are disclosed in note 3.

In addition, the comparative profit/(loss) and cash flows from
discontinued operation have been re-presented to include the
operation classified as discontinued in the current year.

RREPRBREEZSEVHRE
EZH B AEEUAFETAR
2T W s B IR IR B T E KA
9,000,000 FEHMRE_F
—NWE+ZA=+—H/ERmEMR
LL TR B FTER o

RZE_TEFNEETERS
(COVID-19) 1% + 2ERE AN B
EHE— R5TE RIEHIHE i - A&
BE-—EXY@EIHTRE
(COVID-19) BB B R IA R H ¥ 2
RS TEE BN R E - WRTEHE
REEMBRR BeRERLE
XENTE - ERNTTERES
(COVID-19) 1B MR - IREET
BZEMHHRABHREE—EEY
AEERBRR  ReREERLEE
EENTENABEMGYRAT -

AEEER-_T-NAF-A-HAZAL
EFTEWNEE RERBEMBRE LR
F165% - RIFUL TR - LEREHINMEE
5 - B BREHHE—HFBERER
PEES -

AN REERIERERBO LB R

F (B8R RReREE BEIIERSF
BERIEZEERT -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

HFEBEHE

The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 December

2019 and the consolidated assets, liabilities and equity of the Group as B4R &
at 31 December 2019 are those set out in the audited financial

AEBBEE—_T-NAF+-A=1+—HLFE

¥ENMAERBR _T—-HLF+-A

SH-AMBAAE - AERRARNEEE

statements. BIFEMEA o
The summary below does not form part of the audited financial AT E I TNEK S BZ B IEBERA D ©
statements.
2019 2018 2017 2016 AN)
ZE-hEFE —EN\F ZE+tF —ZTRF —T—AF
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FHT FAHT FAT FAHT
(Re-
presented)
(&E5)
RESULTS E
Revenue A 629,948 681,482 662,208 748,749 1,008,561
Cost of sales SHER A (494,106) (534,208) (497,793) (598,835) (796,467)
Gross profit EF 135,842 147,274 164,415 149,914 212,094
Other income HlA 16,327 24,878 19,524 34,419 13,687
Selling and distribution expenses  $5& k7 $EF (28,829) (27,527) (45,578) (49,943) (55,365)
Administrative expenses THEHR (179,414) (182,509) (151,934) (131,420) (76,573)
Other operating expenses Hip & (100,405) (25,095) (94,789) (74,637) (43,729)
(Loss)/profit from operations T (FR), w5 (156,479) (62,979)  (108,362) (71,667) 50,114
Finance costs BMEMAK (6,809) (2,778) (13,049) (4,297) (6,081)
Share of loss of a joint venture PME—BEECEEE - = = = 117)
(Loss)/profit before tax BRELAT (B518), SRR (163,288) (65,757)  (121,411) (75,964) 43916
Income tax (expense)/credit i (A%)/E (1,300) 566 (9,898) (11,074) (5,549)
(Loss)/profit for the year from  HEFL £k >
continuing operation FE(FR) %Al (164,588) (65,191)  (131,309) (87,038) 38,367
(Loss)/profit for the year from DRIREEE Y
discontinued operations FE(EHR)BR (14,739) 15,891 = = (79432
Loss for the year FEEE (179,327) (49,300) (131,309) (87,038) (41,065)
238 Link-Asia International Co. Ltd BB BRRE X B R A A
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2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—B-NF T\ ZTtF ZT-F ZTIF
HK$000 ~ HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000

T FET AL AL FAL
(Re-
presented)
(E3)
Attributable to: UTEHEN :
Owners of the Company RATHEE A (171,735) (57,984)  (128,428) (82,646) (1,844)
Non-controlling interests IR R (7,592) 8,684 (2,881) (4,392) (39,221)

(179,327) (49,300)  (131,309) (87,038) (41,005)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON- &E - BERFERER
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

TOTAL ASSETS BEAE 734,840 930,862 960,588 800,284 853,448
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEAE (323,827)  (348,030)  (306,586)  (336,647)  (305,446)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS  JEipRigss - (10,028) 543 11,210 5,958

411,013 572,804 654,545 474,847 553,960

Note: The Group disposed of certain subsidiaries and associates during the year ended 31 Hiet . REBRBE-Z-AR=-T—HF+-_A=+—Hit

December 2019 and 2015. The results of the disposed subsidiaries and associates for the FEHEETHBRARREE QR - DHEHBRARR
years presented have been reclassified for separate disclosure as discontinued BERNRNEINFEENREECETHE MR EXBT
operations above. WRABKRIMEEZE -
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